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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Sino-i Technology
Limited (the “Company”), | present to the shareholders the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2020. In 2020, the Group continued
to focus on its corporate digital intelligence operation and cloud
services business through its key subsidiaries, namely # 1>8) H &A%
7 & BR ‘A &) (CE Dongli Technology Company Limited) (“CE Dongli")
and 1t T EISE E AT AR AR (Beijing Xinnet Cyber Information
Company Limited) (“Xinnet").

At the beginning of 2020, the sudden outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic
("Epidemic”) had a certain impact on the Group's operations. The
Group reached out to customers through online trials and live
streaming, which helped to significantly drive the growth of subscriber
base. At the same time, the Group optimised its existing portal, Search
Engine Optimisation (“SEQ") and cloud computing services in
accordance with the changing needs of customers and vigorously
promoted its Online Merge Offline ("“OMOQO") digital commerce
business, which effectively met the urgent need of customers to
quickly start their online operations under the pressure of the
Epidemic. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's key operating data
had largely recovered or even exceeded the pre-epidemic level, and
the Group's daily operations had fully recovered and were once again
on a steady growth path.

As the Epidemic was gradually brought under control, we found that
the Epidemic greatly accelerated the development and commercial
application of emerging technologies such as applets, live streaming,
big data and cloud computing. In the “post-epidemic” era, the wave of
digital transformation for micro, small and medium-sized enterprises
and traditional enterprises has arrived, and the next decade will be a
golden decade for the digital infrastructure of traditional enterprises. In
the face of this historic opportunity, the Group will leverage its strong
resources, core competencies and rich operational experience in the
enterprise services market to provide traditional enterprises and retail
stores with Software as a Service (“SaaS") products and solutions for
their online operations, focusing on the OMO digital commerce
business to maximise customer growth and market share.
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The Group’s management believes that with the expansion of the
digital transformation and digital infrastructure of enterprises, IT tool
products will become more similar and competition at the tool level
will become increasingly intense. Digital services, digital management,
digital marketing and industry solutions with SaaS as the core will
become the real core competitiveness and industry barriers. The
Group's core subsidiaries, CE Dongli and Xinnet, will focus on the
development of OMO digital commerce business, building an internet
application industry ecosystem for China’s enterprises and providing
digital services and industry solutions using IT technology to become a
driving force in the transformation and upgrading of China's industries.

Over the past 21 years, the Group has been providing cloud computing
infrastructure services, cloud applications, enterprise e-business
services and industry solutions, total solutions for “Enterprise Digital
Transformation” and big data-based business intelligence cloud
services to enterprises in the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC").
Through continuous efforts, the Group has successfully established a
leading nationwide local service network in the industry, with local
service capabilities to provide face-to-face communication, direct
delivery and attentive service to customers, providing small and
medium-sized enterprises with a one-stop solution for enterprise
intelligent management.

In the future, the Group will continue to maintain a keen observation of
the digital transformation of China’s enterprises, gain an in-depth
understanding of the new features, changes and trends of corporate
customers, and continue to innovate with an open and inclusive mind
to introduce new products, services and models that meet the needs
of corporate customers in a timely manner in order to achieve the
Group's strategic transformation and leapfrog development.

Finally, I would like to express my gratitude to the shareholders’

concern for and support to the Company, and also to the Board and all
staff for their dedication and contribution.

Liu Rong
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERE WD

TWENTY ONE YEARS DEDICATION
TO CORPORATE DIGITALIZATION AND SMART OPERATION
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Commenced operation of the cloud platform,
which contained various kinds of enterprise
cloud services such as the portal cloud,
transaction cloud and foreign trade cloud
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all-net portal services
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Launched “Youyi Cloud (E82)” digital
products, and formed a mixed cloud
structure and the capabilities of
providing cloud products
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Launched internet
integrated
marketing services
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Launched global portal products,
optimised the existing SEO business and
improved the functionality of mobile mall products
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group provided a comprehensive digital marketing, digital business
solutions and cloud computing infrastructure services to corporate
clients in China. The main products/services included domain name,
public cloud, mini program mall, mailbox, digital marketing, etc.,
covering various aspects such as infrastructure, website building tools
and services, digital marketing and online transactions as required by
enterprises for digital operation.

For the small and medium-sized customers, we provide standardised
enterprise service tools in the form of SaaS, as well as relatively
standardised and yet customised services. We have integrated the
quality partners and resources in the industry to create a mature and
stable product ecosystem to meet the individual needs of our
customers as far as possible. For strategic clients in various industries,
we provide personalised, high-end customised services across the

”

entire industry chain through our sub-brand “CE Ultimate (& 2)".

Having made unremitting efforts over time, we have established a
nationwide, industry-wide, omni-channel business system that enabled
us to reach customers in a timely and effective manner. At the same
time, we have set up more than 80 branches to form a localised
service operation network across the country, providing face-to-face
rapid response and localised delivery to our customers and effectively
solving the problems of “the last kilometer” of corporate services.

In 2020, with the gradual containment of the Epidemic, the trend
towards online personal consumption and the digitalisation of business
operations was evident, and the volume of export business
experienced a rapid growth. In addition to the existing full network
responsive portal and foreign trade portal, CE Dongli under the Group
has launched a global portal business. Through its own domestic and
foreign trade SEO marketing products and Google SEM (Search Engine
Marketing) products, CE Dongli effectively met the online display and
marketing needs of different customers in domestic and foreign trade.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERE WD

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Epidemic has greatly accelerated the process of online retail,
resulting in an urgent need for the shift of retail outlets which were
originally offline only in all sectors to online operation. Manufacturers
of different brands/merchants of origin urgently needed an online
presence to communicate with consumers across the country in order
to run private domain traffic. CE Dongli has strengthened the
promotion of digital commerce business, providing customers with an
integrated e-commerce solution to help them open up online and
offline sales channels and better meet the needs of multi-scene and
multi-channel operation in the digital era. Coupled with the underlying
cloud computing technology support services of Xinnet, CE Dongli
helped customers to achieve better business growth.

During the year, with CE Dongli and Xinnet being its main operating
entities, the Group was committed to the development of cloud
services for corporate digitalisation and smart operation by providing
comprehensive Infrastructure as a Service (“laaS"), SaaS application,
corporate e-commerce services, “corporate digitalisation
transformation” total solutions and big databased business intelligence
cloud services to China market. During the year, revenue of the Group
was approximately HK$972.1 million (2019: HK$963.6 million). Profit
for the year was approximately HK$111.0 million (2019: HK$22.4
million). The profit was primarily attributable to 1) the Group’s various
products, which effectively met the urgent need of customers to start
online operations quickly under the pressure of the Epidemic,
significantly drove the growth of the number of users and improved
sales efficiency; 2) the Group's continuous investment in research and
development of production platforms in recent years, which has
improved production efficiency and reduced labour input per unit of
product, thereby improving gross profit margin; and 3) the various
measures taken by the Group to reduce management and
administrative expenses, enhance efficiency, reduce costs, pursue and
enjoy various concessions and waivers in accordance with relevant
government policies to minimise the impact of the Epidemic during the
year.

CE DONGLI

With 20 years' service experience, CE Dongli has a SaaS product
system that meets the digital needs of enterprises in China and has
built up a large business and localisation service network. At the same
time, it has integrated leading partners from various industries to build
a market for corporate services, providing enterprises in China with
enterprise digital business solutions with professional technology and
comprehensive services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CE DONGLI (Continued)

During the year, CE Dongli had the following key initiatives:

Firstly, self-service website building products were launched, forming
a complete product spectrum for large and medium-sized customers
to small and micro customers, in order to meet the different needs of
customers of various scales and expand the number of potential users
while enhancing user experience. Over 10,000 paid users have
developed templates for website building during the year.

Secondly, in response to the trend of online enterprise marketing, the
existing SEO business was integrated with the portal business and
other third party products into different product combinations and
solutions. During the year, the marketing products grew by
approximately 22.45%, with increase of approximately 70.68% in the
fourth quarter when compared to the fourth quarter of 2019.

Thirdly, with the significant growth of China’s export data in 2020 and
strong demand from customers for foreign trade marketing, CE Dongli
re-optimised its existing foreign trade portal and Google SEM business
and integrated with other third party resources to form a new solution.
The launch of the new solution was highly recognized by the market,
bringing a total number of customers to over 8,600.

Fourthly, with the far-reaching impact of the Epidemic on the retail
industry, CE Dongli has stepped up its research and development and
marketing efforts in the digital commerce business, and has a stable
service capability in conducting major transactions; through
cooperation with third parties, CE Dongli has achieved the integration
of mobile payment, logistics and other related services, helping
customers to fully integrate the information flow, capital flow and
logistics of e-commerce business; during the year, the digital
commerce business has established a customer operation team aimed
at making customers successful, helping customers to complete the
entire operation system from WeChat authentication, payment
opening, shop construction (renovation) and shop marketing and
promotion, which can help traditional customers to quickly establish an
online and offline integrated operation system. During the year, there
were a total of 1,348 new customers, representing an increase of
approximately 239.43% when compared with 2019.

EEEN WD

B (s
FR - REHHEERUTERHIE

F— LT EPREER UK TRARE
EPRNEEPHZBEMRFY  AREERE
HRBEEFPMEREHENR  HIRFRFERNF
RIEATEERPHNHE - FRACTHREMN
BUENERFPBER -

F= o YO EMBRBE LENBE - J3
BT RBEMSEOXR  WHPIPEBIUAK
HhE = HERBARTRMEMRMES FRR
TR G EHEEEMRERT#2245% -
THENFERL2019FFNEEEREY
70.68% °

F= 2020 BN AHBEEZER  BF
INBEHFE SRS B AENELTRA
MINEFIFEMARSEMET - WS HME
= HEREKRFMERRTER - STHNBRRTT RN
HERESTMSENSERY  BEFHERTE
iH8,600% °

BN BEHTEEXRELETHRAFTENY
2 PRENINA T HREFEE SR
MMIBHERENE @ BRI REZRO X ZIRETH
FERSGHEE FABEENSNRSES B
BFEREAE BRTBEIMN WKkl
LHBRISHER  BEORFERTEFER
MEER B2R MRANZAEZES  FR-
B EEERDEBRL TUEEKN A BZEN
FEFREZEK  BMEFPEAMRIERE
TR - BESEE(EE)  UREHEEHE
BEXTEMNELRGER  AIUABEPHERRER
PRI BAR AR T — BB EER - F
R AFIEEF1,3481E - BH2019F L
239.43% o

“ESEEER ) FEBBERESEARAT

n )



www.sino-i.com

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERE WD

XINNET

During the year, Xinnet continued to serve domestic medium, small
and micro enterprises through online, direct sales and a nationwide
agent channel system. In addition to business such as domain name
management, public cloud laaS, mailbox, etc., it also continues to
expand the enterprise market in the area of website building and
corporate application services. It continues to enrich the product line in
respect of public cloud products, adding products including Redis,
RabbitMQ, cloud backup and big data in order to meet the needs of
users for PaaS (Platform as a Service) products. The scale of the
information center continues to expand. In addition to the existing
three regions of Northern China |, Il, and Hong Kong, the scale of
resources of the public cloud continues to increase by adding three
regions in the Northern China, so as to meet the growing business
needs. At the same time, in view of the weak technical capabilities and
strong business needs of medium, small and micro enterprises, as the
first domestic company to propose the concept of enterprise cloud
service center, it reaches users with the most direct SaaS application,
at the same time covering data products of basic cloud resource,
which has become one of the few suppliers in China of overall cloud
service product, which assists medium, small and micro enterprises to
achieve digital transformation.

PROSPECTS

The management of the Group believes that “Epidemic prevention and
control” will continue to be a major theme for the entire community in
2021. At the macro level, the domestic economy will gradually recover
and return to normal growth (the International Monetary Fund
estimates that China's GDP growth rate will be approximately 8% in
2021), while the export business of enterprises in China will continue
to grow rapidly due to the spread of the Epidemic abroad.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS (Continued)

We also note that the Epidemic will greatly accelerate the digital
transformation of enterprises in China, which will have a profound
impact on their brand building, channels, retailing, membership
management and interaction. The Epidemic has significantly changed
consumers' lifestyle and spending habits. The variety and frequency of
online shopping will increase significantly, and there will be a shift
from in-store purchases to online ordering and home delivery. The
population of online consumers is rapidly expanding, online shopping is
no longer the exclusive domain of young people, more elderly people
will also join online shopping. The process of building brand awareness
has changed dramatically, with consumers gradually moving from
offline shop displays and advertising to self-selecting information,
watching live streams and forming relatively closed communities.
Changes in consumer behaviour and habits will affect business
activities and boundaries: 1. corporate brands will pay more attention
to online displays and online placement; 2. with the increasing cost of
online traffic, low-cost and sustainable revenue-generating private
domain traffic operation and member interaction will become an
important business capability for enterprises; 3. enterprises not only
need to develop their own online sales, but also need to integrate their
existing offline channels and terminals to help them complete their
online transformation; and 4. retail shops will place more emphasis on
digital business capabilities such as online display, online promotion,
online transactions and maintaining customer relationships.

In light of above changes in the macro economy, consumer habits and
business needs, we will make the following strategic and operational
adjustments and initiatives:

Firstly, we will transform into a “digital marketing” business. On top of
our existing portal business, we will continue to optimise our existing
SEO business and integrate the product capabilities of our third-party
partners such as SEM and marketing automation to further develop a
new product portfolio and solutions to drive the Group’s transformation
from a website builder to an integrated digital marketing service
provider; and

Secondly, we will focus on the "digital commerce” business. We
believe that building our own e-commerce portal is an important
means for shops to achieve online sales and for companies to operate
private traffic and to interact with consumers in the future. We will
continue to push forward the development of our “digital commerce”
business. By 2021, we aim to be a first-tier company in this field.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

We understand that a comprehensive SaaS product and service
requires solid internet technology and data platform capabilities. In the
future, based on an in-depth understanding of the business
environment of customers in different industries, the Group will
continue to increase its investment in data centres, cloud computing
technology, automated operation and maintenance technology, big
data technology and intelligent marketing technology to
comprehensively enhance its core technology capabilities and further
develop and optimise products and services for the digital intelligent
operation and business of enterprises. In the future, we will make use
of cloud computing, the middle structure of business (¥# 5 &) and
Saa$S applications to develop digital marketing, data analytics and
e-commerce operations services to help our traditional industry
customers achieve digital transformation, better respond to changes in
consumer demand and meet the challenges of the digital era.

On 22 December 2020, Nan Hai Corporation Limited (“Nan Hai") and
the Company entered into the sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase (or procure
the purchase) and Nan Hai has conditionally agreed to sell (or procure
the sale) to the Company the entire equity interest of Hi5 ik £ Bl %
& (465 ) B R A &) (Digicine Oristar Technology Development (Beijing)
Company Limited*) (“Oristar”), for the consideration of RMB488
million (“Oristar Transaction”). Such transaction is still subject to,
amongst other things, the approval of independent shareholders of the
Company. Upon completion of the above-mentioned transaction, the
financial performance and financial position of Oristar and its subsidiary
will be consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. For details, reference shall be made to the Company’s
announcement dated 22 December 2020.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group continued to adopt prudent funding and treasury policies.
As at 31 December 2020, net assets attributable to the owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$1,556.6 million (2019:
HK$1,439.1 million), including cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$265.1 million (2019: HK$293.8 million) which were
mainly denominated in Renminbi, US dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
The Group had bank borrowings bearing interest at fixed rates of
approximately HK$37.2 million as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$33.5 million). The Group has not entered into any interest rate
hedge during the year.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated
as net debt (which is calculated as the bank borrowings, secured less
cash and cash equivalents) divided by the total equity plus net debt,
was not applicable (2019: not applicable). The Group recorded net cash
position (i.e. cash and cash equivalents is higher than bank borrowings,
secured) as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, gearing ratio is therefore
not applicable.

As at 31 December 2020, other than the Oristar Transaction, the Group
had no capital commitment (2019: Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's contingent liabilities were
approximately HK$21.7 million in connection with the guarantees given
to secure credit facilities granted to an associate (2019: HK$21.0
million).

As at 31 December 2020, certain interests in property, plant and
equipment amounting to approximately HK$13.6 million were pledged
to secure the bank borrowings (2019: HK$13.2 million).

Details at the bank borrowings of the Group are set out in note 27 to
the financial statements.

The Board considers that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to satisfy its future working capital and other financing
requirements for at least the next twelve months from the reporting
date.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The majority of the Group's borrowings and business dealings were
primarily denominated in Renminbi. Both the operating expenses and
revenue were primarily denominated in Renminbi. The Renminbi
exchange rate is expected to fluctuate due to uncertainties in global
economic development. The Group's assets, liabilities and results may
be affected by the Renminbi exchange rates. During the year,
fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rates affected the assets and
liabilities translation from Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars in financial
reporting of the Group, and the Group will keep on monitoring the
fluctuation in exchange rates between Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. The Group proactively seeks control measures to minimize the
impact arising from risks and uncertainties as far as practicable, and
considers using foreign exchange hedging instruments (if appropriate)
from time to time, to minimize the risk exposure arising from changes
in Renminbi exchange rates. During the year, the Group has not
entered into any foreign exchange hedging instruments.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company employs and remunerates its employees based on their
qualifications, experience and performance. In addition to basic salary
payments, other benefits include housing, contributions to mandatory
provident fund, group medical insurance, group personal accident
insurance and, examination leave etc. Employees are eligible to be
granted share options or restricted shares (as the case may be) under
the Company's share option scheme or restricted share award scheme
at the discretion of the Board. In general, salary review is conducted
annually. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 5,418 employees
(2019: 5,353 employees). The salaries of and allowances for the
employees for the year ended 31 December 2020 were approximately
HK$567.5 million (2019: approximately HK$657.9 million). The Group
focuses on providing skill and quality training for various levels of staff,
and provides on-the-job capability training to its staff; in respect of staff
quality, corresponding training on personal work attitude and work
habits is also provided.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board herein present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries of the Company were principally engaged in enterprise
cloud services during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Particulars of the Group's revenue and segment information for the
year are set out in notes 5 and 6 to the financial statements
respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The description of principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may
be facing is provided in the Risk Management and Internal Control
section on pages 64 to 70 of this annual report, and a fair review of the
Group's business during the year, and the probable future business
development of each segment of the Company are provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 6 to 16 of this
annual report. Also, the financial risk management objectives and
policies of the Group can be found in note 45 to the financial
statements. There is no important events affecting the Group occurred
since the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2020. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Five-Year Financial Summary
section on page 252 of this annual report. In addition, discussions on
the Group's environmental policies, relationships with its consumers
and employees and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group are all contained in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 71 to 112 of
this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 121.

The directors of the Company have resolved not to recommend the
declaration of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil).

On 25 October 2019, the Company declared a special dividend of 0.55
HK cents per share, amounting to approximately HK$109,530,000 in
aggregate for shares in issue to the shareholders listed on the register
of members of the Company as at 3 December 2019. Such dividend
was not payable to the holders of Restricted Shares under the terms
of Restricted Share Award Scheme.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 252.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates as at
31 December 2020 are set out in notes 16 and 17 to the financial
statements respectively.

BANK BORROWINGS

The Group's bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020 are set out in
note 27 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, details of the movements in share capital of the
Company are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
RESERVES

During the year, details of the movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements and on page 128, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of Company’s reserves available
for distribution was approximately HK$435.6 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's sales to the five largest customers and purchases from
the five largest suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2020
accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total revenue and
purchases respectively.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any donations.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 40 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2020, none of the directors of the Company has an
interest in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of retirement benefit plans in respect of the year are set out in
note 39 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Ms. Liu Rong (Chairlady)

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi

Mr. Chen Ming Fei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Bing Kwan*

Mr. Cheng Chih-Hung*

Mr. Fung Wing Lap*

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning*

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang*

# Non-executive directors
* Independent non-executive directors

A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s subsidiaries can
be found in the Company's website at www.sino-i.com under
"Investor Relations/Corporate Governance”.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
existing independent non-executive directors confirming his
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the
Company considers that such directors are independent to the
Company.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Articles 117 and 118 of the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”), Ms. Liu Rong, Mr. Chen Ming Fei and Mr.
Lam Bing Kwan shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM"). All of the above retiring directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of directors and senior management of the
Company as at the date of this report were as follows:

Biographical Details of Directors
Executive Directors

Ms. Liu Rong, aged 49, graduated from the Law School of Anhui
University with a Bachelor degree in Laws, and got a Master of Laws
conferred by the Law Institute of Chinese Academy of Social Science,
and is also a qualified lawyer in the PRC. In addition, Ms. Liu graduated
from the International MBA School of National School of Development
of Peking University in 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Liu worked
in law firms.

Ms. Liu joined the Group in April 2002 and has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company since March 2009. Ms. Liu has
been appointed as the chairlady of the Board and the chairlady of
nomination committee of the Company since January 2018. Ms. Liu is
also a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Liu has been the chief executive officer, executive director and
nomination committee member of Nan Hai, the listed holding company
of the Company, Ms. Liu is also a director and/or general manager of a
number of subsidiaries of Nan Hai.

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi, aged 62, holding a degree of Doctor of Philosophy
conferred by Peking University, was a director of the Company from
October 1991 to October 1994, and re-joined the Board in January
1997. Mr. Yu is currently the executive director and nomination
committee member of the Company. He served as the chairman of
the Board and the chairman of nomination committee of the Company
from January 1997 to January 2018 and from March 2012 to January
2018, respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Yu is also the chairman of the board of directors, controlling
shareholder, and the chairman of nomination committee of Nan Hai
and a director of a number of subsidiaries of Nan Hai.

Mr. Chen Ming Fei, aged 44, has engaged in sales for a number of
years, and possesses with acute insight in IT business, and has
extensive and professional experiences in product creation, business
strategy planning and business management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chen worked in Vorwerk of Co. KG, a German company.

In 2000, Mr. Chen joined CE Dongli and was appointed as a national
commercial director, sales deputy general manager, executive deputy
general manager and business general manager. In January 2012, Mr.
Chen was promoted to a general manager. Mr. Chen is also the
general manager of Xinnet. In December 2016, Mr. Chen has been
appointed as the executive director and the general manager of the
Company. In January 2018, Mr. Chen has been appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Chen is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and
Nan Hai.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan, aged 71, graduated from the University of
Oregon in the United States of America with a Bachelor degree in
Business Administration in 1974. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lam
had accumulated extensive experience in industries such as banking,
property development and investment business.

Mr. Lam joined the Board in October 1991, and was re-designated as a
non-executive director in April 2002. Mr. Lam is also a non-executive
director of Nan Hai, and an independent non-executive director of Lai
Sun Development Company Limited, Lai Sun Garment (International)
Limited and Lai Fung Holdings Limited. The securities of the above-
mentioned companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)
Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Cheng Chih-Hung, aged 65, holds a Bachelor's degree in Mass
Communications from the Chinese Culture University. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Cheng held senior position in United Task Marketing Ltd. and
United Communication Inc., and has extensive experience in management
of international information and media business, and in management of
marketing and media. Mr. Cheng was a general manager of 1t 7 =[]
= % Bh{= B A IR A 7] (Beijing Shihua International Financial Information
Company Limited), a former subsidiary of the Company, between 2004
and 2007 and was appointed as a deputy chairman of the former
subsidiary in 2007, and subsequently was appointed as a director of Nan
Hai Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nan Hai,
responsible for marketing and sales. Mr. Cheng is also a director and/or
general manager of a number of subsidiaries of Nan Hai.

Mr. Cheng joined the Board in May 2019 as a non-executive director.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fung Wing Lap, aged 60, graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1992. Mr. Fung is a fellow member of
Association of International Accountants, an associate member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a certified public
accountant (practising). Mr. Fung is an executive director of FCC and
Partners CPA Limited.

Mr. Fung joined the Board in September 2004 and has been appointed
as a member of audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. In March 2012, Mr. Fung has been appointed as a member
of nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Fung is also appointed
as the chairman of audit committee of the Company in September
2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning, aged 73, graduated from Yunnan Finance and
Management College, majoring in enterprise management.

Mr. Xiao joined the Board in April 2016, and has been the chairman of
the remuneration committee, the member of the audit committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Xiao is also the
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee, the member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of Nan Hai. Mr. Xiao is also a director of LexinFintech
Holdings Ltd. (listed on the NASDAQ stock exchange, stock code: LX).

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang, aged 71, holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Arts from
The University of Hong Kong and a Master’'s Degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Ho
served in different managerial positions in banking industry during the
period from about 1973 to 1988. During the period from about 1989
t01991, Mr. Ho was in Canada running his own business. In about
1992, Mr. Ho joined the Group and worked as a general manager of
the then property division of the Group, who left the Group in July
2009. He has been the chief operating officer of a private company,
which is engaged in coal mining and iron sand mining businesses in
Indonesia and the Philippines, since he left the Group in 2009.

Mr. Ho joined the Board in May 2019 and served as member of audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Ho is also the independent non-executive director,
member of audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of Nan Hai.

Biographical Details of Senior Management

Mr. Chen Ming Fei (aged 44)

General Manager
R8BI BR A A

(CE Dongli Technology Company Limited)

General Manager
R EESE R KM AR AR

(Beijing Xinnet Cyber Information Company Limited)

Chief Executive Officer and General Manager
Sino-i Technology Limited

Biographical details of Mr. Chen are set out in the “Biographical Details
of Directors” on page 21.

EEEHRE

EENEREBABBERE (1)

EEEEFR
BYFHTESE(H)

HEERE 735 EXREEKEEEEHE
Bt FEEXRERE -

BOLER206F4AMAEZEES  WHEA
AAREHEESETRAEXEZEGNIREELE
BEKE - LR AREZE Y IERITE
£ FHEETXIRRERZEERIEREE
GHE o HELATETERIILEEBRER AT
(WHTER RS EMAT  BERFEAELX)
LEENL

EREEE 7 WAEAERBEEREXSR
TEMREERXARBTEHERBELTEM - (7
S EHIR 1973 2= 1988 F Hif B SR1T (T
TRIEIZEEAL - 49521989 FF & 1991 FF Hif -
MEERMERNBITLEER - MALEHR
1992 F AL @ - & 05 B E AR & Bl i Z= 3
By WHR2009F 7 ABERAEE - AR
2009 FBEFAAEBMUAR—HET—MLAA
Al E@BRE  ZARDRREERHEMIE
RENREREREDREER -

I ER2019F5 ANAEZESTS  WHEIAX
NABEREES  FTHEESRIEREEEN
B fMALERBEAREZBYIIENITES &
“EBE FMEESRIEREEEKE -

EREEAEBEFE

BRI R 564 (44 5%)
ABAETE
R ARG BR AR

PT
1 R BT (5 B BT AR AT

TTIR AR EL FRARAEIE
TEBBESEARAR

RAELCBEEFBHEREN A CEETREN

I o

“ESEEER ) FEBBERESEARAT

23 )



www.sino-i.com

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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The Company P/ NN
Long position in shares in issue REZEITRD B
Approximate
Capacity/Nature Number of percentage
Name of director of interest shares held holding Notes
EEHA B0 RmtE FrisRm &R Aot M aE
Yu Pun Hoi (“Mr. Yu") Corporate interest 12,838,585,316 (L) 59.11% 1
T ([ FirE)) NGIE: £y
Chen Ming Fei Family interest 6,120,000 (L) 0.03%
PR S 7 ENj g
Corporate interest 199,100,000 (L) 0.91% 2
NAEREE
Other 1,566,000,000 (L) 7.21% 3
Eh
Fung Wing Lap Personal interest 10,000 (L) 0.00005%
LR [N
Notes: et -
1. Mr. Yu by means of his corporate interest controls the exercise of more than 1. THRAFBERARERHERNARAZER AR

one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Nan Hai, the holding
company of the Company. These 12,838,585,316 shares were collectively
held by Goalrise Investments Limited, View Power Investments Limited and
Wise Advance Investments Limited, all of which are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Nan Hai. As such, Mr. Yu was taken to be interested in these
shares for the purposes of Part XV of the SFO.

2. These 199,100,000 shares were held by Top Standard Consultants Limited, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Chen Ming Fei.

3. These 1,566,000,000 shares may be transferred to Mr. Chen Ming Fei as
selected participant (which will be subject to the vesting conditions) pursuant
to the restricted share award scheme adopted by the Company on 9 October
2018.

4. (L) denotes long position.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Associated Corporations

As disclosed above, Mr. Yu is entitled to control the exercise of more
than one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Nan Hai. As
such, Mr. Yu is taken to be interested in the shares of the associated
corporations of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO. Nan Hai is a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, and is an associated corporation of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO. As at 31 December 2020, the interests
of the directors of the Company in shares and underlying shares of
Nan Hai were as follows:
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bt P EE ?%i?ﬁﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬁ}iZHxﬁj(A
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Nan Hai BE
Long and short positions in shares in issue REBTRD 7R RAE
Approximate
Capacity/Nature Number of percentage
Name of director of interest shares held holding Notes
EEnE B RntE RGO EE B B &
Mr. Yu Corporate interest 40,673,177,261 (L) 59.25%
FRE N 21,735,849,057 (S) 31.66%
Chen Ming Fei Family interest 2,800,000 (L) 0.004%
PR OB 7R ENL 3o
Fung Wing Lap Personal interest 15,756 (L) 0.00002%
bt v (BN
Cheng Chih-Hung Personal interest 6,800,000 (L) 0.01%
BER (EPN: 35
Notes: Hitat -

1. These 40,673,177,261 shares were collectively held by Rosewood Assets
Ltd., Pippen Limited, Staverley Assets Limited, First Best Assets Limited and
Unicorn Assets Group Limited, companies indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Yu
through Dadi Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu.

2. These 21,735,849,057 shares were charged by Pippen Limited, Rosewood
Assets Ltd. and First Best Assets Limited, such companies are indirectly
wholly owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi Holdings Limited, a company wholly
owned by Mr. Yu.

3. (L) denotes long position and (S) denotes short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

1. %% 40,673,177,261 AR 1A 9 Bl F e £ BB E
2EEBEMARDABERARA G0
Rosewood Assets Ltd. * Pippen Limited »
Staverley Assets Limited - First Best Assets
Limited & Unicorn Assets Group Limited [ # £
CES¥EI

2. %%21,735,849,057 RIRIH AR TR EBBELE
BHANRRARMZERERAFAHEEZEHREGHN

Pippen Limited, Rosewood Assets Ltd. [ First
Best Assets Limited 3 o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 28 May 2012 (the “Adoption Day”), the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, share options
may be granted to directors, employees of the Group and those who
have contributed or will contribute to the Group at any time within ten
years after its adoption at the discretion of the Board.

Since the adoption of the Scheme and during the year ended 31
December 2020, no share options have been granted under the
Scheme by the Company. No share options were granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed by the Company under the Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2020 and there were no outstanding share
options under the Scheme as at 31 December 2020 and up to the date
of this report. A summary of the Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards
to participants for their contribution or would-be contribution to
the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable
to the Group and any entity in which any member of the Group
holds any equity interests (the “Invested Entity”).

(2) Participants

The participants include:

a. any employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including any executive director but not any non-executive
director) of the Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested
Entity;

b. any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

c. any supplier of goods or services to any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity;

d. any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Participants (Continued)

e. any person or entity that provides research, development
or technological support or other services to the Group or
any Invested Entity;

f. any shareholder or any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

g. any ex-employee who has contributed or may contribute to
the development and growth of the Group and any Invested
Entity.

Maximum Number of Shares

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the relevant class of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Scheme and
the limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other schemes must not
exceed 30% of the relevant class of shares of the Company in
issue from time to time. No share options may be granted under
the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company if this will
result in such limit exceeded. The number of shares available for
issue in respect thereof is 1,991,450,487 shares representing
approximately 10% and 9.17% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue on Adoption Day and date of this annual
report respectively.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted to each participant under
the Scheme and any other schemes (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1 per cent of the relevant class of shares of the Company
in issue. Any further grant of share options above this limit shall
be subject to certain requirements as stipulated in the rules of
the Scheme and to the relevant rules under the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

the Period within Which the Shares Must be Taken
Up under a Share Option

The period within which the shares must be taken up a share
option shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
at the time of grant, but such period must not exceed 10 years
from the date of grant of the relevant share option.

Minimum Period for Exercising a Share Option

The Board may at its discretion determine the minimum period
for which a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

Acceptance and Payment on Acceptance

The share option shall be deemed to have been accepted when
the duplicate letter duly signed by the grantee, together with a
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company.
To the extent that the offer is not accepted within 28 days in the
manner aforesaid, it will be deemed to have been irrevocable
declined and lapsed automatically.

Basis of Determining the Exercise Price

The exercise price for shares under the Scheme shall be a price
determined by the directors of the Company, but it must be at
least the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; and (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant.

Remaining Life of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on 29 May 2012 up to 28 May 2022.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A.

Restricted Share Award Scheme

On 9 October 2018, to recognise the contributions made by the
Group's employees, the Company adopted a restricted share
award scheme (“Restricted Share Award Scheme”), and the
Restricted Share Award Scheme supersedes in its entirety the
share award scheme (“Share Award Scheme"”) adopted by the
Company on 8 February 2018 (Details of Share Award Scheme
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8 February
2018. No share award was granted by the Company under the
Share Award Scheme). The Restricted Share Award Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of ten (10) years
commencing on the adoption date. The Restricted Share Award
Scheme does not constitute a share option scheme pursuant to
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is a discretionary scheme of
the Company. The details of Restricted Share Award Scheme
(including details of selected participants) are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 9 October 2018 and circular
dated 29 November 2018.

Pursuant to the Restricted Share Award Scheme, the Board shall
select eligible participants for participation in the Restricted Share
Award Scheme and grant not more than a total of 2,462 million
restricted shares to selected participants. The restricted shares
to be granted may comprise of (i) new shares to be issued by the
Company to the selected participants; or (ii) existing shares
purchased by the custodian on the market, the costs of which
will be borne by the Company, and such restricted shares will be
held by the custodian for the benefit of the selected participants
before vesting. The restricted shares and the related distribution
shall be transferred to the selected participants when the
relevant vesting conditions have been satisfied.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has granted a total of
1,806 million restricted shares to selected participants under the
Restricted Share Award Scheme by way of issue and allotment
of new Shares, and such grant was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the general meeting on 19
December 2018. These restricted shares are held by the
custodian on behalf of the selected participants while no
restricted shares were granted by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2020, no
restricted shares were vested under the Restricted Share Award
Scheme.

Other Employee Benefits

In December 2017, CE Dongli, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, implemented a scheme to incentivise
the senior management of CE Dongli. This scheme does not
constitute a share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules and is a discretionary scheme of CE Dongli. For
further details, please refer to note 28 to the financial statements
of the Company.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than the statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
directors’ and senior management’s liabilities in respect of legal
actions against its directors and senior management arising from
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force for
the benefit of the directors as required by section 470 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)
(the “Companies Ordinance”) when the Report of the Directors
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with section
391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which any controlling shareholder had a material interest
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance has
been entered into among the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the controlling shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2020 and no contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries has been entered into
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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CHANGE IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

There was no change in the Board since the date of the Company’s
2020 interim report and up to the date of this report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

There has been no change in the information of the directors since the
date of the Company’s 2020 interim report up to the date of this
report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company remunerates its employees based on their qualifications,
experience and performance. In addition to basic salary payments,
other benefits include housing, contributions to mandatory provident
fund, group medical insurance, group personal accident insurance and
examination leave and etc. Employees are eligible to be granted share
options or restricted shares (as the case may be) under the Company's
share option scheme or restricted share award scheme at the
discretion of the Board. In general, salary review is conducted annually.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiries have been made to all the
directors of the Company and the directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 26(a), 26(b) and 43 to the financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements, or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the financial year or at
the end of the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2020, those persons (other than directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Name of person

FTERRZESZRKA

3

7R2020F 12 A31 8  BRBEARRIRRBES K
S RDIZE 336 617 B 2 B ATaceR - AT
AL (RRREEREEITRABRINAAR
A2 FAERER O P B ERIOAER

Approximate
percentage of

holding an interest Number of issued share
in shares which has shares in issue capital of the
been disclosed to the BRERBEESRBE KA subject to Company
Company under EXVHE2R3FHEA  Nature long position 1HEAT
Divisions 2 and 3 of ERAREERDERZ of interest HESRZ CRITREAZ Notes
Part XV of the SFO AT HB BERNE ERITROEE BAEDE ik
Nan Hai M8 Corporate interest 12,838,685,316 (L) 59.11% 1
NI £
Vistra Trust Vistra Trust Custodian (other than 1,806,000,000 (L) 8.31% 2
(Hong Kong) Limited (Hong Kong) Limited an exempt custodian
interest)
AEABRETEA
kBRI
SINO-I RSAS HOLDING SINO-I RSAS HOLDING Other 1,806,000,000 (L) 8.31% 2
LIMITED LIMITED Hith
Notes: Hfat -
1. Those 12,838,585,316 shares were collectively held by Goalrise Investments 1. %% 12,838,585,316 8 i% (2 H Bl A fE /& 2 2 & T

Limited, View Power Investments Limited and Wise Advance Investments
Limited, all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Nan Hai.

2. Vistra Trust (Hong Kong) Limited (“Vistra”) acts as the custodian for the
Restricted Share Award Scheme adopted by the Company on 9 October 2018
and SINO-I RSAS HOLDING LIMITED is the nominee designated by Vistra to
hold the awarded shares to be transferred to selected participants under the
Restricted Share Award Scheme before vesting.

3. (L) denotes long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person (other
than directors and chief executive of the Company) had notified to the
Company any interests or short positions in shares or underlying
shares of the Company which was required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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MFEE A v M SINO-I RSAS HOLDING LIMITED
7% Vistra 157 B ARIRRR 6l 1 AR 19 22 @St SR R B
RIFS A KR TIEE L MmE 2 RN ZRBA ©

3. (L ¥EEFRA -

B T FEESN - 722020912 A31H » i
BEAL(RRARESREBITHABRIN Mg
KRR ERARB 2RO KAB@RGPHES
AR A D AR R R H R H E 1401 55 336 14
GEZERM Rk E -



wWww.sino-i.com

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group are set out in note 43
to the financial statements.

Save for the transactions mentioned in the below section headed
“Connected Transactions” and the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transaction” which are subject to the disclosure and annual
review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are
subject to all connected transaction requirements when any of the
relevant agreement is renewed or its terms are varied pursuant to Rule
14A.60 of the Listing Rules, certain transactions mentioned under the
note also constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are
exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company had complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
relation to these connected translations.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@) On 29 May 2009, the Company as lender and Nan Hai, the
immediate holding company and connected person of the
Company, as borrower entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) in relation to the loan in the principal amount of
approximately HK$1,645.5 million advanced by the Company to
Nan Hai (the “Loan"”). The Loan was advanced for the settlement
of the consideration payable to the Company pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreement entered into between the Company
and Nan Hai on 13 November 2007, in relation to the sale of 51%
issued share capital of Listar Properties Limited by the Company
to Nan Hai. The Loan Agreement was later supplemented by the
first supplemental agreement, the second supplemental
agreement, the third supplemental agreement, the fourth
supplemental agreement , the fifth supplemental agreement, the
sixth supplemental agreement and the seventh supplemental
agreement dated 20 May 2011, 31 October 2012 , 9 May 2013,
30 April 2015 ,2 May 2017, 21 March 2019 and 31 May 2019
respectively, which among other things extended the repayment
date for the outstanding principal and varied certain terms and
provisions of the Loan Agreement. On 21 March 2019, the
Company as lender entered into a supplemental agreement with
Nan Hai as borrower in relation to the extension of the repayment
date for the outstanding principal for two years from 30 June
2019 to 29 June 2021.

EEEHRE

BBE RS

REEBZBBHARSFBEEN B WKM T
43

BT RERS] — ik [FEBERS] —
ERFTIt 32 5 By I 58 N A S 3 B IR E S A 48
1R E ETRAE 14A 6016 B B H K
KTFUAERMBETIBEBEIHHEN -
HRTME TR S IVER ETRAE 14AZFTR
THEERFHIFEMRERS  HEHREET L
TRBE1MAZEB NRR - FEEH 25
BB RERIEZRE o ARFIEET L
THRAFEBVAZRE TEEZSHERZIZHEE
HRIE °

BEXS
(a)  M200945H29H  KARI(IEAEFA)
HANREEBEZRARREEA LIRS
(EBEBRAN)ETLEZ W #( B H
#D NARBBEARRABEERNFAS
#1645 BB T2 ERIER]) - B
ROBNESERERARAGHEEER
2007F 11 A1BHMEI L EBE @A
A &l [ B F 8 & Listar Properties
Limited B 8 1T BR A 2 51% M & T AR A
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2011458208 20121048318 -
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201745 828 ~ 201943 A 21 H }.2019
FoRANBCENHRBE  FME
T B RhE FUOERE
Wi FRhhOE T BN DB
ENECDET BRI - B (A
BIE) BEREERS 2 ERBHURE
FIE B E TR RAE - A 20194F
3A218 XA (ERAERA) EEE
(FERBEFAN) I L@aths  NAEH
BAREEAS ZERIHHERMF -
20196 A30B L E2021F6 8291 -

“ESEEER ) FEBBERESEARAT



www.sino-i.com

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding principal and the
accrued interests are approximately HK$1,005,858,000 and
HK$87,303,000 respectively. The Loan is subject to an interest
rate of 8.0% per annum accrued daily during the extension
period based on a 365-day year and shall be paid in arrears when
the outstanding principal shall be repaid or prepaid. The default
interest rate is 10.0% per annum on the default amount accrued
daily based on a 365-day year.

On 21 June 2018, the Company as lender and Digital HUIGU
Real Estate Management Co.,Ltd. (“Digital Huigu”), the
subsidiary of Nan Hai and a connected person of the Company,
as borrower, entered into a loan agreement (the “Digital Huigu
Loan Agreement”) in relation to the loan in the principal amount
of approximately HK$342,506,000 owed and payable to the
Company and its subsidiaries by the Digital Huigu. Such amount
owed became a term loan repayable within three years from the
date of the Digital Huigu Loan Agreement (the "Digital Huigu
Loan"”).The Digital Huigu Loan Agreement was later
supplemented by the supplemental Digital Huigu loan agreement
dated 31 May 2019, which varied the security under the Digital
Huigu Loan Agreement.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding principal and the
accrued interests are approximately HK$342,506,000 and
HK$69,290,000 respectively. The Digital Huigu Loan is subject to
an interest rate of 8% per annum accrued daily based on a 365-
day year and shall be paid in arrears when the outstanding
principal (or the relevant part thereof) shall be repaid or prepaid.
The default interest rate is 10% per annum on the default
amount accrued daily based on a 365-day year.

The information in paragraphs (a) and (b) above is also disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules.

On 22 December 2020, the Company and Nan Hai entered into
an agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to purchase (or procure the purchase) and Nan Hai has
conditionally agreed to sell (or procure the sale) to the Company
the entire issued capital of Oristar (the “Target Company”), for
the consideration of RMB488 million, which is to be satisfied in
cash and up to HK$200 million of the consideration will be set-off
against the Loan, at the discretion of the Company. The entire
amount owed by the Target Company and its subsidiary (“Target
Group”) to Nan Hai and its subsidiaries (“Nan Hai Group”)
(excluding the Target Group and the Group) as at completion will
be applied to set off against the Loan. As at 30 November 2020,
the amount owed by the Target Group to the Nan Hai Group
(excluding the Target Group and the Group) is approximately
HK$193 million. The Company and Nan Hai have agreed that the
above mentioned amount will not exceed approximately HK$229
million up to the date of completion. The above-mentioned
transaction is, as at the date of this annual report, still subject to,
amongst other things, the independent shareholders’ approval of
the Company.

EEEHRE
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B2020F 12831 H REEAXAENZR
=T % B 9 Bl 49 A342,506,0007 7T &
69,290,000 8 7T - HIEEAERIEFF
RQEE - LA —F365 HIEAEIRHR
i WARERBREMRERRS (E
FEEE D) B AR S o ME R SRERIRE
HFEFKI10EBEE - LL—F 365 HEHE
EIRHRE -

EXEE () K (b) RERIMR IR ETAR A
13.20 & T LA 5E ©

R20206F12 A22H © AR EEEE]
i B ARBEKEREREE
(EFERBE)  MEAEEETFRERAR
AREE(FRELE) RERE(B®Z
NENEHEBEITRA - REARK4.88
BIUBARESEN  M&EZ2.00EET
ZREBHEAQDABBEEREER - BZ
REINENBAR(BEEZEER]) KRTK
B REERENBAR ((FEEER])
(TREEREERAER) N2 IHIE
1 FREIKIEE R - 122020911 A30H -
BEZEEARmEEE (TEEEZER
MAEE)NMFIELAE1.93EETT - AR
RIHEEEERE EExAKAH - i
SR THBIBA 220188 TT - RARER
HE EXRSMAEF(EPSIE) AR
AR ALE - FAEE o

“ESEEER ) FEBBERESEARAT

35 )



www.sino-i.com

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Property Leasing and Management Framework
Agreement

On 21 June 2018, the Company entered into a property leasing
and management framework agreement with Nan Hai, pursuant
to which, Nan Hai Group (excluding the Group) agreed to lease
certain properties and provide property management services to
the Group from 21 June 2018 to 31 December 2020. As Nan Hai
is the immediate holding company of the Company, Nan Hai is a
connected person of the Company.

The following table sets out the proposed annual caps of the
transaction amount in respect of the lease and management of
properties provided to the Group by Nan Hai Group under the
property leasing and management framework agreement:

For the year ending
31 December

BZ12A31MHILEE

(a)

MERER EEERG R

R2018F6 A21H » NA R EF/E] 7
MEMERETEERGS B =8
EE(TBREALER)RAER2018F6 A
218E2020F 12 A31 BRAAEE A
AETYERRERHMETIERE - BRE
EAEARANB 2 BEEERAR  WESE
KRB ZBEANL -

TR EHEREESEERENEHEER
EEERBZAARELEREEDE
ZRHEHRZEFFE LR -

For the

period from

21 June 2018 to
31 December 2018
201856 A21HZE
201812 H31H

(HK$’000) - HARE

(F#x) (HK$'000)

2020 2019 (F#Ex)

Total rental and e nEEEER 11,500 10,500 5,000

management fees

As the relevant parties mentioned in paragraph (a) above intend
to carry out transactions of a similar nature from time to time
after 31 December 2020, the Company entered into the property
leasing and management framework agreement with Nan Hai,
with a term of 1 January 2021 until 31 December 2023.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BFEBREXRS (&)
(Continued)
(b) Information Service Framework Agreement (b) EERIFIEZRGZE

(i)  Nan Hai Information Service Framework Agreement (i) MEEEERKERGS

A2019F12 A31H » AARIER
BRI B EBRIGERGZ &
It ARR R/ SEHBARRE

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into the Nan
Hai information service framework agreement with Nan
Hai, pursuant to which, the Company and/or its subsidiaries

agreed to provide certain information products and services 7202051 A1 HZE 2022412 A 31
to Nan Hai Group (excluding the Group) from 1 January AR SER (TEEAER)RE
2020 to 31 December 2022, subject to the entering into of ETEEREMMERT  HEEFRE

individual information service agreements pursuant to the FEE B RIBIERIGZEEISLERZ
Nan Hai information service framework agreement. As Nan E R - BREEALRRRZ
Hai is the immediate holding company of the Company, BEEEZERAR  HmEBARARZ

Nan Hai is a connected person of the Company. BEAL -

The following table sets out the proposed annual caps of TREHEEERAT R, SENE
the transaction amount in respect of the information NEMBIEF 85 B RIS IESR Fha1a
products and services provided to Nan Hai Group (excluding EEER(TReEARER)IZHREZE
the Group) by the Company and/or its subsidiaries under ERRREIX BBy BSERE
the Nan Hai information service framework agreement: FEB -

For the year ending 31 December
BEZ12ANBLEE
2020 2021 2022
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)

(F#&x) (F#7T) (F#T)

Total consideration BRE 11,000 13,000 15,500

“ESEEER ) FEBBERESEARAT
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
(b) Information Service Framework Agreement (Continued)

(ii) GD Cinema Circuit Information Service Framework
Agreement

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into the GD
Cinema Circuit information service framework agreement
with & 5 Kb % 52 bt 42 IX 19 B BR A &1 (GD Cinema Circuit
Company Limited*) (“GD Cinema Circuit”), pursuant to
which, the Company and/or its subsidiaries agreed to
provide certain information products and service to GD
Cinema Circuit, its shareholders, and its subsidiaries (“GD
Cinema Circuit Group"”) for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022,
subject to the entering into of individual information service
agreements pursuant to the GD Cinema Circuit information
service framework agreement. As at the date of the GD
Cinema Circuit information service framework agreement,
Ms. Liu Rong, a director of both the Company and Nan Hai,
owns 80% of AHsEF R XL EHE(LR) BR A (Dadi
Century Culture Media (Beijing) Company Limited*, “Dadi
Century Beijing”), which directly owns 82.49% equity
interest of GD Cinema Circuit, and has an effective control
of 12.95% equity interest of GD Cinema Circuit through it
RAMEFIZES B E (Beijing Dadi Legend Investment
Partnership*), which is an associate of Ms. Liu Rong. In
addition, Mr. Yu Cheung Hoi, an associate of Mr. Yu Pun
Hoi (a director of the Company and Nan Hai), owns 20% of
Dadi Century Beijing. Given the foregoing, GD Cinema
Circuit is a connected person of the Company.

The following table sets out the proposed annual caps of
the transaction amount in respect of the information
products and services provided to GD Cinema Circuit Group
by the Company and/or its subsidiaries under the GD
Cinema Circuit information service framework agreement:

*  For identification purpose only
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
(b) Information Service Framework Agreement (Continued)

(ii) GD Cinema Circuit Information Service Framework
Agreement (Continued)

EEEHRE

BFEBRERS (&)
(b) EEREEEGE &)

(ii) KibpE@RESRBERGE ()

For the year ending 31 December

BZ12A31BLZ2EE

(HK$'000)
(F#®x)
2020 2021 2022
Total Consideration wR(E 650 950 1,400

All the independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the above connected transactions and confirmed those
continuing connected transactions were entered into:

—

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

on normal commercial terms or better; and

according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.

SRS

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged its auditors to report on the continuing connected
transactions as mentioned above, and the auditor has issued to the
Board a letter confirming that nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that any such continuing connected
transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

(3)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(4)  exceed the proposed annual caps as determined by the
Company.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information and to the best knowledge
of the directors, the Company has maintained during the year and up
to the date of this report sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 50 to 70.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
comprises all the independent non-executive directors of the
Company, namely Mr. Fung Wing Lap, Mr. Xiao Sui Ning and Mr. Ho
Yeung Nang. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the auditor of
the Company and management, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, and
discussed the auditing, financial control, internal control and risk
management systems.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 were
audited by BDO Limited (“BDO"). A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the
Company.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS

Reference is made to the joint announcements of the Company and
Nan Hai, dated 15 November 2013, 6 December 2013 and 31 July
2015 (collectively, the “Announcements”) in relation to a discloseable
transaction under which Xinnet Technology Information Company
Limited ("XWHT"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, by means of the Structured Agreements, shall be entitled to
control over Xinnet's management, businesses and operations in
substance in addition to recognize and receive all economic benefits of
the business of Xinnet. All capitalized terms used hereinbelow shall
have the same meanings as those defined in the Announcements
unless otherwise stated in this annual report.

The Board hereby provides updated information in relation to the
business operations of Xinnet through the Structured Agreements and
the implications thereof as follows:

(a) Particulars and principal activities of Xinnet:

Xinnet is a limited liability company established in the PRC and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ZQHT. Mr. Jiang is a PRC citizen, and
an ultimate beneficial owner of 100% equity interest of ZQHT.
Xinnet's main businesses are provision of virtual server hosting
and maintenance services, provision of email services and
registration of domain names in the PRC, which are all regarded
as a kind of internet content services. Xinnet has obtained a valid
licence for providing internet content services, issued by 1t R
BIEEE B (Beijing Communications Administration).
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Summary of main terms of the Structured
Agreement:

(1)

Loan Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

(i)

(iif)

Parties: X\WHT as lender; and Mr. Jiang as borrower

Loan amount: RMB1,500,000

The loan is interest free, and has no maturity date for
repayment. Mr. Jiang shall have no right to effect any
early repayment unless having the written consent
from XWHT.

Equity Pledge Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

(ii)

(iif)

Parties: XWHT as pledgee; ZQHT as pledgor; and
Xinnet

Assets pledged: 80% equity interest of Xinnet, free
from encumbrance, as first fixed charge to XWHT as
security.

ZQHT shall not dispose of the pledged 80% equity
interest to any other party without obtaining the
written approval of XWHT.

Management and Technology Services Agreement (dated
15 November 2013):

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Parties: XWHT; and Xinnet

XWHT shall provide certain exclusive management
and technology services to Xinnet.

The Management and Technology Services
Agreement is solely terminable by XWHT but not
Xinnet. In return for the provision of the exclusive
services, XWHT shall be entitled to receive a service
fee which is equivalent to the net profit of Xinnet as
per its yearly audited financial statements.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Summary of main terms of the Structured
Agreement: (Continued)

(4)  Option Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

(i)

Parties: XWHT as grantee; ZQHT as grantor; and
Xinnet

ZQHT shall grant an exclusive option to XWHT at an
option price of RMB1.00 to acquire up to 100% equity
interest in the registered capital of Xinnet (no limit on
the number of times the option may be exercised by
XWHT). The total subscription price for 100% equity
interest of Xinnet shall be equivalent to the total loan
amount (being RMB1,500,000) under the Loan
Agreement, and the subscription price for each option
exercised shall be paid by direct set off on a dollar-for-
dollar basis against the outstanding loan amount
under the Loan Agreement.

(5)  Power of Attorney (dated 15 November 2013):

(i)

(ii)

Parties: ZQHT; and XWHT

It is an irrevocable power of attorney under which
XWHT shall be the sole attorney of ZQHT. XWHT
shall have full power, without having to obtain ZQHT's
any further consent or approval, to exercise such
rights in Xinnet as (a) all shareholder’s rights and
voting rights in accordance with the corporate
memorandum of Xinnet; and (b) rights of nomination
and appointment of legal representative, chairman of
the board, directors, general manager and other
senior management personnel of Xinnet.

The Loan Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement, the
Management and Technology Services Agreement, the
Option Agreement and the Power of Attorney shall be
executed simultaneously with each other.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

the significance of business activities of Xinnet to
the Group:

By means of the Structured Agreements, the Group may engage
in the business of virtual server hosting and maintenance in the
PRC and such business may widen the spectrum of services of
the Group. The widened services are expected to lead the Group
to having not only a stronger foothold against its competitors in
the PRC but also an achievement of efficiency and cost-
effectiveness in provision of virtual server hosting and
maintenance services to the customers of the Group.

the financial impact of the Structured Agreements
on the Group:

XWHT is the parent company of Xinnet as X\WHT has the right to
control Xinnet by virtual of the Structured Agreements. As a
result, the financial position and operating results of Xinnet and
its subsidiary shall be consolidated in the XWHT's financial
statements from the date on which XWHT gained control in
Xinnet in accordance with the HKFRS.

During the year, Xinnet's revenue was approximately
HK$143,770,000 (2019: approximately HK$113,604,000); profit
before income tax was approximately HK$16,472,000 (2019: loss
before income tax approximately HK$31,924,000); and total
assets were approximately HK$189,025,000 (2019:
approximately HK$186,209,000).

The profit for the year was mainly due to the increase in gross
profit from domain names.

the extent to which the Structured Agreements
relate to requirement of applicable laws, rules and
regulations other than the foreign ownership
restriction:

In view of the PRC legal opinion, (i) the Structured Agreements
have complied with the laws, rules and regulations in the PRC,
and complied with the respective articles of association of
XWHT, ZQHT and Xinnet; (ii) there is no law, rule or regulation
specifically disallows foreign investors from using any structured
agreement to gain control of or operate the business of Xinnet;
and (iii) the Structured Agreements would not be deemed as
concealing illegal intentions with a lawful form and void under
the PRC contract law.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

()

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and
the risks associated therewith including actions
taken to mitigate such risks:

Xinnet's main businesses are classified as value-added
telecommunication services which is a kind of business restricted
to foreign investors in the PRC. By virtue of S MEIRE BIE D EE
2 #8 T (Provisions on the Administration of Foreign Investment
Telecommunication Enterprises), foreign investors are not
allowed to hold more than 50% in the equity interest of a PRC
enterprise providing value-added telecommunication services.

The main businesses of Xinnet are considered as value-added
businesses which widen the spectrum of services of the Group
for its customers and in turn enhance the Group's
competitiveness in the PRC market. As the Group faces the
aforesaid restriction in equity interest of a PRC company, the
Structured Agreements shall be regarded as a strategic
arrangement by which the Group may fully and effectively control
Xinnet, which in turn enables the Group to achieve the aforesaid
purposes. In addition, the Structured Agreements offer flexibility
to the Group in control of Xinnet — (a) control of its management,
businesses and operations; and (b) owning of its 100% equity
interest by exercising the call option under the Option Agreement
when the restriction in having more than 50% equity interest of a
PRC enterprise by foreign investors is removed or repealed.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

()

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and
the risks associated therewith including actions
taken to mitigate such risks: (Continued)

In addition to the foreign ownership restriction under the
prevailing applicable laws and regulations, the Structured
Agreements do not violate any PRC laws, rules and regulations,
and the execution of the Structured Agreements by the parties
thereto does not violate any article in the articles of association of
the contracting parties; and such prevailing provision and notice
issued by the PRC authorities as () {/MEREBETEEIRET)
(Provisions on the Administration of Foreign Investment
Telecommunication Enterprises) (amended in 2008) and {5 & 1%
BEEIEE R %) (Catalogue for Guidance of Foreign Investment
Industries) (amended in 2015) issued by the State Council of the
PRC, under which foreign investor shall not have more than 50%
in a corporation providing value-added telecommunication
services; and (i) (R MBI IR E KL RESEEBEENR
1) (Notice of Strengthened Administration of Foreign Investment
in and Operation of Value-Added Telecommmunication Business)
issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of
the PRC in July 2006 under which a local PRC company holding
an internet content provider licence shall not lease, transfer or sell
the licence to foreign investors in any form, or provide any
assistance to foreign investors to provide internet content
services in the PRC, but such provision and notice are not
governing or restricting the control of a PRC company through
structured agreements.

Given the foregoing, the Structured Agreements shall be
regarded as valid documents binding all parties thereto as at the
date of this report. However, if any new applicable law or
regulation were enacted in the future in the PRC, the validity and
enforceability of the Structured Agreements might have been
affected, and as a result, the structured agreements of controlling
Xinnet would have been disruptive which in turn would have
affected the business of the Group.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

()

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and
the risks associated therewith including actions
taken to mitigate such risks: (Continued)

The Ministry of Commerce of the PRC has issued certain
consultation paper (EZBKE R 18) in respect of a bill namely
(hEARLMBINE K E L) (Foreign Investment Law of the
PRC) (the “Bill”) in January 2015, which is to be enacted into an
act or statute. As per sections 15 and 18 thereof, foreign
investment means foreign investors directly or indirectly conduct
certain investment activities, e.g. through structured agreements
or trust arrangement to control a PRC company or holding equity
interest of a PRC company. Any foreign investment in any
business under the catalogue of restricted investment shall apply
for an access permit from foreign investment authority under the
State Council of the PRC as per section 27 thereof. There is no
indication in the Bill that contracts under the structured
agreements would be void.

Application for an access permit cited in the Bill could be viewed
as a kind of administrative procedure rather than a prohibitive
threshold, therefore, failure in obtaining the permit by fulfilling
certain administrative procedures would not be very high. As Mr.
Jiang is not a connected person of the Group, the risk of direct
conflict of interest with the Group will be very low. It is unlikely
for Mr. Jiang setting up another entity conducting business
having a direct competition with Xinnet's, otherwise, Mr. Jiang
would not execute and procure the execution of the Structured
Agreements by which Mr. Jiang has given up the businesses of
Xinnet. As at the date of this report, the Group is not aware that
Mr. Jiang has carried out or is involved in any business having a
direct competition with the businesses of the Group. If Mr. Jiang
or ZQHT breaches any obligations or undertakings under any
Structured Agreements, the operations of Xinnet would not be
affected as the position of the Group in controlling Xinnet has
been fully secured by (a) full control of the board of directors of
Xinnet; and (b) obtaining a charge of 100% equity interest in
Xinnet (as per the provision of the Loan Agreement, the pledgor
has further charged the remaining 20% equity interest in Xinnet
as first fixed charge in favour of the pledgee in October 2014).
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

()

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and
the risks associated therewith including actions
taken to mitigate such risks: (Continued)

Since the Bill has yet been enacted into an act or statute, the
sections or provisions thereof might be further modified and
amended after the consultation period, it is uncertain whether
there will be any additional conditions imposed on foreign
investors.

C PE ARKEMBINGIZEE ) (Foreign Investment Law of the
PRC) was promulgated on 15 March 2019 and was implemented
on 1 January 2020. The Foreign Investment Law does not clearly
stipulate the legality or effectiveness of foreign-invested
enterprises in adopting structured agreements to control
domestic companies in the PRC, nor does it require explicit
requirements on the specific form of the structured agreements
or the specific content of the structured agreements legal
documentation. Thus, after the Foreign Investment Law come
into force, its provisions shall not affect the effectiveness of the
structured agreements legal documentation. However, there are
still uncertainties in the interpretation and application of the PRC
laws and regulations on the effectiveness of the structured
agreements, and the interpretation of the relevant authorities
may be different from the above. Therefore, we cannot assure
that the above structured agreement will not be adversely
affected.

The Structured Agreements might be subject to scrutiny of the
tax authorities in the PRC, and additional tax might be imposed,
but the Group does not expect that such tax risk is high and will
lead to any substantial financial impact on the Group.
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(9)

(h)

Material change in the Structured Agreements:

No Structured Agreement has been supplemented or modified
since the date of execution of all such Structured Agreements.

Unwinding of the Structured Agreements:

No Structured Agreement has been unwound since the date of
execution all such Structured Agreements. None of the
Structured Agreement is to be unwound until and unless the
restriction on ownership by foreign investors is removed or not in
force. In the event of such restriction in foreign investment is
removed or not in force, XHWT will exercise its option under the
Option Agreement to acquire the entire equity interest in Xinnet.
Upon completion of formal acquisition of the entire equity
interest in Xinnet, the Structured Agreements will then be
unwound.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Rong
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company is committed to maintain high corporate governance
standard and unambiguous procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance its
shareholders’ value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2020
except for the deviation stated below:

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. The chairlady of the Board was
unable to travel to Hong Kong to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 27 May 2020 due to the Epidemic.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTION
The Company has adopted the Model Code.

Specific enquiries have been made to all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely to be or in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the relevant employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board is made up of eight directors
including three executive directors, two non-executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors (the "INEDs"). The
directors are, collectively and individually, aware of their responsibilities
to the shareholders. The directors’ biographical information is set out
on pages 20 to 23 under the heading “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management”. During the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this report, the Board consisted of the following:

Executive Directors

Ms. Liu Rong (Chairlady)
Mr. Yu Pun Hoi
Mr. Chen Ming Fei (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan
Mr. Cheng Chih-Hung

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fung Wing Lap
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and monitoring its affairs. All directors
should take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the abovementioned senior management of the Company.

The Board has the full support of its board committees and the senior
management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Board members do not
have any financial, business and family or other material/relevant
relationship with each other. During the year, the Board held 4
meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the year, the chairlady held meetings with each of the non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors of the
Company and obtained independent opinions relating to affairs of the
Board and the Company without the presence of other executive
directors.

Non-executive Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulated that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of its non-
executive directors (including INEDs) for a term of two years with
effect from the signing date of service contracts.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, during the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has appointed three
INEDs of whom Mr. Fung Wing Lap is a certified public accountant in
Hong Kong.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

Notwithstanding that Mr. Fung Wing Lap has served as an
independent non-executive director of the Company for more than
nine years, (i) the Board has assessed and reviewed the annual
confirmation of independence based on the requirement set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and affirmed that Mr. Fung Wing Lap
remain independent; (ii) the nomination committee of the Company
(“Nomination Committee”) has assessed and is satisfied of the
independence of Mr. Fung Wing Lap; and (iii) the Board considers that
Mr. Fung Wing Lap remain independent of management and free of
any relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of
his independent judgement. Notwithstanding the length of their
service, the Company believes that their valuable knowledge and
experience in the Group's business will continue to benefit the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Training

According to the Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate
in a programme of continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company should be
responsible for arranging and funding training, placing an appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the directors.

From time to time, directors are provided with written materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the purpose of assisting
them in discharging their duties. The Company had received from each
of the directors the confirmations on taking continuous professional
training during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, to
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board's responsibilities.

Audit Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report, the Audit Committee consisted of all the INEDs as follows:

Mr. Fung Wing Lap (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reports and internal control
procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship with the
external auditor of the Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings, in particular, to
review with management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and the unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2020, and discussed the auditing, financial
control, internal control and risk management systems.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee (“Remuneration Committee”) in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee consisted of all the INEDs as follows:

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Fung Wing Lap
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model
described in paragraph B.1.2(c) under the CG Code (i.e. making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration package of
individual executive director and senior management member). The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee is responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the establishing of formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. It takes into consideration on salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting, in
particular, to review and recommend to the Board the remuneration
policies and the remuneration packages of the individual executive
directors and senior management.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the emoluments paid or
payable to members of senior management (excluding directors) were
within the following band:
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the
Nomination Committee in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this report, the Nomination Committee consisted of the
directors of the Company as follows:

Ms. Liu Rong (Chairlady of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. Yu Pun Hoi

Mr. Fung Wing Lap*

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning*

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang*

* INEDs

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, formulating
nomination policies, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
directors, assessing the independence of INEDs, and make
recommendations to the Board on appointment of directors, and
review the board diversity policy annually. The Nomination Committee
has the authority given by the Board to seek external professional
advice in the selection and recommendation for directorship, when
required, fulfilling the requirements for professional knowledge and
industry experience of any proposed candidates.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting, in
particular, to review and assess the independence of all INEDs of the
Company; to consider and recommend to the Board for approval of the
list of retiring directors for re-election at the annual general meeting
held on 27 May 2020 (the “2020 AGM"); and review the structure,
size and composition of the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee has adopted the nomination policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the key nomination criteria and nomination
procedures for the nomination of directors of the Company.

Key Nomination criteria

The Nomination Committee shall identify and nominate qualified
individuals for appointment as additional directors or to fill the Board
vacancies as and when they arise. The factors listed below would be
used as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate.

° Reputation for integrity

° Accomplishment and experience in any particular industry

° Professional and education background

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest

° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional

experience, skills, knowledge and length of service

The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Paolicy (Continued)

Nomination Procedures

1.

Appointment of Directors

The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s) suitably
qualified to become the Board members, having due regard to
the Policy and the diversity policy of the Board (“Board Diversity
Policy”), and assesses the independence of the proposed
INED(s) as appropriate.

(1)

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.

The Board considers the individual(s) recommended by the
Nomination Committee, having due regard to the Policy
and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board confirms the appointment of the individual(s) as
director(s) or recommends the individual(s) to stand for
election at a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
will be subject to re-election by shareholders of the
Company at the next annual general meeting after initial
appointment in accordance with the Company's articles of
association.

Re-appointment of Directors

)

The Nomination Committee considers each retiring director,
having due regard to the Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy and assesses the independence of each retiring
INED.

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.

The Board considers each retiring director recommended
by the Nomination Committee having due regard to the
Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board recommends the retiring directors to stand for
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company's articles of association.

The Nomination Committee will undertake the review and
revision of the Policy, as and when needed.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy in relation to the
nomination and appointment of new directors, which sets out the
selection of board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and
specific needs, including but not limited to gender, age, race, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry experience and
professional experience. Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee will give consideration to the Board Diversity
Policy when identifying suitable qualified candidates to become
members of the Board, and will review the Board Diversity Policy, so
as to develop and review measurable objectives for the implementing
the Board Diversity Policy and to monitor the progress on achieving
these objectives.

The directors’ biographical information as at the date of this report is
set out on pages 20 to 23 under the heading “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”. The Nomination Committee
reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and achievement of objectives and
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy, and recommended the
Board that the existing Board was appropriately structured and no
change was required.

Dividend Policy

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board takes into account, inter alia, the Group's
earnings performance, financial position, general business conditions
and strategies, interests of the shareholders of the Company, the
Group's expected working capital requirements and future expansion
plans, business cycle of the Group's business and other external or
internal factors that may have an impact on the business, investment
requirements and future prospects.

The proposed declaration of dividend is subject to the Board's decision
and the declaration of any final dividend for any year is subject to
shareholders’ approval. The declaration of dividend is also subject to
Hong Kong law and the Company’s articles of association.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance functions set out below:

a. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

b.  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

c. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d.  Todevelop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

e. To review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE

The attendance record of each director at the Board, board committee
meetings and general meetings of the Company held for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the table below:
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Board General Committee Committee Committee Professional
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Name of Director BENS Ezge RRAE BRZEEEE FMZEgeE REZEeE BESERRE
Executive Directors HITEE
Ms. Liu Rong e 4 - NATER N/A TNER 1 v
Mr. Yu Pun Hoi TR%tsE 2 1 N/A NEA N/A T 1 v
Mr. Chen Ming Fei BIERLE 4 - N/A N A NIA N EF N/A N A v
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Lam Bing Kwan MRERE 3 1 N/A NER N/A TR N/A TR v
Mr. Cheng Chih-Hung BER%E 3 - N/A T ER N/A TER N/A T ER v
Independent Non- BUFHTEE

executive Directors

Mr. Fung Wing Lap BRILE 3 1 2 1 1 v
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning ERELA 3 - 2 1 1 v
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang AL 3 1 2 1 1 v
Number of meetings held FRAREENY 4 1 2 1 1

during the year
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 113 to 120.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Group in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted approximately to HK$2,126,000 and
HK$43,000 respectively. An analysis of the remuneration paid to the
external auditors of the Group is set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Jay Shree Aggarwal, who was an employee of the Company and
became the company secretary with effect from 1 July 2018 has
complied with the relevant professional training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1.

Procedures for shareholders to convene a general
meeting (“GM”)

As per Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the directors of
the Company are required to call a GM if the Company has
received requests to do so from the shareholders of the
Company representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
the shareholders having a right to vote at GMs.

The request:

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the GM,;

(b)  may include the text of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the GM and may
consist of several documents in like form;

(c) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form at 12/F, The
Octagon, No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company or in
electronic form by email at info@sino-i.com;

(d)  must be authenticated by the person or persons making it;
and

(e)  must be verified with the share registrar of the Company,
and upon the share registrar’s confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the company secretary will notify the
Board to convene a GM by serving proper notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the
registered shareholders of the Company. On the contrary,
if the request has been verified as not in order, the
requesting shareholders will be informed of this outcome
and accordingly, a GM will not be convened as requested.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requests proceed duly to convene a GM for a day not
more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening
the GM is given, the requesting shareholders, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a GM which shall be convened
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which GMs
are to be convened by the Board, but any GM so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

2.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to Section 615(2) of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received
requests from the following number of shareholders:

(@) the shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting
("AGM") to which the requests relate; or

(b) at least 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.

The request (i) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form at
the registered office of the Company, 12/F, The Octagon, No. 6
Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong or in
electronic form by email at info@sino-i.com; (i) must identify the
resolution of which notice is to be given; (iii) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (iv) must
be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before AGM
to which the requests relate; or if later, the time at which notice
is given of that meeting.

In addition, the request will be verified with the share registrar of
the Company, and upon the share registrar's confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the company secretary will
notify the Board for including the resolution in the agenda for the
AGM.

Pursuant to Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under Section 615 to give notice of a
resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s own expense
to each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the AGM in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and
at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it
gives notice of the meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

3. Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the share registrar of the Company.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing at the Company's registered office at
12/F., The Octagon, No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong, or to the Company by email at
info@sino-i.com. Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at the GM/AGM.

The details of the rights of shareholders of the Company can be found
in the Company’s website at www.sino-i.com.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to safeguard shareholders’ interests and
believes that effective communication with shareholders and other
stakeholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the business performance and strategies of the
Group.

The Board adopted a shareholders communication policy which aims
to set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the
shareholders of the Company and potential investors are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, in order to enable shareholders of the
Company to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
shareholders of the Company and potential investors to engage
actively with the Company.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the Group
to all interested parties on a timely basis. All such publications together with
additional information of the Group are timely updated on the Company’s
website at www.sino-i.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

This is no change in the Company's constitutional documents during
the year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group's
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in monitoring the risk exposures and the
operating effectiveness of the underlying risk management and internal
control systems.

The Company assists the management in identifying, assessing,
responding, monitoring and reporting corresponding risks through risk
management and internal control structure. The system aims at
managing instead of eliminating the risks of unfulfilled business goals
that reasonably but not absolutely prevents the impact of material
risks.

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The Company has established a sound risk management and internal
control structure, adopting a top-down organisational structure from
the Board to the specific internal control units with well-defined duties.
The Group's Internal Audit Department assists the Board and/or the
Audit Committee in the ongoing review of the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems. The Board,
through Audit Committee, is at least annually informed of significant
risks that may impact on the Group’s performance.

RAEEEE :

The Board ]

Exg
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o ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group;

BREBSERERNERERE RABEE RS  UWRERFRKE
o formulate a management structure with specific terms of reference;

HERRBEERERNERRE &

o determine the nature and extent of significant risk that the Company
is willing to take in achieving the strategic objectives, and formulate
the Group's risk management strategies.
EEAAAISERREESMEAECEARR 2 EEREE I
HIEARE 2 AR EIRRE -
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RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued) BB E RS ()

Audit Committee

EREEE

The Management
(including heads of business units,
departments and divisions)
EEE

(BREEBEN  BHARIBEE)

Internal Audit Department

R ERE AR

oversee the risk management and internal control systems of the Group;
ERAKEREBRERERAREZERLS

review and discuss with the management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to maintain effective risk
management and internal control systems; and
BFEREBERNING  UEREEERTHBEUNERRARE
BRABEZRF BRI &

consider major findings on internal control matters and make
recommendations to the Board.

ERARNBEEEENERREARYAESTSHFLERZS

design, implement and monitor the risk management and internal
control systems properly and ensure the systems are executed
effectively;

LZERXR  BEIEERREERABEZERS - LRERZZ RS
1F LA B BAT

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations;

EEERRIHIERRER TS ERNERRR

give prompt responses to, and follow up the findings on, internal
control matters raised by internal or external auditors; and
AN BAZBENIR L 2 BN LR E T 2 AT RIEL R
BBl FE SR BRAE ¢ R

provide confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems.

AEEERARREERANTFEZERT BRI -

assist the Board and the Audit Committee to carry out analysis and
independent assessment on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems;
MPEEFEREZZEGHARNEREREADEZTRTES R
$UA B BB ML T 9T RSB LR

be responsible for coordinating the risk management work and
reviewing the Group’s major risk management areas and report to
the Audit Committee in this regard; and
EEMARREERIEREAEENENRARE
THEMEZEZEGRER: &

make suggestions for the improving the design and implementation
deficiencies of risk management and internal control system to
promote standardisation of work.

R R B IR R A EBEEIE R AT 2 sRET FIEATTER A 1R H BUE 5% - AR
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ZEZSEEFR ) PEREEEERAR

65 )



www.sino-i.com

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN\ e g
1 E&:/ﬁﬁ%

CONTROL APPROACH AND TOOLS

During the year, the management analysed the control environment
and the risks identified, and implemented various controls measures.

i approach taken: the management conducts interviews with
relevant staff members, reviews relevant documentation of the
internal control system and evaluates findings of any deficiencies
in the design of the Group's internal control system, provides
recommendations for improvement and assesses the
effectiveness of such recommendations, where appropriate. The
scope and findings of review on the risk management and
internal control are reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually.

ii. management information systems and technologies: such
systems and technologies are employed to keep track of the
inputs and outputs of the Group’s operations, such as financial
data system and human resources. They are also employed to
track the audit process in the authorization system, in which
permissions and responsibility of authorisation are clearly
identified and adequate records can be maintained in the system.

ii. reports and variance analysis: such reports and analysis of
each segment are conducted on a regular basis such that the
performance of each segment can be easily accessible.

iv. audit and supervision: in 2020, the Internal Audit Department
conducted an independent, objective and fair supervision and
evaluation of all aspects of the Company’s management in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations and the
Company’s internal control management system and business
conditions and focused on the evaluation of the rationality,
soundness and effectiveness of business processes and related
internal control systems, including budget control and
enforcement, legality and compliance of financial revenue and
expenditure activities, feasibility and efficiency of foreign
investment, full-process control of audit process by key
personnel who was departed/off-duty to ensure the
effectiveness of each business process and improve overall
economic efficiency, so as to reasonably ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations and accomplish
established corporate goals.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

As an important element of quality corporate governance, the overall
risk management process is overseen by the Board through the Audit
Committee. Rather than a separate and standalone process, risk
management is integrated into the business and decision-making
processes, including strategy formulation, business planning, capital
allocation, investment decisions, internal control and day-to-day
operations.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyse,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated with any
activity, function or process within its terms of reference. It
endeavours to evaluate the level of risk and compare it against the
predetermined levels of risk acceptable to the Company. For risk
control and monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding
acceptable risks and the ways to address unacceptable risks. The
management will develop contingency plans for possible loss
scenarios. Incidents and other situations incurring actual or potential
loss will be investigated and properly documented as part of the effort
to manage risks.
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RISK EXPOSURES

The following illustrates the major risks of the Group. Since the last
annual review, there was no significant change in the nature and
extent of risks during the year.

Risk of losing top creative talent — the Company's enterprise cloud
services business relies on core technical staff and key management
personnel for research, development and innovation. In an increasingly
competitive environment, maintaining a stable technical team and
continuously attracting high quality and talented people are key factors
for the Company to maintain its current market position and
sustainability in the industry. Any future loss of the Company's core
industry, product, operational, technical and management talent would
have an adverse impact on the Company. To address the above risks,
the Company has taken or intends to take the following measures: 1.
establishing a performance- and competency-based selection and
employment system to fully utilize the creative initiative and work
potential of employees; 2. establishing a sound and reasonable pay
scale mechanism, and setting salaries according to rank and
competency; 3. establishing a flexible and diversified talent training
and allocation mechanism; 4. establishing a talent crisis warning and
control mechanism to reduce the loss caused by talent loss; and 5.
building a team knowledge base, replicating team output, and
systematically storing key technical data.

Exchange risk — the Group is exposed to fluctuation in exchange rates
as the Group’s revenue is denominated in Renminbi while Hong Kong
dollars are the reporting currency of the Group. The management will
closely monitor the exchange exposure in order to keep the net
exposure at an acceptable level and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Internal Audit Department is assigned with the task to perform
regular reviews on the Group's internal control systems in respect of
operational, financial and compliance aspects and will report the audit
review findings or irregularities, if any, to the management and advise
on the implementation of steps and actions required to enhance the
Group's internal controls. The result of internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans are reported to the Audit Committee and the
Board.

Apart from reviewing the systems, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experiences of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programs and budget. The Board
acknowledges that the management has been progressively
implementing an adequate internal control system to ensure the
effective functioning of the Group's operational, financial and
compliance areas, including the following key measures, policies and
procedures:

i. financial reporting management:

o proper controls are in place to ensure the maintenance of a
complete, accurate and timely record of accounting and
management information;

o regular reports on revenue and ageing analysis of
receivables and internal financial reports giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s financial
performance are prepared for the management;

° quarterly updates on internal financial statements giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's
performance, financial position and prospects in sufficient
details are provided to all directors;

° annual audit is carried out by external auditor to ensure that
the consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
the Group's accounting policies and the applicable laws and
regulations.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

ii. the mechanism and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of an internal work
team (if required), that any material information which comes to
the knowledge of any one or more officers should be promptly
identified, assessed and forwarded to the Board (if appropriate);

i. the policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements which shall be reviewed and
monitored regularly by the Audit Committee designated by the
Board;

iv.  the Audit Committee designated by the Board to monitor, control
and regularly review continuing connected transactions of the
Company and ensure proper compliance with all relevant laws
and regulations, the Listing Rules and the disclosure
requirements; and

V. a whistle-blowing policy for employees of the Group and those
who deal with the Group (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise
concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters. The Group
encourages reporting with real names and implements award
policy if the reported suspicion is proved to be the case. Such
arrangement will be reviewed by the Audit Committee to ensure
that proper arrangement is in place for fair and independent
investigation into the matters.

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group's
systems for the year ended 31 December 2020 and are not aware of
any significant issues that would have an adverse impact on the
effectiveness and adequacy of the systems, accordingly consider the
systems effective and adequate.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report is the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG) Report (hereinafter referred to as the “ESG Report” or the
“Report”) published by the Group, which summarises our ESG
work, the strategy and goals during the year.

Reporting Standard

This report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide (hereinafter referred to as the “Guide”) set out in Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules. The contents covered herein are in
compliance with the reporting responsibilities of “comply or
explain” and the reporting principles of “materiality”,
"quantitative”, "balance” and “consistency”. This report has
been reviewed and confirmed by the Board.

Reporting Scope

This report covers the Group’s core business from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020 (hereinafter referred to as the
“Year"), and collects environmental and social key performance
indicators within the disclosure scope of consistency in the
annual report. The report summarises the Group’'s ESG-related
work and policies. For sustainability performance, please refer to
Appendix |: Highlights of Sustainable Development Data.

PHILOSOPHY OF SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

The Group attaches great importance to the use of this report as
a platform to provide transparent non-financial information
disclosure to demonstrate the Group’s unremitting efforts in
sustainable development. We not only create value for the Group
and its stakeholders, but also consider environmental and social
factors while actively developing our business. In 2015, the
United Nations set and published 17 Sustainable Development
Goals (“SDGs"). During the Year, we continued to actively
integrate SDGs into our daily operations and decision-making,
and fully apply SDGs, the most relevant to our business
development, to build a sustainable society.
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2 PHILOSOPHY OF SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Scope
#HE

2 WEEBRRE=2 W@

Our Actions

RMHITE

Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)

AR B 1% (SDGs)

Operating
Practices
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Environment
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Quality management

Protection of information safety
Promote R & D innovation
Maintenance of intellectual property
Clean supply chain
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REEELZE
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BRZMLFESE

Diversified talent recruitment
Sound training and promotion system
Employee safety and health
protection

Reasonable remuneration and
benefits
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Greenhouse gas emission
management

Energy and water conservation
Paper conservation

Waste reduction and recycling
AERBENEE
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Caring for the disadvantaged
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2 PHILOSOPHY OF SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

2.1 Group Honors

In 2020, the Group received the following awards:

Name of Award
RIEEE
2020 Innovative People in Mobile E-Commerce

2020 #% &) E pm BRI A YD

2019-2020 Industry Internet SaaS Service User
Recommended Brand

2019-2020 4 [Z = 5 B Bt 49 SaaS B 75 3 5 1 aa i

2020 China SaaS Innovation Product Award
2020 A B SaaS {E 15 BT = 4%

2020 Best Technology Application in China SaaS
2020 £ [E 1 B SaaS AR5 Ax (= #k il g A 22

2.2 ESG Working Group

RE - HERERESE

2 TURERREEZSH

2.1 SE&E
2020 F S EEEESRIHANT ¢

Issued by

MBEN

the magazine of The Internet Economy, CCID
EmE(EBELE) M

the magazine of The Internet Economy, CCID
TG AL M

China International Fair for Trade in Services

TEERREEZX5E

Information and software service network and
ChinaSoftCon
= B AR 7548 & ChinaSoftCon

2.2 ESG T1E/hE

While expanding our business, we strive to achieve
environmental and social benefits. In order to operate the
business in a responsible manner, the Group has
established an ESG working group to continuously promote
the implementation of ESG work. Members of the team
continue to be composed of the Board and various
functional departments, and adopt a two-way approach to
exchange daily ESG work from top to bottom and from
bottom to top, communicate regularly, provide training for
all departments, and collect information on ESG
performance indicators. The Board has overall responsibility
for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting. In the future,
we will strengthen the Directors’ participation and
supervision on ESG issues, integrate ESG concepts into
various aspects of work, and promote sustainable
development in the Group’s comprehensive practice.
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2 PHILOSOPHY OF SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

2.2 ESG Working Group (Continued)

2 TUREREEZWM
2.2 ESG IT{E/ 48 ()
DECISION LEVEL

COMMUNICATION LEVEL EXECUTION LEVEL

RIRE

Establish at the Board of the
Company

RNAEARNEEE

Establish and improve ESG
policies with short, medium
and long term and in
accordance with the business
development

MR RIARERERITIIR
SEEESGHER

Plan the outcome achieved

REBIFTSBIRLR

Understand latest ESG
development of the Group
through regular communication
and reporting
FRTHBRRERNG AT
PREBERMIESGEE

Approve the ESG report
BHESCHRERR

Provide suggestions to improve

ESG performance in the
coming year

RAZRE R A EESCRITHEE

BiERE

Establish at the Group’s
securities affair department

RIS EHE

Monitor and respond to
annual material topics and
consider ESG-related
opportunities
ZRESGIERAE

Construct the ESG Working
Group that consists of all
functions and subsidiaries

AR ERBAE P I R B B A
ANBAMBVESG TR/

Integrate opinions from
various functions and conyrm
with the Board about the
effectiveness of established
policies and objectives
BARHEIPINER mE
ERREFETINBR R BER
EEBEMAIEESR

Provide recommendations
on ESG aspect to the Group
as and when appropriate to
improve performance in
relevant aspects

B MESEREESCGHEN
B LURFHERI A ERIRIR

Review and monitor ESG
policies and practices to
ensure the compliance with
relevant laws and regulations
and regulatory requirement
5T B B RESGBUER K i
BARTEEREEREEENR
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HITIRE

Establish at all functions and
subsidiaries

BN ERZBAEBPIRZHB
NS

Assist to collect internal
policies and data in relation to
ESG

BN EE BRESGH BRI A BRIE
R B

Execute policies and
objectives and monitor if the
policies and objectives were
incorporated into daily
operations
BATPRE] L ECR R B2 1
EERTEMAZEHRESZER

Provide opinions on policies
and objectives

REBERNEENER
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2 PHILOSOPHY OF SUSTAINABLE 2 TAHERREZW
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
2.3 Communication with the Stakeholders 2.3 BRAFEMEELTBRE
We believe that internal and external opinions are important HHEE  RENERINBHER
for improving our sustainability performance. Therefore, we BHEAANSEZRRRANGTE
actively communicate with various stakeholders to 2 - Fit - HAPIER R R A 25 A8
understand their opinions and expectations on the Group. HEBE - TROMNEEENER
NMHAZE -
Stakeholders Method of Communication
Mz A BA 5 BERE
Shareholders and Investors Annual general meetings and other general meetings
R RIGEE Interim report and Annual Report

Corporate newsletter, such as letter/circular and notice of meetings to
the shareholders
Results announcement

BREFAGEEMBRAE

H HR SR 5 L F 3R

B MBREREH BRRGHRBA
Customers Customer satisfaction surveys and feedback form
Y Customer Service Centre

Visits by customer relation manager
Daily operation/communication
Phone

Mailbox

EEMmEERENERE
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2 PHILOSOPHY OF SUSTAINABLE 2 TAHERREZW
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
2.3 Communication with the Stakeholders (Continued) 2.3 EN=ERLEEREE)
Stakeholders Method of Communication
Fle=EEE A BERE
Staff Channels for staff to express opinions(forms, view collection box, etc.)
BT Discussion on work performance

Business briefings
Seminars/workshops/talks
Voluntary activities
Staff communication meetings
BTITREZRORE (WXL BERES)
TERIEH
E iR
Mg T B
ELEE
ETERRE
Suppliers Supplier management procedures
HrER Meetings
Supplier/contractor assessment system
HERERIE T
o
e R, A R R I E
Business Partners Meetings

ES e Visits

Regulatory Authorities Meetings
T Compliance Report

&
=

BRWE
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2 PHILOSOPHY OF SUSTAINABLE 2 AUREBRER2

DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

2.3 Communication with the Stakeholders (Continued) 2.3

BN SEELEE®)

Stakeholders Method of Communication
Fz=tEE S BIERE

Media Press releases
HE Results Announcement
R
%Z’%/\i
Community/ Voluntary activities
non-government Donations
organisations Community events
& FER TR Seminars/talks/workshops
ELED
BEt
HREE
Mg EEE TES
Industry Peers Strategic collaboration project
EES Group Notice
REEME{EIER
SEEE

Materiality Assessment and Matrix

The Group invited internal and external stakeholders to
participate in the online guestionnaire survey, which
focused on economic and operation, employment and
labour practices, environment and community, to enable us
to better understand the expectations of stakeholders, and
to focus on the disclosure of the selected material issues
and strengthen targeted response. Through the following
steps, we have identified the issues that stakeholders are
important to the Group:

ERMERER

REEBREE 7T AEBFINEL ) 22 48 B8
F2EG FMERAE  MEHEE
BEEREE BELBBER
RERTENEE  ERMEFEA
T BN =R T R ERE - W RERT
FENEZUREESEHEE - I
%ﬁﬁ”ﬁ’l‘&lﬁlﬁﬁ BMEBEBATH
B BRSNS EE S RAER
EREZEMNEE
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2 PHILOSOPHY OF SUSTAINABLE 2 TEERRES(®
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
2.3 Communication with the Stakeholders (Continued) 2.3 EN=ERLEERE(E)
Materiality Assessment and Matrix (Continued) BEEMTERERE)

1

ESTABLISHING A
LIST OF MATERIAL
ISSUES

BUSENHREE

e

STAKEHOLDER
QUESTIONNAIRE

FERR A RERE

3

TO SUMMARISE
THE RESULTS

OF THE S
FOR TARG
DISCLOS

RiALREER
RS EIER

Based on the Group's business development, a total of 19 sustainability
issues were selected based on the disclosure requirements of the
Guide, the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (“SASB")
materiality map and industry trends, and a materiality database was
established

ERAEEEBERIFN - &6 () ORBEKR - EBUKES AR
Z 8% (Sustainability Accounting Standards Board * [SASB| ) HEZE
MEREREITEM - B ERFERRER  BUSEMEEE

The Group invited different stakeholders such as the management,
shareholders/investors, government/regulatory authorities, customers,
employees, peers/business partners, suppliers,
community/non-governmental organisations to participate in a
questionnaire to rank the importance of each issue in the pool of issues
AEBMBFTERRE WEWEE BT/ EERE TF BT
% ERIKH - HIER - (R RN EES TR F=EE 2 m
AL BRERET S REYENE R INETHT

We reviewed the materiality of each issue based on the two
dimensions of “importance to business” and “importance to external
stakeholders’ and developed a materiality assessment matrix to
summarise the results of the materiality assessment

BIE HEBNEEM] Kk [HIMNBIENEEN ] MEREEERES
FENBEEN  WERIESMTGER - BRHEZMTEER

78 ) Sino-i Technology Limited ) Annual Report 2020



PEMENERM

fva
=]

Materiality to External Stakeholders
4

© 6 & © © ©

wWww.sino-i.com

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERERSE

PHILOSOPHY OF SUSTAINABLE 2 AUREZRE2

DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

2.3 Communication with the Stakeholders (Continued) 2.3 HAREELER(®)

Sino-i Materiality Matrix

REENE — E2MER
N\
o L1
o 3/
© e
7/
@
@
@
e
o @
© @
o 29 o
)
Materiality to the Group’s Business
HAREBMEBNEEM
Economic performance Customer satisfaction and Staff health and safety
s TE complaint handling BT#EERLTE

Anti-corruption
RES

Compliance operation
aRES

Procurement and supply
chain management

RE R e E IR

Customer privacy protection

EPRALRE

Information security
BEELE

BEPMBE AR

Service quality management
fREEEER

Technology development
and products

Rt Es R BT
Protecting intellectual property
(REMBAERE

Responsible marketing
and promotion
BEEEEHKLEE

Employment beneyts

fEfRiEn

® 868 © 0 ©

O © © &6 0 8 O

Staff training and development
BTHEIIMERE

Prevention of child labour and
forced labour

0 IHERBE T R5EH15%5 T

Enfergy management
BEREHE

Natural resources management

RAREREHE

Responding to climate change

Community charities
HEAREE
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3 COMPLIANCE OPERATION AND GOVERNANCE

The development of information and communication technology
has brought us an electronic lifestyle. The Group helps our
customers to continuously promote their digital and intelligent
operation, our customer-first manner drives the industry to move
towards an innovative business model. We also attach great
importance to the compliance with corporate governance and
operate our business in compliance with laws and regulations,
and strictly control the quality of our products and services
through standardized work procedures.

3.1 Information Safety

In the era of big data, as a leading technology enterprise,
we attach great importance to information network safety
and customer stability. We strictly comply with the
Regulations of the People’'s Republic of China for Security
Protection of Computer Information Systems (FF 2 A £t
MEFTE#E B RGEL 2 REEH), Information Security
Technology — Baseline for Classified Protection of
Information System Security (5 B Z 2R MIEE XKL 2
LR EEARNESR) (GB/T22239-2008), Information Security
Technology — Information System Security Management
Requirements (EELZ2RMEERHNL R EIEZK) (GB/
T20269-2006) and Guidance on Carrying out Rectification of
Information Security Level Protection and Security
Construction (ARHABEELEELARELDEREBNRT
fE® 45 & = R) (Gongxinan (2 12 &) No.[2009]1429). In
order to comprehensively standardize various operations to
protect information safety, we have also implemented the
Management Manual for Information Security (12 8 &2 2%
32 F i) established by the public technological research
and development centre (/A i85 1)) to reduce the
risk of improper information leakage.

In order to implement the information safety related system
in a more systematic and effective manner, the Group has
set up an information safety leading group. In addition to
planning relevant rules and regulations and leading all
departments to incorporate measures into daily operations,
the Group also reviews the effectiveness and feasibility of
the system to ensure the information protection is
implemented in all departments.
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3 COMPLIANCE OPERATION AND GOVERNANCE 3 4SHR&EEHER (%)
(Continued)

3.2 Promoting Innovation and Maintenance of
Property Rights

3.2 HEBAMKEEER

3.2.1 HE AT

3.2.1 Promoting Technological Innovation

Technological innovation has driven the
transformation of business models, and in this ever-
changing era of information, the Internet and
technological products are constantly evolving.
Therefore, the Group continued to develop and
innovate, create more high-quality products and
services, promote the development of other
industries and improve the quality of life of people.
The Group has developed a SaaS product system that
meets the demand for digitalization of operation and
management of Chinese enterprises, provides
personalized services, and actively establishes
Information and Communications Technology (ICT)
infrastructure data centers in Beijing, Guangzhou,
Suzhou and other places to achieve interconnection
between North and South Telecom. We have also
established laboratories jointly with NetApp, HP and
other companies to continuously carry out research
and development. During the Year, we continued to
invest resources in technology improvement in the
field of digital commerce, and through the three-party
ecological cooperation, our B2C mobile mall
e-commerce system has become more stable and
reliable, helping merchants realize the full integration
of information flow, capital flow and logistics of
e-commerce business.

BB #Es T mEEAHD
BE TEEAEEENE
K BEEHE R BHRE R
e At - NREBEFEM

MEg AlEELZaEHE
EmMRS - HEEEMmESE
BR R AMMNEREG
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KH)SaaSE M Z - 24 E
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VERE  BEHETHREH
B RFE  BMBEERN
IR BT 7 7 R i A9 B i
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3 COMPLIANCE OPERATION AND GOVERNANCE
(Continued)

3.2 Promoting Innovation and Maintenance of
Property Rights (Continued)

3.2.2 Maintenance of Intellectual Property

A robust intellectual property protection system is the
foundation for driving research and development. The
Group strictly abides by the Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({2 A REFIEHZERE),
Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China (FRZE A
R & # B & F| /%), Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China (R # A R £ MEIEIEE) and Anti-
unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China (FZE AR KX MBI X T IEE % F %) to ensure
that the Company enjoys the intellectual property,
and respects the intellectual property of others.
Infringement of works and patents of others is strictly
prohibited.

The Group has established and implemented the
Intellectual Property Right Management System (%035
EREEIRH|E), which clearly sets out the application
process and closely monitors the registration,
registration and use of all property rights of
monitoring. In case of any conflict or infringement
(including private copying, publishing, leaking,
registration, registration, use, licensing or intellectual
property of transfer), one would have to bear all
losses and liabilities incurred or resulted in.
Employees must comply with confidentiality, non-
competition and non-competition provisions in the
labour contract and other Company clauses, and must
clearly understand the duration of different patents,
and in a timely manner extends the validity period.
We encourage research and development of
inventions, and grant bonuses to the inventors after
obtaining the invention patents. During the Year, the
Group maintained patent registrations for 7 products.
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3 COMPLIANCE OPERATION AND GOVERNANCE 3 AREEHER @)

(Continued)
3.3 Provision of Quality Services 3.3 REEER®K
3.3.1 Standardized Process 3.3.1 HERE

The Group has formulated a series of quality
management systems, including the Project
Management Procedures and System (8 B &Rz
X &IE), Product Testing Procedures (Z 5l 12)
and Quality Assurance Specifications (& &/RER ),
with various services including digital business R & D,
digital marketing R & D, business support R & D,
design cloud R & D and other standardized standards,
adhering to the principles of procedural and
standardized work to maintain high-quality products
and services. In addition, during the Year, a number
of management measures were further introduced,
including Measures for the Administration of
Production and Research Projects (EIE B EE#H%),
Measures for the Administration of Technical Change
Operation (BT & E{EEEEHLE), Measures for the
Administration of Testing (Bl % I ##5%) and
Measures for the Administration of Demand (K&
EBYEX), etc., covering the entire service cycle from
production, research and development, testing and
technological changes to further standardize the work
process and standards. We pay special attention to
system testing, and products must pass the testing
procedures before they can be put into the market.

No products sold or shipped by the Group were
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons during
the Year.
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3 COMPLIANCE OPERATION AND GOVERNANCE
(Continued)

3.3 Provision of Quality Services (Continued)

3.3.2

Customer Orientation

We put customers first, and we continue to maintain
close contact with customers throughout the service
process, understand the actual needs of customers,
and create a creative and personalized IT application
service operation model.

We continue to implement the “First Serve
Accountability System (BRI E{L%l)” and our
professional customer service team handles
customer assistance and consultation. The first
recipient must provide corresponding services or
guidance and track the completion of the whole
service process. Customer feedback is the key to our
continuous improvement. We welcome customers’
feedback on our products and services, and take
customer satisfaction statistics as the basis for
evaluating the quality of our products and services,
and provide indicators for the performance of our
customer service team. During the Year, the Group
received a total of 1,808 complaints, representing a
decrease in the number of complaints over the
previous year, mainly due to the reform of the sales
system of CE Dongli in 2020, our team directly
communicated and communicated with existing
customers, and closely communicated and offered
services, resulting in a decrease in the number of
complaints. All cases have been handled and the
overall customer satisfaction rate reached 99%.

We also place great emphasis on the privacy
protection of our customers. Employees are required
to collect and use customer information in a legal
form and obtain customer information only with
sufficient reasons. We also organise staff training on
privacy rights to promote privacy awareness.
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(Continued)

3.3 Provision of Quality Services (Continued)

3.3.3 Responsible Marketing

The Group strictly complies with laws and regulations
related to product promotion, including the
Advertisement Law of the People’'s Republic of China
(FEARHEMEESE) and the Anti-unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China
(R IEE 5i3%). Different departments of the Group
strictly control the release of external information,
review the content before release, ensure that there
is no false or misleading information. Marketing staff
are also prohibited to undertake commitment to
customers or business-related units in written or
verbal form in extent beyond the Company’s
authorized scope or business guidelines.

3.4 Anti-corruption

The Group operates its business in strict compliance with
relevant laws and regulations such as Criminal Law of the
People’'s Republic of China (% AR ZELAMEIFE), Anti-
unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China
(FEARKEMBRTNEZFEFE) and Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China (FZE A
REMBE & %E85X). We do not tolerate any extortion,
bribery, fraud and money laundering. In order to avoid
corruption and bribery and manage related risks, we have
formulated and implemented the Internal Audit
Management System (REBEETEIEHIE) to make use of
the internal restraint mechanism to ensure that the working
process is compliant, legal and efficient. The audit
personnel may also spot any illegal and non-compliant
activities at an early stage through unannounced or regular
review of accounting information related to operation and
management, and relevant personnel will also propose
corrective and handling suggestions to improve
management.

3.3 BHEERK(H)
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(Continued)

3.4 Anti-corruption (Continued) 3.4 BRRIE (&)

In addition, we attach great importance to the code of
conduct of our employees and prohibit them from seeking
personal gains for work reasons. It is expressly stated in
the Employee Handbook (8 TF 1) that employees shall
not solicit or accept benefits from business related units in
any name or form, or participate in banquet and
entertainment activities of suppliers and bidders. We have
established internal complaint and whistle-blowing channels
to keep the process confidential, and employees can report
any corruption, bribery or fraud to the Human Resources
Department and department heads. The acceptance
department and personnel will carefully and independently
investigate the case and make appropriate treatment based
on the investigation results.

During the Year, the Group and its employees were not
involved in any litigation case relating to corruption.
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(Continued)

3.5 Procurement Management 3.5 KEE®E

The Group strives to promote the concept of sustainable
development and compliance governance to the supply
chain. We have formulated a targeted Procurement
Management System (FREEEIRHIE), which clearly sets
out the scope of procurement, the form of procurement,
the execution department and its responsibilities, and
carries out procurement based on the principle of Unified
Management and Centralized Planning (45— &12 + 447
£l) with appropriate price, appropriate quality, in a timely
manner, appropriate quantity and appropriate location (i&
& - @E - Bk - = - #H#) to improve the fairness of
procurement and monitor the social and environmental
performance of suppliers. We carry out procurement in a
fair and just manner according to the process; Suppliers are
required to submit supporting documents before
establishing a cooperative relationship, and they will sign
the Anti-commercial Bribery Agreement (I 78 2 BB BE 17 3%)
to ensure that they operate in compliance with laws and
regulations relating to anti-misconduct, anti-bribery and anti-
corruption. We advocate green procurement and use
environmental friendly products and suppliers, adopt the
principle of purchase first, use first (5cE& 5t M) to avoid
missing the period of usage and wastage.

The Group's major suppliers provide products and services
such as equipment, website operation and website
promotion. In 2020, the Group had a total of 30, 1 and 19
suppliers in Mainland China, Hong Kong and overseas,
respectively.
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BUILDING PROFESSIONAL TEAM

The Group is committed to creating a healthy lifestyle for its
employees, focusing on the well-being of all ages, promoting
sustainable, inclusive and sustainable economic growth,
supporting decent employment and innovation, and
implementing development-oriented policies. We strictly abide
by the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China (FFZEE A R It
B4 E))%), the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(B E)ARDA), Law of Protection of Non-Adult of the People's
Republic of China (;REXFF A{RE)E) and Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour (2 |F#AZ T4 ) to protect
the basic rights and interests of employees, and focus on
cultivating information-based R & D and operation teams through
training and employee activities.

The following is a summary of the employees of the Group
during the Year (as at 31 December 2020):

Employee Statistics in 2020

TEEXRE K

AEEF N REIMERRENER - &
BEFIREBOREL  REFA - BFM
AREEEER XHRELEME
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BEBBIINE TABHEHIBEEEL
TS ANE = B o

U TReAREERN(EHZE2020F12 A31H
I AEEREENBER

2020 FEEE#T

Unit
Index =g BN

Total number of employees BEHAY
By gender &R Bl 5
Female employees T E B BE
Male employees EHEE B
By employment type RERERES
Supervisor level or below FERKRATETL
Management level KRBT
Director level and above BEERNIALEET
By age RERAERE D
Employees aged under 35 (excluding BHmEATETL
aged 35) (& 355%)
Employees aged 35-45 (including 355468 T
aged 35 but excluding aged 45) (£35mNE455%)
Employees aged 45 and above (including A5 MIAEET
aged 45) (B 455%)
By geographical region R E B 5
Employees in Mainland China REIRREES T
Employees from Hong Kong Eat@mE T
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4 BUILDING PROFESSIONAL TEAM (Continued)
4.1 Employment Rights

4 ITEEXEER @)
4.1 EEER

The Group has formulated the Employee Handbook (£ T Fff),
which clearly stipulates the rights, responsibilities and
obligations that employees can enjoy during their term of
office. Through clear articles, employees can understand
the Company's requirements, understand their own rights
and interests, and ensure that they understand the
expectations of both employees and the Company.

Recruitment and Resignation Management

We value talent acquisition and promote team diversity.
We recruit suitable talents based on their experience, work
performance and job nature. Candidates must be selected
through interviews and the process will not tolerate any
form of discrimination, including gender, sexual orientation,
disability, age, race, nationality, family status or other
factors protected by law.

We are strongly against the employment of any child and
forced labour. When employees join the Group, we require
them to provide their identity cards for their age, so as to
prevent child labour from the source; At the same time, we
reserve the right to require our employees to provide
personal information such as residence certificate,
education certificate and job skills/qualification certificate to
ensure the authenticity of their information. During the
Year, we did not employ any child and forced labour.

Talent is the foundation for the steady development of an
informationalized enterprise. We actively retain talents.
When employees resign, relevant personnel of the
department and the Human Resources Department will
arrange interviews to listen to employees’ opinions and
suggestions, and identify the management-related issues
and the staff’s turnover rate. We closely monitor the staff’s
turnover rate and in a timely manner took effective
measures to retain staff.

AEBBIECEIFM) - FMeAmE
ARNERARE T ZZMNE
o BRETHEETMNERS  BBE
MEOEREET — M T AFRRE
2R —TETRASNES
RAFKBRBEETHHE -

ABRBRERE

BAERATHE - TREEKS
T AR - THERIR LB
EREFRMEBEA AL  EE
FRBBEAIE  BREBTER
EATE AR - B3R - X
M~ B R Bk BEE X
B R EAM SRR RENEE -

BPIBIR B IS A E ] E T M og i
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BRENBENERN - RAFE
W BPRDRBRAET kogHlss
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4 BUILDING PROFESSIONAL TEAM (Continued)
4.1 Employment Rights (Continued)

4 FEFEBEB (&)
4.1 EEER (&)

Employee Remuneration Management

The Group continues to improve its remuneration system
and has formulated the Compensation and Benefits
Management System (¥ Bi1& 7 & 2 #1 ), with incentive
remuneration distribution system as the core, and based on
the position, ability and value of employees, and in
accordance with the principle of “adapting to the market
and recognising value of talents to produce ‘incentive’”. As
such, the Group determines competitive remuneration for
employees. We will review the remuneration system by in
a timely manner to ensure that the remuneration package
is in line with the market. In order to reward employees
who work hard, we will also pay performance-based salary,
commission and bonus based on the Group’s development,
result of performance assessment and business
performance.

In addition to a timely manner’s review and adjustment of
remuneration, we also provide benefits to eligible personnel
in accordance with the requirements of the Benefits
Standard (48 %18 B 12 #), and create other welfare items
based on our operations and actual situations:

SIHMER
AEETETEHMER - $IET
(HrBEMERGIRE) - B IS
o BCHIE Azl - RIBE IAAE
Bz Beh - BE URRRIE
EMSRE  BRATEBE BE
MEER] WRA - RETEIZA
MIZHFENHH - HMSERE
B R - AR RETHS
%6 REHBNTHENET - &
PImERREBER - TIERRF
ERERMEERRFBNEREK
TE  RERMES -

BRiER T R A B HMIN - FAPITR
SRGEMIE B R2E) h r R E R M
BHFHEEEOAE - TERE
KEREBERBERGRE B IE
g :

Basic benefits e "“Five Social Insurances and One Housing Fund”— endowment insurance,
HEARER unemployment insurance, employment injury insurance, medical insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund

[Ag—%] — B2RE  KERR - TEHERR  BRRER  £5RBRE

Nk
e Paid leave
= R
Benefits e Transportation subsidies e Communication subsidies
REEREF KB A bRk
e Lunch allowance e Supplementary medical insurance
&AL MABERR
Care for welfare e Birthday and festival care
iR T HHARETABE
e 10th anniversary of admission
ARITREEE
e Team building activities
E2ES
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4 BUILDING PROFESSIONAL TEAM (Continued)

4.1

4.2

Employment Rights (Continued)
Recognition of Outstanding Employees

We have formulated the Reward and Penalty Management
Rules (22 1 #8 ) to set up job objectives and duties
with employees through performance appraisal, and
continuously supervise and guide employees to complete
work, and evaluate employees’ performance and
capabilities according to the target plan at the end of the
year. We took quantitative data and records as a reference
to help both parties to have a better understanding and
consistency to communicate on performance appraisal. For
employees, performance appraisal helps to understand
their own performance and capabilities, facilitates personal
improvement and progress, and sets goals and
expectations for the next stage of work. For the Group, we
apply rewards and punishments according to the results of
the appraisal, and base on which to consider the promotion
of outstanding employees, salary adjustment and bonus
distribution as rewards.

Talent Cultivation

As a technology-based enterprise, we continue to invest
resources in staff training to enhance their knowledge and
technical skills, and inspire them with different thinking
models to meet their work needs, so as to build a leading
professional team. We focus on speed and efficiency, and
continue to use the FAQ online platform, so that employees
can quickly find corresponding answers when they have
problems. We also promote knowledge sharing, mutual
learning and interactive learning, launch fun games, and
make use of our technological advantages to establish an
interactive platform for problem-solving, so as to enhance
employees’ learning interests.

4 ITEEXEER @)

4.1

4.2

BIERER (&)
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4 BUILDING PROFESSIONAL TEAM (Continued) 4 TESEXEBER @)
4.2 Talent Cultivation (Continued) 4.2 AFIEE (B)

During the Year, we held a number of themed trainings in REE  BRPISTHEBTE - £t

response to our business needs, including product sales TZEHNIEEY  REBTEER

and team building: HE « BIKER -
Name of Training Training Content
b g IR
Centripetal Training In order to adapt to the strategic development needs of the Company and
Camp promote scientific management, CE Dongli launched the Centripetal Training
mO A ERE Camp (A0 13l4R%E) project for the management from September to

November 2020. In the training, the management accepted a series of
progressive programs. The training is divided into three sessions, the first of
which is “Managerial Identity and Role Recognition (B3I2%& &) 51D E ML A
@B A)": The second phase is “Talent Management Thinking and Skills (A
A EIRH) BHEEREE)": The third phase is the “Target Management (B 1Z&
I2)". Through the three general management courses, managers are able to
fully understand the essence of management, which helps to effectively
manage talents. It cultivated the systematic management thinking of the
management of enterprises.

RBEARBRERTER  HHHEEE - 202099811 A @O
REBERRIMONNRE ITHE - #X —EBHENRE - BIH /=8 -
FHA(EBEENBNEMNEAGRM)  F_HACAST BEENBHER
Be) F-HIR(ERER) BA-HEAEETERE EBERZERHEE
BHAE  EOEREBASL BEDGEREZXREERLE -

Group discussions and sharing of views
SDHETR  HECE
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4 BUILDING PROFESSIONAL TEAM (Continued) 4 ITEEXEER @)
4.2 Talent Cultivation (Continued) 4.2 AFEB (E)

CE Dongli OMO Sales
Team
1> OMO $HE R EBIFX

Product Specialist
Training
EmEXRE

4.3 Health and Safety

Name of Training Training Content
BB BFIRE

In December 2020, “CE Dongli OMO (Online-to-Offline Integration) Sales
Team”, the first e-commerce sales team of CE Dongli, received a three-day
training. The training enabled the team to build up the team spirit. Each
member reached a strategic consensus, completed in-depth learning and
practical inspection, and explored the internet e-commerce market.
20205128 RPN E - ERHHEAS — [TEOMO(ERERTRE)
HERK ] #ETTRERIRNEI - WAKIIEEEEERE - §—EAKEE
PRI - TRAEEENES KRR  RAEBEERmS

In December 2020, the Group's product specialist shared their product sales
experience with colleagues from the commerce department emphasizing
“Selling only when you have the expertise so as to gain the recognition of
customers (B T EEMAHEREE A LFEIEFMFRA)", encouraging
colleagues to add value to their knowledge and apply them in product sales.
In addition to speech and sharing, experts also conducted problem
discussions and simulation drills with business representatives to gain a
deeper understanding of the current departments through interactive
analysis and put forward valuable opinions.

20205128 - AEENERERXRAEHNREIZTEREELSR - BAlF
TEENABRBREET BT FPNARN]  XBREFEBEBSSHAE - I
ERREMEE L - BRTIEHDZI  BREEFHERKETH B R LK
RER - BREBONMAATRERIFINER  RETEENER °

4.3 BEZZ®

Workplace health and safety are integral parts of our THESNEENETERERSE
business operations. Through the Employee Handbook ( & AR e — & D - BPBEB(E
T 1), we set out a number of information on health and ITFM&EsZEEEERALT S
safety to raise employees’ awareness of safety, and MEE ReEELILZ2EH  RE
promote healthy work, promote employees’ physical and REBBEIE (REEIFLRE
mental health, and reduce health risks. B OREERRER -

ZEZSEEFR ) PEREEEERAR
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4 BUILDING PROFESSIONAL TEAM (Continued)
4.3 Health and Safety (Continued)

4 ITEFEXEER @)
4.3 BEZZ (&)

To build a healthy workplace for safety, the management
guides, trains and monitors the work of employees for
safety. For work with higher risk, we will establish safety
protection measures to provide employees with necessary
protective equipment. In addition to the management'’s
supervision of the working environment, employees must
also abide by labour discipline, earnestly fulfill rules and
regulations, learn necessary first-aid knowledge, and
receive necessary education and training during their work.
We also conduct general safety education for new
employees, including companies’ safety regulations and
emergency measures, so that employees have the basic
concept of occupational safety and reduce the chance of
injury. In case of work-related accidents, employees are
required to report in a timely manner for quick handling. We
also provide assistance to employees in need in accordance
with the Working Injury Declaration and Approval Process

(TSR MEAIRE).

A healthy and positive lifestyle helps improve the overall
health and work efficiency of employees. As a result, we
have established the following facilities, in response to the
concept of healthy community promoted by the Group:

° Set up a breastfeeding room in the workplace;

o Adding fitness equipment at office and cultivating the
habit of our employees to do more exercise

During the Year, the Group did not have any work-related
fatalities, and the number of working days lost due to work
injury of employees was approximately 12 days,
representing a substantial decrease as compared with the
previous year. We will continue to train employees’
awareness of safety and improve protection measures to
avoid work-related accidents.
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4 BUILDING PROFESSIONAL TEAM (Continued)
4.4 Employee Care

4 ITEFEXEER @)
4.4 ETEIE

As an open technology enterprise, we attach great
importance to two-way communication with employees,
and encourage employees to fully express their opinions or
make reasonable suggestions on work.

We have set up an employee suggestion box, which is
directly managed by the general manager, to receive and
handle employees’ questions, opinions and suggestions,
and give replies within a specified period of time, and keep
the identity of employees confidential. We also conduct
employee satisfaction surveys, and seek employees’
opinions on business, management and other aspects
through irregular and anonymous surveys to understand
their overall satisfaction with the working environment.

In addition, we are committed to creating a healthy and
pleasant working environment, maintaining the physical
and mental health of our employees and enhancing their
morale and work efficiency. We advocate “Company is a
big family of all employees (‘A &2FTH B TAHMKH KKE)"
and build a closer relationship among employees through
team building to build cohesion and enhance sense of
belonging.

ER—RAMAPHERE - &M
ERESTEREAR ZWMETH
THERDERBEIIELAE(LE
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4 BUILDING PROFESSIONAL TEAM (Continued) 4 TESEXEBER @)
4.4 Employee Care (Continued) 4.4 ETEE®E)
Employee Activities Content
ETEH AT
Qixi Festival In order to promote and inherit the excellent traditional culture of the Chinese
il nation, CE Dongli continued to hold the “Qixi Festival” with the theme of

“Passing on the Qixi Festival and love CE Dongli” (£ &1 - BEF D).
Employees from various departments have prepared posters representing
the characteristics of the department, which fully demonstrated the creativity
and cooperation of the team, and conveyed the positive pursuit of life value
to everyone.

RLBNERPERKESFESRUL P NAFEEERN [0 8])F
B FERIV/EE BERE] EHFEIAFEOEXHHHIET R
REBPIFENER  TORFEKNEIE N REERIE  BEENOALEE
BRERGEAR -
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4 BUILDING PROFESSIONAL TEAM (Continued) 4 TESEXEBER @)
4.4 Employee Care (Continued) 4.4 ETEE®E)
Employee Activities Content
BIEE AR
Programmers’ Day The programmers play an important role in the development of the Group.
CENR A=A To reward their contributions, CE Dongli organized a Programmers’ Day in

October 2020 to hold a “heart, brain and body” competition. Participants
were divided into different teams to collaborate with each other to challenge
different tasks. The event is a combination of fun, entertainment,
collaborative and competitive activities, with a warm atmosphere, allowing
programmers who are accustomed to static work to feel the joy of sports,
and to release their emotion and do exercise.
BFrEESERETHEZEZENAE  REEMMNER - FEEB AR
2020F10 AR TIRF BET - |/ —I50 - K - BHOKLLB - 2MEFEH KT
RM - BEREE - RECTRMER < BB ERBIRME - REM - HIEERERF
MR—F - BIRRAZ  FEENSFRIENREFERIIES IR
BRULE » RRF 8 -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
MANAGEMENT

The Group attaches great importance to environmental protection
management and our principal activities operation is
concentrated in the office, which has minimal impact on the
environment and natural resources. However, we are aware of
the urgency of climate change and future environmental
challenges, and we pay attention to the environmental measures
in the office area, and actively incorporate green elements into
relevant management. The Group strictly complies with
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
(AR H F1 & 38 55 1R % J&) and Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the People’s Republic of China (FF & A R L FIE
55 %[5 A& %) and other laws and regulations related to
environmental protection. The disclosure scope of environmental
key performance indicators for the year has included the whole
Group.

5.1 Green Operation

Since 2017, the Group has collected environmental data
through this reporting platform and filed the data well to
track the source of data and prepare for future goals. We
actively promote green management and strengthen
environmental performance in terms of energy efficiency,
waste management and resource consumption.
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5 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 5
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

5.1 Green Operation (Continued)

REREEE ()

5.1 #B%E ()

Energy Saving and Consumption Reduction B RERR 2

In terms of lighting, the Sino-i Campus headquarter is
equipped with glass materials to make full use of natural
light; We also regularly assess the amount of lamps required
in the workplace to reduce excessive and unnecessary
lights. In addition, separate switches are set up in the office
to avoid opening unnecessary lighting areas; we also install
motion sensor switches in non-frequently used areas to
reduce power wastage. In order to improve lighting
efficiency, we give priority to energy-saving lamps and clean
the lamps regularly to maintain and improve efficiency.

In respect of air-conditioning system, the Group adopts
central air-conditioning system to effectively control indoor
air quality, temperature, air volume and humidity; The air-
conditioning system can be automatically turned on or
switched off after a specified time to avoid electricity
consumption caused by “long running of air-conditioning”.
We encrypt the gap of doors and windows to reduce the
loss of air-conditioning, and clean the dust screens regularly
to avoid lowering the temperature and increasing the energy
consumption due to poor ventilation.

Paper Conservation

For paper management, we reduce paper consumption by

reducing, reusing and recycling:

o Use computer for document processing to reduce
printing unnecessary documents.

FERRBA T H - 48RP ERAS 4T BUA BB M BHE
R - EoMBE R - BTG EHRT
EIESMERGEEANKE - MG
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5 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 5
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

5.1 Green Operation (Continued)

Waste Reduction and Recycling

REREEE ()

5.1 #B%E )

L BE B U

The Group promotes waste reduction at source and

encourages employees to properly separate waste and send

it to recyclers for reusing and recycling. The Group

implements the following waste reduction and recycling

measures:

° Reuse various types of stationery such as envelopes
and binders;

° Use pen refills to reuse pen barrels and avoid disposing
of the whole pen;

o Establish waste sorting bins to increase recycling rate;

o Use recyclable toner cartridges and ink cartridges.

Water Conservation

Although the Group's business does not consume a large
amount of water, we continue to manage water resources
and encourage employees to cherish water and contribute to
environmental protection. The Group implements the

REEEB)RBEREE - BB TIEERY
HEVE  WRAELRWEERRER LD
WRTE o AREE B HEIA TR B U B -

s HEFERZENXERM WEH-
AERE

s RABRENUEEMNAER &

REABXE

R D REKE - B NEY R

s FERAVBRRBANBMILESR -

1§ Ak

HAREENEBEBTHAEMK &
BADHEEIEKER  BETEER
K RERBENE - REBEHRIATE
RKEIRIEHE -

following measures to make good use of water resources:
o The headquarters increased the use of reclaimed water o
to reduce the use of precious water for irrigation or

AR nfE Ak - R A BB K
BREEAZENNR

cleaning;
o Reminders on water conservation are posted in o S B ZUKE R A2 18 Bk AV 1R
washrooms and pantries; Eg ;

o Regular inspection and testing to achieve timely e
detection and timely maintenance.

EHETREMAR  EE R
B REEE -
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5 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 5 RERBEE W)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
5.1 Green Operation (Continued) 5.1 #BEEHE)
The energy and resources consumption of the Group and 2020 AR S E M R R 1 &R OH
the results achieved in 2020 are as follows: FEERFEEREAT
Unit Consumption
Indicators BE By ERE
Electricity consumption kWh 2,626,742.43
TRk
tonnes 991.54
7
Municipal water consumption ~ MR HEKE tonnes 49,249.00
17
tonnes 6,784.18
17}
Non-hazardous waste produced HEEEZVELS kg 560,801.34
T
kg 1,071.61
F=
Hazardous waste generation EEEEYELAS kg 2,581.43
T
kg 17,239.44
5=
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5 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 5
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

5.2 Carbon Emission Management

REGREETE (&)

5.2 MPHERE

We understand the direct impact of climate change on our
business and society. To this end, we continuously seek to
improve our greenhouse gas emission management, and
refer to the international and national policies and
documents on climate change, such as the Paris
Agreement (E2221%:% ) and the China’s Policies and Actions
on Climate Change Annual Report 2019( A B jiE $f R (= &1L
B ER BI1TE) 2019 F ¥ s5) to keep abreast of the latest
trend of climate change issues and respond to strategy, so
as to provide a basis for the Group to optimize emission
reduction measures and set emission reduction targets.

The GHG emissions performance for the Year was
calculated in accordance with the Greenhouse Gas Protocol
(RERELEZTE) developed by the World Resources
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, and 1SO14064-1 set by the International
Organization for Standardization. Our greenhouse gas
emissions mainly come from the use of electricity, the use
of vehicles, and the use of water, materials and waste in
the office. During the Year, the total greenhouse gas
emissions of the Group was 1,613.34 tonnes of CO,e with
an intensity of 0.03 tonnes of CO,e per square meter.

In order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, in addition to
implementing energy-saving initiatives on lighting system,
air-conditioning system and electronic equipment, we also
promote low-carbon transportation and encourage
employees to take and share public transportation to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions and pollutant emissions
from vehicles. We also encourage our employees to use
fewer lifts and more stairs to contribute to the mitigation of
climate change.
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5 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

5.2 Carbon Emission Management (Continued)

The Group provides vehicles to facilitate employees’ travel.
In order to effectively reduce the air emissions caused by
business vehicles, we regularly arrange vehicle
maintenance to timely understand the issues related to
vehicle efficiency and avoid using more fuels and
discharging more pollutants due to low efficiency. We
obtained the following types of emissions and respective
emissions data by understanding the fuel consumption and
kilometers travelled by the Group’s vehicles during the
Year. Due to the change of the type of the vehicle, the
amount of emissions increased during the Year.

RE - HERERESE

REREEE ()

5.2 MPFRER(®)

AEBERHEEREMNLTDETH
17> BT BRUR D B E & 5| BH
ERBEY - HPE ML ERE
TRE - R T HR/TE MR
R - @ EMEEEMEREZN
KRR B PR 2 975 44 © FAPIiE
BT R NS B R T E R KA RE
ERTTRABWEM  [FHATH
M REREREREE - AFE
AR EWMBELBAE - HRY)
BT EF -

Unit Emission Data
Types of Emissions By ESE By B EE

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) AEEY (NOy)
Sulphur oxides (SOy) AL (SO
Particulate matter AR

kg 16.92
T

kg 0.06
T

kg 1.62
T

ZEZSEEFR ) PEREEEERAR

103 )



www.sino-i.com

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERERSE

6 CONTRIBUTION TO PUBLIC WELFARE 6 BERLAZHE
While actively developing its business, the Group also supports REBRBRBEREBENRE TS5 X
community engagement to give back to the local community and BFHERLE DRggthtEkaEEE
people in need. During the Year, a number of charitable activities AL AFEERREBEEZ TR
were cancelled due to the pandemic, however, we still fulfilled mAEFEHWEUE - A wMDEB
our corporate social responsibility through other non-physical HMEEELEMEE: BiIThELER
activities to care for the underprivileged. - BAI1E59/ LB -

Assisting the disabled to seek online legal services

BN REHESRE LRERE

With the advantages of its Internet business, CE Dongli provides FO4EAFIHAE S EBRALENESDS - A
technical support for the public welfare institutions to build an AZFHEEEM F T BERITSE -
online platform. In August 2020, we provided comprehensive 20208 A * &I 2t R BT EZBES
technical support for the establishment of the Accessible Remote  {ERFEELFF 32 R LR H B [ E BB R IR0
Legal Services Platform ([ R 2 X RERBF &) proposed by EIRE TS | (9L EI2H 2 BT L #F -
the Beijing Baixingyi Public Services and Research Center, which #ZF & EEEEEATRETNHPH SR
aims to enable people with disabilities to seek legal services ERERR - EEL & MBEBIEF  HMHa
without leaving their homes. During the construction of the EHFR%EGE LB REBEEE XM IFE -
platform, we are responsible for developing online optimization and ~ H &)1 & & &9 IEF) 2 12 _E 45 SR E%
subsequent project technical support. CE Dongli has made /] BN HTE ZEEREE -
unremitting efforts for the smooth establishment of the platform to

benefit more disabled families in China.
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Appendix 1: Highlights of Sustainable Development Data fiég— : IS ERXREERE
Environmental KPlIs Unit
RIEABERIER By

tonnes of CO.e

Wi —SE(LIREE 1,613.34
tonnes of CO,e/m?
WE—SEIE R TR 0.03
Fuel consumption
WRRHH #E
Vehicle gasoline consumption liter
PRl 0ba: nF 3,975.63
kWh
T FLAF 2,626,742.43
kWh/square meter
FTRE,FHK 46.85
tonnes
17 991.54
Municipal water consumption’
M AKE!
Total municipal water consumption tonnes
MR AKES 8 49,249.00
Municipal water consumption intensity per square meter tonnes/square meter
BY A REBENTERAKEE g, oK 0.88
tonnes
U7 6,784.18
! The Group draws its water resources from municipal water and has no ' REBHKERERRETHBANK  EEFUKE
difficulty in obtaining water. RLERARRE -
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Appendix 1: Highlights of Sustainable Development Data Misg— : AISEREEERE(H)
(Continued)

Environmental KPls Unit
RIBARENIEE B

Hazardous waste

BEEEY

Total hazardous waste kg

BEEENERE F= 2,581.43
Hazardous waste intensity per employee kg/employee

BHREINEEREEDTE Fr/8T 0.48

kg

T 560,801.34
kg/employee

FR/BT 103.51
kg

T 1,071.61
kg

T 17,239.44
kg/employee

FR/BT 3.18
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Descriptions

EBRRR

A. Environmental
AREEE

A1: Emissions

Al:
2358
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HEELD R

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant

A1

A1.2

A13

A14

A15

A1.6

—REE

A11

A1.2

A13

Al4

A15
A1.6

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
RRERLEERBHN  MARIHNET BEREEEEY
MEESH : (@QBE : RO BTHETAREAYENEBEER
HRBIEER o

R kAR R -

RERBAEREREE -

ELRERRNEERTE -

FELBRERENEEREE -

HIREH BRI R ASHR o
WHEREAEREZERYNIE  REELENEHEIAGRR o

Me— BERBMAXSZM(RE  HERER

Relevant chapter

REREHE

5. Environmental Protection
Management

5.2 Carbon Emission
Management

5.2 Carbon Emission
Management

Appendix 1: Highlights of
Sustainable Development Data
5.1 Green Operation

Appendix 1: Highlights of
Sustainable Development Data
5.1 Green Operation

Appendix 1: Highlights of
Sustainable Development Data
5.2 Carbon Emission
Management

5.1 Green Operation

2T E R
b2MREENER

figr— : ARELERIERE
b.14xEBEE

figr— : AREERIBHE
hligEEE

figr— : AIFELERIEHE
b2MREENER

b.14xEEE

ZEZSEEFR ) PEREEEERAR
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Appendix 2: Index of the Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide

(Continued)

Descriptions

BERE

A2: Use of General Disclosure
Resources

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A25
A2: —RiNE
BERfEA A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A25
A3: The General Disclosure
Environment
and Natural A3.1
Resources
A3: —REE
RERKAER A3

wE

M= @ &&

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total and intensity.

Water consumption in total and intensity.

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is
fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

Total packaging material used for finished products and with
reference to per unit produced.

BERERER(REER  KREMRME)OBE -
REREANERR/LMELR(NE Rk BRERTE -

BRKEBREE -

HB R RE ARG B LTS R o

R SKEGER KR A EARRE - KRR RK R B R FAEK
Eo

HXmARBEMHNRERBLESEUGE -

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

REBTARRERAREREXEATY ENHE
BHEBEDERGRARERNBEAYERERAEREATE
#1778 -

108 ) Sino-i Technology Limited ) Annual Report 2020

BREM(RE
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CHERER

Relevant chapter

il

5.1 Green Operation

5.1 Green Operation

Appendix 1: Highlights of
Sustainable Development Data
5.1 Green Operation

Appendix 1: Highlights of
Sustainable Development Data
5.1 Green Operation

5.1 Green Operation
Appendix 1: Highlights of
Sustainable Development Data

Not applicable as no packaging
material is used for the Group's
business

bR EEE

BIREREE

Mish— - IRERRIBHE
bIKEEE

Misk— : AREEREERE
BAREEE

bR EEE

Migk—: IREERYERE
TNER  FEEWRB SR
BEMH

5. Environmental Protection
Management

5. Environmental Protection
Management

REEE

b IRIER
bIREREEHE



Appendix 2: Index of the Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide

(Continued)

B. Social
B.A 2 #E

B1: Employment

B1:
R

B2: Health and
Safety

B2:
REEZ2

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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General Disclosure

B1.1

B1.2

-REE

B1.1
B1.2

General Disclosure

B2.1
B2.2
B2.3

—REE
B2.1

B2.2
B2.3

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to

compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,

and other benefits and welfare.

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and

geographical region.

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical

region.

ERTMEFE REREA  IENE - B FEHe 2o

b REBAREMFEREHN : (@BERER O ETHETARE
FEORMEERRINER -

IR BREE  FRAERRMEEHNES RS -

RIR - FRAR KRS DHESRALE -

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

Lost days due to work injury.

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted,
how they are implemented and monitored.
BAREZ2TERERREEESMEBENSEN : @FEK: R
(b) BTHETABEAY ENEBERRRINER -
RIEBRMETMABRILE -

RIGERIERY -

HRPTRANBERRREZ2EN  UREERTREEE

wWww.sino-i.com

Me— BERBMAXSZM(RE  HERER
HEESD R (F)

Descriptions
EERR

Relevant chapter

il

4. Building Professional Team
4.1 Employment Rights

4. Building Professional Team

Consider to disclose in the
future

LATHEEEEN

4.1 [E(RHER

4ITEEXER
ZRNAKBE

4.3 Health and Safety

4.3 Health and Safety
4.3 Health and Safety
4.3 Health and Safety

A3RFELE
43BFELRE

43BEZE
ARFEZE

ZEZSEEFR ) PEREEEERAR
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Appendix 2: Index of the Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide

(Continued)

Descriptions

BERE

B3: Development General Disclosure Policies on improving employees' knowledge and skills for

and Training

B3:
EEREE]

B4: Labour
Standards

B4 :
STEL

B5: Supply Chain
Management

B5 :
HEgER

B3.1

B3.2

-RiE

B3.1

B3.2

General Disclosure

B4.1

B4.2

—REE

B4.1
B4.2

General Disclosure

B5.1
B5.2

—REE
B5.1
B5.2

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management and middle management).

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.

BERMEERTIEBRENMERRENOBE - HEIED -

RUERREERER (NEREEE TREEES)ENNTIIESR
BAL
ZURIREEERNS D  BREETNZIN TR -

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
child and forced labour.

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.
ABMIEETHAHSETH : (QFE RO EBTHETABERY
ENEBEERRDINER -

fiR AR EINEEAREET RAHST
HRERRERBERSEREAERRRA LR

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

ERMHERNRR R ERREE -

RRE S NAERHE -

R AEEARERNEN  nERTHEEMNMHEREE - U
REBENNBITRERRE
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Relevant chapter

il

4.2 Talent Cultivation

Consider to disclose in the
future

Consider to disclose in the
future

bINAEE

ZENARKE

ZRNARBEE

4.1 Employment Rights

4.1 Employment Rights

4.1 Employment Rights

41 ERER

4.1 ERHEN
41 EREN

3.5 Procurement Management

3.5 Procurement Management
3.5 Procurement Management

ShRBERE
3HEREER
3HIREERE
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Descriptions

EBRRR

B6: Product
Responsibility
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General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4
B6.5

—-RiKE

B6.1
B6.2
B6.3
B6.4
B6.5

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

Number of products and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how
they are implemented and monitored
FRMREERNRENRRERZS B  SERLBEENUR
BRAER - @BEK : RO EFTERTAREAYENEREER
ROIEVER -
EEHDERERBEETAR T BRFEMMADNNA DL, -
BREENERRRBORFEE A REHTE

it iR g KRS MBER B ER -

it mERTREREMRIKER o

R B ERHRE RILBECR - UREHERITREE R -

Mex— BERBMAXSZM(RE  -HERER
HEESD R (F)

Relevant chapter

HBED

3. Compliance Operation and
Governance

3.3.1 Standardized Process
3.3.2 Customer Orientation

3.2.2 Maintenance of
Intellectual Property

3.3.1 Standardized Process
3.1 Information Safety

331 RERIE
332%F AL
3.2.2 A ERE
33N FEE
JNEERE

ZEZSEEFR ) PEREEEERAR
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Appendix 2: Index of the Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide

(Continued)

Descriptions

EBRRR

B7:
Anti-corruption

B8
Community
Investment

B8 :
HERE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant

B7.1

B7.2

-RKE

B7.1

B7.2

General Disclosure

B8.1

B8.2

—REE

B8.1
B8.2

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

BRI AR BR  BEFREREMN : @BE: RO EFTEHES
ANBERZENRBEERRBINER -
REGHNHETAZHESREVERENRSHARMENEA
PE TN

fnp R RRER  ARBERTRERTE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities” interests.

Focus areas of contribution, e.g. education, environmental issues,
labour needs, health, culture, sports.

Resources contributed to the focus area.

BRME2ERTREEMEHEFRNRRERBEDHEZE
HERMEAOBER
EIERSE(0HE  BRREFE SIFK B b BE)-
EEIERMBAER -
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Relevant chapter

HBED

3.4 Anti-corruption

3.4 Anti-corruption

3.4 Anti-corruption

S4BRRE

34BERE

6. Contribution to Public
Welfare

6. Contribution to Public
Welfare
6. Contribution to Public
Welfare
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
|

EEE - +852 2218 8288

{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINO-1 TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sino-i
Technology Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 121 to 251, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

25t™ Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
&
FEEEH11158

KR H>251E
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill and non-financial assets

(Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the
Group'’s critical accounting estimates and assumptions in relation to
the impairment of goodwill and non-financial assets set out in note 4.1)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had goodwill and non-financial
assets amounting to approximately HK$80 million and HK$171 million
respectively relating to cash generating units (the “CGUs") within the
enterprise cloud services segment.

Management has performed an annual impairment test in accordance
with the Group's accounting policies and concluded that there is no
impairment in respect of the goodwill and non-financial assets. This
calculation was based on value in use calculations.

We identified the impairment of goodwill and non-financial assets as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and because the value in use calculations involve
significant management judgement and estimates with respect to the
underlying cash flows, in particular the average sales growth rate and
discount rates.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
of goodwill and non-financial assets included:

— considering the historical accuracy of management'’s budgeting;

— conducting in-depth discussions with management about the
cash flow projections used in the value in use calculations and
challenging the appropriateness of the significant assumptions
and critical judgement areas which underpin the value in use
calculations;

—  benchmarking the growth rates and discount rates used in the
value in use calculations against independent industry data and
comparable companies; and

— performing sensitivity analysis including assessing the effect of a
change in the key assumptions to the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs.

1na ) Sino-i Technology Limited ) Annual Report 2020
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of loans to immediate holding company

(Refer to note 26(b) to the consolidated financial statements and the
Group'’s critical accounting estimates and assumptions in relation to
the provision for impairment of receivables set out in note 4.1)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had loan receivables from its
immediate holding company, Nan Hai Corporation Limited (“Nan Hai"),
amounting to a total of approximately HK$1,505 million. Among these
loan balances, approximately HK$1,006 million is bearing interest at 8%
per annum, repayable on 29 June 2021 and secured by a share
mortgage on Listar Properties Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Nan Hai; approximately HK$343 million is bearing interest
at 8% per annum, secured by a share mortgage on Listar Properties
Limited and repayable on 20 June 2021; and the remaining balance is
interest-free. The Group has appointed an independent professional
valuer to assist in assessing impairment of loans to Nan Hai.

We identified the impairment of loans to immediate holding company
as a key audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and because the impairment assessment
performed by management involves assessing the creditworthiness of
Nan Hai and hence a significant judgement and estimates in
determining the recoverability of the loans to immediate holding
company.

38 3 2 B AT R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of loans to immediate holding company
(Continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
of loans to immediate holding company included:

— evaluating the competence, capabilities, independence and
objectivity of the independent valuer;

— conducting in-depth discussion with management and the
independent valuer to understand the business plan and working
capital forecast of Nan Hai, the valuation methodologies used to
estimate the impairment and the significant assumptions and
critical judgement areas applied in the impairment assessment;

— assessing the methodologies used and the reasonableness of
the key inputs and assumptions made by management and the
independent valuer, such as the estimation of credit-rating, the
default probability and the loss given default of Nan Hai, the fair
value of the share mortgage of Listar Properties Limited, forecast
economic conditions and other forward-looking information;

— checking the accuracy and the relevance of the key input data by
checking against independent source of data; and

— engaging external independent valuation specialist to assist us in
evaluating and assessing the appropriateness of the
methodologies, key inputs and assumptions used in the
impairment assessment.

16 ) Sino-i Technology Limited ) Annual Report 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
38 3 £ B AT R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Sino-i Technology Limited Annual Report 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number P05440
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z=2020F 12 A31 BIEFE

2020
HK$’000
TR

Revenue Wz 5(a) 972,139 963,567
Cost of sales and services provided THE MR MRS 2 B AR (153,988) (164,332)
Gross profit EF 818,151 799,235
Other operating income HAnge & A 5(b) 135,024 140,168
Selling and marketing expenses HERMSEEERY (526,526) (623,645)
Administrative expenses THAX (67,775) (75,636)
Other operating expenses HEg &MY (225,807) (193,752)
Expected credit loss on financial assets £ BEE Y FEHEEEE 7 (8,693) (570)
Finance costs BE KA 8 (5,575) (4,998)
Share of results of associates FE(LEEE N A LA 17 (599) (5,466)
Impairment on interests in associates Ef &N T 2 R E 17 (2,598) (2,853)
Profit before income tax TS Al a 9 115,602 32,483
Income tax expense SR X 10 (4,588) (10,116)
Profit for the year EREF 111,014 22,367
Profit for the year attributable to: R ATEEFERER :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ =N 111,014 22,209
Non-controlling interests JEfE i 37 = 158
111,014 22,367
HK Cent HK Cent
AL il
Earnings per share attributable FRAEAQTHEEA
to owners of the Company EEERER
for the year 12
— Basic —ER 0.56 0.11
— Diluted — s 0.56 0.11

ZEZSEEFR ) PEREEEERAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REEHEBEBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% 2020512 A 31 H1IEF/E

2020
HK$’000
FET
Profit for the year FRIER 111,014 22,367
Other comprehensive income Htt2E K=
Items that may be reclassified subsequently —E{EAJfEE# HIHZE
to profit or loss: BmiRsIEE -
Exchange differences on translation of B EBINETEBI ISR R 2
financial statements of foreign operations [E 5 =58 3,541 (4,967)
Exchange differences on translation of BREIEBE N NR BN =5
investment in associates 789 (264)
4,330 (5,231)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZERFHEEE 115,344 17,136
Total comprehensive income RTATEEZEKRSEEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PIN/NSIEZ SN 115,344 16,978
Non-controlling interests JEPR AR RE RS - 158
115,344 17,136
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB R R R

As at 31 December 2020 72202012 A31 H

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - WEREZE 14 95,821 98,313
Financial assets at fair value through BARBETAHLMEZE S
other comprehensive income ZERMEE 15 324 324
Interests in associates P /N o 17 22,961 26,947
Goodwill Bz 18 79,515 75,766
Other intangible assets HinmEEE 19 75,248 97,158
Loans to immediate holding company  AIBEEER AT ER 26(b) - 1,397,088
273,869 1,695,596
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables JEUE 5 FE 20 36,303 43,927
Deposits, prepayments e BRFIER
and other receivables E MR IR 21 198,092 83,097
Loans to immediate holding company AEEERARER 26(b) 1,504,957 -
Cash and cash equivalents B MERIESIER 22 265,080 293,838
2,004,432 420,862
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables FERE 5 FhE 23 32,493 38,015
Other payables and accruals HEMEAFOELERE A 24 88,698 66,266
Dividend payables FET AR S 13,400 13,400
Contract liabilities aHatE 25 274,694 215,222
Provision for tax TR IE B 173,922 167,859
Amount due to a director R—BEFFE 26(a) 532 532
Amount due to immediate REBER AR FIE
holding company 26(b) 16,683 23,339
Amounts due to associates i /NCIE ] 26(c) 2,944 4,887
Bank borrowings, secured BIERITEER 27 37,200 33,527
Other employee benefits Hithlg 8&F 28 24,383 28,451
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 23,983 24,691
688,932 616,189
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (868 FE 1,315,500 (195,327)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBER 1,589,369 1,500,269
ZEEFEER FEHEEEERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRHRE (F)

As at 31 December 2020 720204 12 A 31 H

2020
HK$'000
FH&T
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Other employee benefits HEiEEREF 28 5,771 36,508
Lease liabilities HeEadE 29 24,238 21,152
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBEE 30 2,771 3,499
32,780 61,159
Net assets EEFE 1,556,589 1,439,110
EQUITY e
Share capital AR 31 240,597 240,597
Reserves HE 35 1,315,992 1,198,513
Total equity RSB 1,556,589 1,439,110
On behalf of the board of directors REREES
Liu Rong Chen Ming Fei
2z R S 7
Director Director
EE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REREREMRK

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 FE&xT T
Cash flows from operating activities REXKESHRE
Profit before income tax FriS % Al A 115,602 32,483
Adjustments for: BLTFIIEE FHE
Depreciation of property, plant Wz - BERRETE
and equipment 14 13,158 14,369
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 14 36,558 41,001
Amortisation of other intangible assets  E{th & E i 19 27,885 23,845
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEZRAABERA
at fair value through profit or loss EaifzeMmBEE 2 e 5(b) - (3,917)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BEX
and equipment F 2 Was 5(b) - (1)
Loss on lease modification HEEHRZEE 48 -
Covid-19-Related rent concessions 2019 AV EAR R S5 48
HEER 5(b) (1,484) -
Write-off of property, plant YIZ - BE MR
and equipment 14 54 5,021
Write-off of other intangible assets Hib R & E s 19 8,657 -
Expected credit loss on financial assets 4 REE 2 EHEEEE 7 8,693 570
(Reversal of)/Provision for other Htbfe 8EF (Bm=),/
employee benefit B 28 (26,868) 30,458
Bank interest income HRITHEHA 5(b) (539) (634)
Other interest income on financial REERAGTECEMEEY
assets measured at amortised cost H bR B UL A 5(b) (107,869) (107,869)
Finance costs BYE R AN 8 5,575 4,998
Share of results of associates S N ¥ 17 599 5,466
Share-based payments expense AR Sz 34 2,135 2,135
Impairment loss on other HEm|mpEERERE
intangible assets 19 2,827 1,507
Impairment loss on interests NN W oy W=
in associates B8 17 2,598 2,853
ZEEFEER TESHBEESERAT 125
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
BERERERK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2020 2019
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 FE&xT T
Operating profit before working EEEASEBA
capital changes 48 A 87,629 52,285
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables [EUE 5 FIER L (3L h0) 1,475 (21,164)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments e~ FEAFRIE N E At pE Uk
and other receivables SIER AL 5,569 7,634
Increase in trade payables, other JERTE S - EfhEM IR
payables and accruals N e E g 11,224 947
Increase in contract liabilities S4B EEN 43,326 8,135
Decrease in other employee benefits HEifE 8RRl (9,947) (8,526)
Cash generated from operations BEMERS 139,276 39,211
Income tax refunded/(paid) BB (B TR 577 (1,755)
Net cash generated from EEEEPTSIRE F5
operating activities 139,853 37,456
Cash flows from investing activities REZEHREHRE
Payments to acquire property, plant BHEDE BMEAREZNR
and equipment 14 (7,069) (6,615)
Payments to addition of other RNEHMBEEE 2K
intangible assets 19 (12,817) (29,637)
Deposits paid for acquisition WEEWB AR EMiES
of subsidiaries (109,700) -
Decrease in financial assets at fair value & AR BETAEZREY
through profit or loss DRELE ER D - 51,682
Bank interest received BUIRTTFI B 539 634
Repayment of loan interest from BEEERAB 2 ERFIEER
immediate holding company - 194,888
Proceed from disposal of property, plant HE¥E - BE & &
and equipment FriSskIE = 25
Acquisition of assets, net of W& E - Mk
cash acquired BARS 32 - (2,262)
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEES (FTiE) /FT3IR & /55
investing activities (129,047) 208,715
Sino-i Technology Limited Annual Report 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Www.sino-i.com

RERERERK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILFE

2020 2019
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 F#&xT T
Cash flows from financing activities BIEFEBHRERE 42
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEETSRIE 44,959 34,048
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITEE (43,498) -
Repayments of finance lease liabilities (&g EHEAE - (2)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEAE (33,630) (38,379)
Decrease in amounts due to associates /K4 /A &) 7 B (1,802) (656)
Repayment to immediate MEEERARER
holding company (13,177) (13,170)
Special dividends paid BRI E - (96,130)
Interest paid BAFE (5,575) (4,998)
Net cash used in financing activities MEESER S FEE (52,723) (119,287)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReMERRSIER
and cash equivalents CRi) /i hn%EE (41,917) 126,884
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1A1HZIRE& N
ZEILIER 293,838 170,417
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, SMNEE RSB EFTIFIRE 2
on cash held 2 13,159 (3,463)
Cash and cash equivalents at M12A3MBZEER
31 December ZEIIRLIER 265,080 293,838
Analysis of the balances of cash HeRERREER
and cash equivalents EeRZ DT
Cash at banks and in hand BITRERERFRE 265,080 293,838
TESEEFR TESHBEESERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

Equity attributable to the Company’s owners
FRAEHEEARLESR
Share-
Capital based
Share distribution General  Exchange  payments Retained
capital reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve¥ profits* Total

- R4 % 13
BE  oEREE* —REE* ERRE* ZiRfE* RERH* &F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THET TET TER THET TET
(note 31) (note 35(a)) (note 35(b)) (note 34)
(Kt&E31)  (KizE3s(a)) (BEE35(b) (KtzE34)

At 31 December 2019 and H20195128318 K
1 January 2020 20201 81A 240,597 52,622 (41,148) (4,070) 2,313 1,188,796 1,439,110

Profit for the year FERER - - - - - 111,014 111,014
Other comprehensive income  H {2 H iz

ltems that may be reclassified ~ EZFGE#H 72 E#K
subsequently to profitor loss: ~ ZIEH :

— Exchange differences on — REBINEBIB TR

translation of financial ZIERER

statements of foreign

operations - - - 3,541 - - 3,541
— Exchange differences on — BEREHENT

translation of investment ZIERER

in associates - - - 789 - - 789

Total comprehensive income  ER2EKFAE
for the year - - - 4,330 - 111,014 115,344

Share-based payments expense  SARR 2 2 B
(note 34) (Fi7E34) = = - - 2,135 - 2135

At 31 December 2020 R2020512 8318 240,597 52,622 (41,148) 260 4448  1,299810 1,556,589
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REEREHX (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ 202012 831 B It F[E

At 1 January 2019 R201951518 240597 52,622 (31,907) 1501 (114) 178 1276231 1539,108 (73400 1,631,768

Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - 22,209 22,209 158 22,367
Other comprehensive income  Eft2 Fl

ltems that may be reclassified  ER AR EH A EZERE
subsequently toprofit or loss: ~ ZEA
—Exchange differenceson ~ — AEENEBEBER

translation of financial JERER

statements of foreign

operations - - - 4,967) - - - 4,967) - (4,967)
—FExchange differenceson  — BERABLAT

translation of investment in JERES

associates - - - (264) - - - 264) - (264)

Total comprehensive income ~ ER2AUREE

for the year - - - (5,231) - - 22,209 16,978 158 17136
Specilduidend e 1)~ ERIRE (1) - - - - - - 0950 (109530 - (10950
Share-based payments expense AR S 2 B (Bt 34)

(note 34) - - - - - 2,135 - 2,135 - 2135

De-vecognition of financial asset ¥ - EAH AL BEA
at fair value through other E2ElGE s REE

comprehensive income - - - - 114 - (114) - - -
Acquisition of additional interests BB AREN &R

in subsidiaries - - (9.241) (340) - - - (9,581) 7182 (2,399
At 31 December 2019 R2019512A318 240,597 52,622 [#1,148) (4,070) - 2313 1188796 1,439,110 - 1439110

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * SRR B ARG IR SRR 2 4R & e
HK$1,315,992,000 (2019: HK$1,198,513,000) in the consolidated statement #91,315,992,0007% 7T (20194 : 1,198,513,000
of financial position. BIT) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PSR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino-i Technology Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong. The address
of its registered office and its principal place of business is
located at 12/F., The Octagon, No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong. The Company's shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”).

The immediate holding company of the Company is Nan Hai
Corporation Limited (“Nan Hai"), a company incorporated and
domiciled in Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. The directors of the Company consider the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Dadi Holdings
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is principally
engaged in the provision of enterprise cloud services. Details of
the principal activities of the Company's subsidiaries are set out
in note 16.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 121 to 251 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") which collective term includes all
applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, the financial statements include the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2. FEEHHEREH®)

2.1 mEEE(H)

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income which are
measured at fair values. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new or revised HKFRSs and impacts on
the Group's financial statements, if any, are disclosed in
note 3.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases. The results
of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of the disposal, as
appropriate.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and
losses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset
sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is
also tested for impairment from the Group’s perspective.
Amounts reported in the financial statements of
subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the
Group.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Sino-i Technology Limited Annual Report 2020

2. FESTHEMEH)

2.2 FEREEE

RAMBREBIEAR A RENE
NEEEEF12A31 B IL 285
Rk o

MEA RN G REREASER
A AR WRNMEHIRER EREUR
HAAR - FRABASHENBR
Al AR RBAENARESRHE
HELRB L (RERIBRME)
FPARA ZERERE

REHEZR S REBARRE &
PRI R R 30 st % B 1R i R
RAEMBRRKEE - HEERA
AIHEEHEZABRBERGA
R RIRARER AR EE
BEETRERNR - B AR
BHRERMBEECHEARERFHL
HE - UEREAASEMREAZ
GETHBUR -

AEERMB AR 22BN
BEREEGIE - AR AR
5 o AR B KO 2 Bk
EEHSTLAEE  ARBREZER
MEBAR AL RS 28 - K
BRI S © R B PA N Sl P UK
REAABEZEMERE  BER
BaER YTERBRARREA

o

>

NG B R AN B AR I AR
HERRRUTHEZEZE ()2
WREZ AR BEREAIREER
ZARBEZERE  Bi)ZMBA
AZEE(BEEE) KA BRER
FEERR MR 2 B ERREE o AEER
ZMBARER  NEMEE RS
Rz RUEHBEEXA
ERF PR E 2 R TT AR -



Www.sino-i.com

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interest
having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee's pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company's profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHEREH®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Associates 2.4 BENT]
An associate is an entity over which the Group has BE N ABAERUEEEATE
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a MIEBRHNEBARKEELHZE
joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to BB EAFEELHERTRENR
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of I R BB 2 T IRt
the investee but not control or joint control over those S FEHIZ S BUR ©
policies.
Associates are accounted for using the equity method BENTERBEREAR Bt
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, Bt N B SR AN ERER - Hi&
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group's share of ERmMEARAEEELES AR
the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets BEFENBEEZHELAZE K
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the BHAEBERE S AR 2R E
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation BTEeRR RIEEETZLERE
to make good those losses. ZEEBRE -
Profits and losses arising on transactions between the AEBHEBESNFETRSE
Group and its associates are recognised only to the extent & 2w R ETE - E AR E A A
of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The Z MBI E BN AR T AR
investor's share in the associate’s profits and losses R ZERHEEZIREEEN
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the /NI I W | 1 = BRI R: RN
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses RIZEREMEYE - WMAFREER
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred NFEREEREDAEE  BIFH
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss. BB AR A 1B IR BRTERR ©
Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of BHME AR BN ZEMREBE A
the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and SEEGAPREBAENEE  AaF
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in DSREBEZ AR BEZSRESE
the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is FEN Wt ABZE QR ZE®@
objective evidence that the investment in an associate has B - WEREBEBB RN S AT
been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is ZIHEHREE - A EEEmER
tested for impairment in the same way as other non- Ht I EERRZ T IVETR
financial assets. BRI -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

2. FEEHHEREH®)

2.5 ]S

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date retranslation
of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. FESTHEMEH)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group's
presentation currency, have been converted into Hong
Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into the Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from this procedure
have been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the exchange reserve in equity.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005
have been treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing rates. Goodwill arising on acquisitions of foreign
operations before 1 January 2005 is translated at the
foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition
of the foreign operation.

Other exchange differences arising from the translation of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative exchange differences recognised in the
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the date
of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHEBE (5
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 06 Yk  BWERNDE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost W R N EREIRE AR AR 2
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment HITE RS REREEYE - BE
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price KABIEBEBLEZEEEZESH
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to WE AR BRI RAE 2R
the working condition and location for its intended use. HEER -

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their WETIATIER » PMustelE 8
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the FHIFHREETIR - DAMGE B RERK
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum: AR BIE -
Buildings 5% s 5%
Leasehold improvements, 10% to 33-1/3%, HEMERE - 10%=33-1/3%
furniture, fixtures and or over lease terms R KB s AT EHAR
equipment whichever involves KEE (LA E A%E)
shorter period
Motor vehicles 10% to 33-1/3% EE 10% £33-1/3%
Right-of-use assets arising from Over the unexpired RKEAEEWIE HREREHEES
leases over leasehold term of lease PSR B R i
properties whereas the Group BEAZHE
is not the registered owner YEZHEZ
of the property interest FRAESE
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and BEZHNGEE HEHEREA
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at FHNZRE AR EEaglE
each reporting date. SR e TR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHEBE (5
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.6 W%  BMERRZ®E )
The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is WENEE s REBREEMENIE
determined as the difference between the net sales FEHEERAECERET I
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is RIBZRIRFER -

recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying HEBER AR BEEZZIBEABZ R
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, REEHENmAB ARG RARNEE - B
only when it is probable that future economic benefits ZIEH ZREER SEETER 0 A5
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the ABEZRAENEREE L EE
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs, (RBEABERME) - A EMMaEE
such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or MRESERAN  WEELSZBHE
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred. R EEEENR -

2.7 Operating lease prepayments and land use right 2.7 REHERARERLHFER

r

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests EAEKESTNREHE LW RETF
of properties which includes both leasehold land and BHERNNYEREREERE &
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated HREEAE L REFEH M
between the leasehold land and the building elements in IRAERENRAE AL BEL G
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition. To HEITHI - AR FRAE SR St
the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be EToREzBEAN  WERAE L
made reliably, upfront payments made to acquire leasehold ZHENFRIBEGEESMBARAERZ
land is presented as “right-of-use assets” under “property, (% - BB REE] B THEIE
plant and equipment” in the consolidated statement of BEEE] WIER AR ZTITE
financial position and stated at costs less accumulated RAEMZRGHREREESR - TED
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. RIE AR F IR E gAY
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the g OEMAEEMEETERRAE
term of the lease/right of use except where an alternative B GRSz 2 FREER
basis is more representative of the time pattern of benefits U

to be derived by the Group from use of the land.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Goodwill

2. FESTHEMEH)

2.8 BE

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill
arising on acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for
goodwill arising on acquisition of investment in an associate
is set out in note 2.4.

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the aggregate of the fair value
of consideration paid and the amount recognised for any
non-controlling interests, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss on the acquisition date, after
re-assessment.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses (note 2.18). Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combination. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata
on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in
profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHEBE (5
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Goodwill (Continued) 2.8 BE®)
Impairment losses for goodwill recognised in an interim R HEEER 2 2R EBET
period are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the ERTEARRER - BMEERZTP
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been BRI B B 2 BT T TS 4 RSP
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the 2 BB T il FE MR AR S R sk R
end of the financial year to which the interim period relates. BOEE - TR HBREER A

BRI SRE -

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or CGU, any HEHENBARSIRSELESN
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the calculation W REEHE 2 WaEsEERE
of the gain or loss on disposal. FEAE B REE -

2.9 Other intangible assets and research and 2.9 Htt B EE R ERE
development costs
Other intangible assets Hth@\EEE
Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost. FIT s B f 2 8 B W) 2P HR PR AR FERR o
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful MFERE - BRERFHEE
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and BERKAR 25 R AN R
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for BEBEBARK - BRERAFHE
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on TEEE 7 #HN E L 5T R A F
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. NEBETIREE - BEEERT]
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are EARFIGBEN - U TRAERZ
available for use. The following useful lives are applied: AR E -
Computer software 5 years BRI 5%
Development cost 5 years DN 5%
Licenses 10 years R HR 104F
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it HERX A SEREEE 2 BT
increases the future economic benefits embodied in the 2 R BRI 0B 77 T IAE
computer software to which it relates. All other expenditure K- RBEEMAX N BEERX
is expensed as incurred. 3
Intangible assets are tested for impairment as described BVAERE N XME2.18FlE
below in note 2.18. tERERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Other intangible assets and research and
development costs (Continued)

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in
profit or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly
attributable to the development activities are recognised as
intangible assets provided they meet the following
recognition requirements:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset
is demonstrated;

the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
can be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development along with an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. The costs of internally generated developments
are recognised as intangible assets. They are subject to the
same subsequent measurement method as externally
acquired intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets

2. FESTHEMEH)

210 EMEE

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirely when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2. FESTHEMEH)

210 EWMEE (&)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"):
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest,
are measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial assets
at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective
of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for
debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
FVOCI, as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2. FESTHEMEH)

210 EWMEE (&)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at
FVOCI are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to
profit or loss. All other equity instruments are classified as
FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") on trade receivables and other financial
assets measured at amortised cost. ECLs are a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses, which are measured as
the present value of the difference between the cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e.
expected cash shortfalls). The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial
assets. The amount of ECLs is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition
of the respective financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2. FESTHEMEH)

210 EWMEE (&)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECLs for trade
receivables under simplified approach that result from
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 15.
Lifetime ECLs represent the ECLs that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
asset. The ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date.

For all other debt financial assets, the Group recognises
lifetime ECLs when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. When the credit risk on a
financial asset has not increased significantly since initial
recognition (i.e. stage 1), the Group is required to measure
the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs, which represents the portion of lifetime
ECLs that is expected to result from default events on a
financial asset that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. When the credit risk on that financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition (i.e.
stage 2) or when the financial asset is a credit-impaired
financial asset (i.e. stage 3), the Group recognised lifetime
ECLs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2. FESTHEMEH)

210 EWMEE (&)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. In particular, the following
information is taken into account when assessing whether

ERMEEZRERSE ()
R EREEZEERRES
)2 HERR R A IR G AR - AN B
ERMEENREARELZENR
RESREENVITHERAHES
ZEHRBEITHLE - EITHE
B AEEEERAEAIREZTEE
KEWEH  BREBELRLEA
TEBTUERASIE NN ESZ
RIEMEER - LER - SHEEER
D B HERERIEE NS
ZRTHER

credit risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the e SRIEBEENH(WMEA) IR
financial asset's external (if available) or internal credit EEFIRCERRFEHEK
rating; =i

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, o FEFteEREFABEER
financial or economic conditions that are expected to ETRENKIETRE 2
cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to ISk EMR R 2 IR A T8
meet its debt obligations; Bz R EE

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the ° BAKEERLE 7 ERNTE

HIERRIE =X

operating results of the debtor; or

. significant increases in credit risk on other financial . Hf{ii%}\ﬁﬁﬁipﬂﬁFz
assets of the same debtor. BRI 2 ERIEM -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2. FESTHEMEH)

210 EWMEE (&)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial assets are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial asset is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) the financial asset
has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group also considers
a financial asset to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHEREH®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 EREE (&)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued) SREEZRERE(E)

On the other hand, a financial asset is credit-impaired when B—7E eREEE—HEHNMA L

one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the BHEH(HZEREEMDFTRK

estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have MEREBRIAE) AR

occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired MEERE - 2EEHREZER

includes observable data about the following events: BrBBRBREER T EH 28

RHIE

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the o BT ANHERABAEARNY
borrower; TN

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or o EBERAZERARBBER
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial ABT TSR 2 2 &8sl & #4938
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a BHMETERAERATT
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise ERE BRI
consider;

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter o BRABIEHESETH
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or MBFFSEEZR ¢ 3%

e a breach of contract, such as a default or past due e EREGH - HluEHNNEH
event. E g

In addition, the Group considers that an event of default AN REBRE - W 7 EKRE

occurs when there is a breach of financial covenants by the T NI ER 2B INEE

counterparty; or information developed internally or TRER 7 AR AR EBR AT ARG

obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is MEGERA(BIEAER)BENR

unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (TZRAEEFE 2 E KR

(without taking into account any collaterals held by the ) v BIBAEENSEMH - Emim bl

Group). Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that SR REBRE  HErE

default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 EBEBIBEIOH  RIELELNSE

days past due unless the Group has reasonable and . BRIEAREBE G IAE ERA

supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging BAERET AEENSEEE

default criterion is more appropriate. B BIERIER ©
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2. FESTHEMEH)

210 EWMEE (&)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial assets with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for the financial assets that are
measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in reserve.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks or financial institutions
and short-terms highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the
purpose of cash flow statement presentation, cash and
cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

2.1
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHEREH®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial liabilities 212 SRIE &
The Group classified its financial liabilities depending on the AREBRTHELEEZENSES
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. REESE-
The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other AEEZSRHEBBEREENE IR
payables and accruals, dividend payables, amount due to a TH - HMEMERETER - JE
director, amount due to immediate holding company, HEE - R —RBE=ERIB - NEE
amounts due to associates, bank borrowings, other PR A BIFNIE ~ REES N R FRIE
employee benefits and lease liabilities. They are recognised RITEE  EMEERILEES
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and & EREBEVFRANBENR
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the FTEAZZXSKRATER  EBLE
effective interest method. B ORAR S ANET 2 -
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes STREBERAEBERAZOZEN
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. All IEXETA S HER - BTEEERE
related finance costs are recognised in accordance with the KABIBEREEER@BLER A&
Group's accounting policy for finance costs (see note 2.20). SRR (RMiFE2.20)
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation SRABENNEBa EREWFER
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. sk eE i ek fE M AR I ERERR o
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another W—EEESHBEEMAREZTA
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or RER PR ZIGETIRHZ BEME
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, IBEAR - IRA BEERIEEE
such an exchange or modification is treated as a oM AR S e AR EAR | R
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a REERAELER—BHEERE
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying P HEREEEBZEHSEEZ
amount is recognised in profit or loss. BRFERR ©
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial liabilities (Continued)

2. FEEHHEREH®)

212 EWEE )

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are measured at initial value less the capital
element of lease repayments (see note 2.14).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHEBE (5
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial guarantees issued 213 ERHZHKER

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the B ERE LIEFA AEKETA
issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to (ERA)INIETESEE - LABEE
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified BEAREETEBEARGEKRERKT
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with BRI EIE R PTEmRRIE L 2 &
the terms of a debt instrument. 4 o

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value BN E B B SRR BIASE
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income RZ AR BEYVIZNEMERNIE
within other payables. Where consideration is received or R AL A o B3 YEREF
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the B ERARE - RETDRERE
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group's BEEMEEEREAZEREDR -
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such BEIWED WK ERARE  RYIZPHE
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate RIRIEU A B2 BRF R 1B 25 BR P FE
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition RHAX o

of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as VL HERBRLERA Z ERETER
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term EREAFEIEREDEE - EAK B
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees OB EER WA o 1A - 10
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised if and when it EREFEAEABAUEREBEERESK
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will call EEER MAAEEREZESHE
upon the Group under the guarantee and the amount of BHRERTEREE (Y ER
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the current ZarEm st (w@Ea)) o 8l
carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised less TR -

accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

152 ) Sino-i Technology Limited ) Annual Report 2020



Www.sino-i.com

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Leases

2. FESTHEMEH)

214 HE

Accounting as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases; and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying
asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-
value assets and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of a lease.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise:

() the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability);
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued) 214 HE (&)

2. FESTHEMEH)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset (Continued)

(i)  any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (see note 2.18),
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which is
held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset arising
from the properties under tenancy agreements are carried
at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments:

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by:

(iii)

increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability;

reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and

remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change
in future lease payments arising from change in an
index or rate, a change in the lease term, a change in
the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any
lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the probability
of a lessee extension or termination option being
exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease
liability to reflect the payments to make over the revised
term, which are discounted using a revised discount rate.
The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly revised
when the variable element of future lease payments
dependent on a rate or index is revised, except the discount
rate remains unchanged. In both cases, an equivalent
adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use
asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised
over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any
further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a
lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or
more additional assets being leased for an amount
commensurate with the standalone price for the additional
rights-of-use obtained, the modification is accounted for as
a separate lease, in all other cases, where the renegotiated
increases the scope of the lease (whether that is an
extension to the lease term, or one or more additional
assets being leased), the lease liability is remeasured using
the discount rate applicable on the modification date, with
the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount.
With the exception to which the practical expedient for
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions applies (see note 3.1),
if the renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the
lease, both the carrying amount of the lease liability and
right-of-use asset are reduced by the same proportion to
reflect the partial or full termination of the lease with any
difference recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is
then further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects
the amount of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the modification date
and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Provisions and contingent liabilities

2. FESTHEMEH)

2.15 BERHREE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

2.16 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services, excluding those amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Bundled services

The Group provides a one-stop bundled services from
domain name registration, website design to website
constructions with specific add-on features to the
website to small- and medium-enterprise ("SME")
customers. The Group accounts for these contracts
as a bundle of goods and services and such bundled
services as a whole is considered as a single
performance obligation. Revenue from such bundled
services is recognised over time by reference to the
Group's inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation relative to the total expected input.
Payment received in advance that are related to the
provision of such bundled services not yet delivered
to customers are deferred and recognised as contract
liabilities.

Sino-i Technology Limited Annual Report 2020
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Www.sino-i.com

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Internet-based services

The Group renders various internet-based services
such as internet marketing product and domain name
registration service without further bundling with
other services to customers. Revenue from provision
of services is recognised when the services are
rendered according to the terms of the agreements.
Payment received in advance that are related to the
provision of internet-based services not yet delivered
to customers are deferred and recognised as contract
liabilities.

Corporate cloud service

The Group provides various corporate cloud products
such as global corporate email, cloud storage and
cloud computing products to SME customers.
Revenue from the corporate cloud services are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the contract
period. Payment received in advance that are related
to the provision of corporate cloud products not yet
delivered to customers are deferred and recognised
as contract liabilities.

Advertising service

The Group also provides advertising service to
customers, through its network resources in the
information technology industry, where the Group is
not the primary obligor, does not bear the inventory
risk nor have the ability to establish the price. Service
fee is recognised as revenue on a net basis at the end
of each month. Invoices are issued on a monthly
basis and are usually due on presentation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(v) Otherincome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’'s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2. FESTHEMEH)

2.16 Wz T ()

Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to
fulfil a contract when those costs meet all of the following
criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the cost relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.

2.17 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
included in liabilities as deferred government grants in the
statement of financial position and are recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets. Government grants relating to income is
presented in gross under “Other operating income” in the
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

2. FESTHEMEH)

2.18 FEMEERI(E

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
interests in subsidiaries and associates are subject to
impairment testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets that are not available
for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they are
impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, when an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those CGUs that are expected to benefit from synergies of
the related business combination and represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purpose.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

2. FEEHHEREH®)

2.18 FERME ERIE (8)

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which goodwill
has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGU, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or value
in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset'’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.19 Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the
reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PSR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Retirement benefits

The Group operates several staff retirement schemes
for employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China, the
People's Republic of China (the “PRC"), comprising
defined contribution pension schemes and a
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") scheme. The
assets of these schemes are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered
funds. The retirement schemes are generally funded
by payments from employees and by the relevant
subsidiaries of the Group.

The subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
required to participate in the defined contribution
retirement scheme for their employees, organised by
the relevant local government authorities. They are
required to make contributions to the retirement
schemes at a rate of 12% to 20% (depending on the
locations of the subsidiaries) of basic salaries of their
employees and there are no other further obligations
to the Group.

Before 1 December 2000, the Group operated a
defined contribution retirement scheme (the “ORSO
Scheme”) in Hong Kong for all qualified employees.
The rate of contribution payable by the Group was 5%
of the individual employees’ monthly basic salaries.
The Group's contributions under the ORSO Scheme
were reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who left the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. There are no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment
of the fixed contribution.

164 ) Sino-i Technology Limited ) Annual Report 2020

2. FESTHEMEH)

219 BE®/A (8)

(ii)

RKEF
rEBEREBERPEARHK
ME(THE]) Rz EER
HHBIRE TIRIKEHE - B
REHRFERMRE S KR H
MrREe(RES DS -
SEMECEERARE
BENRRE mBILERE
EeRH - RRFFEzER
—REKEEERAEEHEH
B B X B AR

AR B R AT & 2 BT B A )
BAREZRELHEBEH
5 BN B S s 2 FOE
SKIRREE - WAKRERES
ZEREHEZ12%E20% (B
SRIAMB A B AT ) MR
STEMER R MASLEEL
mEME—FSEME -

200012 A1 BA - &AN&E
BAREMBEEREERE
B —ER T HIRIKE
FTEI([BEZERIRETEI D) o &
SEHEMSHRIZEEREETN
BERREBAELAH & 2
5% ° AN BEIARIR B SR KA
BERZHR - ATLERE
RAZERZKAEEHER
AR 52 5T &) M o8 oz 3Rk
R - R EsEHRE
AN B EAT (] S i —
SRR ETSIHEETES ©



Www.sino-i.com

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
has approved the ORSO Scheme as a Mandatory
Provident Fund Exempted Occupational Retirement
Scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the "MPF Schemes
Ordinance”). With effect from 1 December 2000, the
MPF Scheme was also set up under the MPF
Schemes Ordinance for existing staff who opt for this
scheme and eligible staff recruited on or after that
date. When the underlying staff elects the MPF
Scheme, pension scheme benefits attributed to the
staff under the ORSO Scheme remain unchanged in
the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, eligible
employees are required to contribute 5% of their
monthly basic salaries whereas the Group’s monthly
contribution will be 5% of the relevant employee’s
basic salaries with a maximum monthly contribution
of HK$1,500. There are no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment
of the fixed contribution.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.
Liabilities and assets may be recognised if
underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as they
are normally of a short term nature.
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(ii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PSR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Share-based employee compensation
Share option

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees.

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the date of grant. Such fair
value is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period with a corresponding increase in the share
option reserve within equity. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at the
end of each reporting period so that, ultimately, the
cumulative amount recognised over the vesting
period is based on the number of options that
eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are
factored into the fair value of the options granted. As
long as all non-market vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately before
and after the modification, is also recognised in profit
or loss over the remaining vesting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Share-based employee compensation (Continued)
Restricted share award scheme

The Group operates a restricted share award scheme
(the "Restricted Share Award Scheme”) and
restricted shares may be granted under the Restricted
Share Award Scheme for remuneration of its
employees and directors (“Restricted Shares”).

All services received in exchange for the grant of any
Restricted Shares are measured at fair value. These
are indirectly determined by reference to the fair
value of the Restricted Shares granted. Its value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact
of any service and non-market performance vesting
condition (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets, if any).

All services received is ultimately recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if
vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when Restricted Shares
granted vest immediately unless the expense
qualifies for the recognition as asset, with a
corresponding increase in “Share-based Payments
Reserve"” within equity.

If service or non-market performance conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting
period, based on the best available estimate of the
number of Restricted Shares expected to vest. Non-
market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of
Restricted Shares that are expected to vest.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any
indication that the number of Restricted Shares
expected to vest differs from previous estimates. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share-based payments
reserve.
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(iii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

2. FESTHEMEH)

219 BE®/A (8)

(iii) Share-based employee compensation (Continued)
Restricted share award scheme (Continued)

Where a grant of Restricted Shares is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the grant is
recognised immediately. This includes any grant
where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met.

The Restricted Shares awarded under the Restricted
Share Award Scheme are issued by the Company to
custodian at nil consideration. When the Restricted
Shares are transferred to the awardees upon vesting,
the related service costs of Restricted Shares vested
are debited to the “Share-based Payments Reserve”
and credited to “Share Capital”. Where the Restricted
Shares held for employee share-based payment
reserve are revoked and the revoked shares are
disposed of, the related proceed is transferred to
“Share Capital”.

2.20 Finance costs

Finance costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other finance costs are
expensed as incurred.

Finance costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of finance costs
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.
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Www.sino-i.com

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes

2. FESTHEMEH)

221 ez Bt BE L E

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which
they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit including
existing taxable temporary differences will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable
nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

2. FEEHHEREH®)

221 FREH 2Bt BE S E (8)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when liability is
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.

2.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that certain bank interest income, finance costs,
other interest income on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, gain on disposal of financial assets at
FVTPL as well as corporate income and expenses which
are not directly attributable to the business activities of the
operating segment, are not included in arriving at the
operating results of the operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHEREH®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Segment reporting (Continued) 2.22 D EE |, (@)
Segment assets exclude corporate assets which are not DEMEETBIEWIFERESE AEM
directly attributable to the business activities of any RENB 2 EBRB 2 BEEE -
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment. BTeokEzns WERERE
These include loans to immediate holding company, certain BERARER - ATHREREER
cash and cash equivalents and financial assets at FVOCI. HWeHE UAMEAREBE AR
2HNEZEHEE -
Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are DEBENBRELIFEE SR AL
not directly attributable to the business activities of any E%ﬁ%ﬂZ%%ﬁ@JZﬂ:%EF
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment. SN EDE - WEBIERIIEA
These include provision for tax, deferred tax liabilities, Tﬁﬁ REFIEEE  REEZER
amount(s) due to immediate holding company/a director/an UNCIVEaES & Sl - UNCIP N
associate and dividend payables. ERERMRKRE -
2.23 Related parties 223 BER
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@ MBI TAL AlFZALX
related to the Group if that person: FATZBRERNEB B
JE
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) 7 il 5 2L B 1 I AN £
;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (il HEEEBERTE:
B9
(i) is a member of key management personnel of (i) RAEEHAKRQF]
the Group or the Company's parent. A2 EEBEREKE °
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (o) W& TFEM ﬂﬂﬁF AE
conditions apply: RS EARHE
() The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBEAEEER-
same group (which means that each parent, EEKERAR(AIE
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the FRA - MEARKRA
others). RWEAREILEE
) o
(i)~ One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (il —HAEBRS—EEZ
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a BENAHAEERE
member of a group of which the other entity is (KE—EBEKER
a member). AZEBETHKE AR
ZHMENRSEED
%) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

() that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)~ children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wWww.sino-i.com

PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective

on 1 January 2020

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new or revised HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2020:

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018

The adoption of these new or amended HKFRSs has no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. KMEBUYBBREEAN(TER
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) BMBEREEN]) @

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 3.1 AT R RIET B BY B |

on 1 January 2020 (Continued)

The Group has elected to early adopt the amendment to
HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
retrospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendment
provides an optional practical expedient allowing lessees to
elect not to assess whether a rent concession related to
COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees adopting this
election may account for qualifying rent concessions in the
same way as they would if they were not lease
modifications. The practical expedient only applies to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequent of the
COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following
conditions are met:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

(b) the reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021;
and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all
qualifying Covid-19-Related rent concessions. Rent
concessions totalling HK$1,484,000 have been accounted
for as negative variable lease payments and recognised in
other operating income in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2020, with a
corresponding adjustment to the lease liabilities. There is
no impact on the opening balance of equity as at 1 January
2020.
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PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

3.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

Annual Improvements to Annual improvement project?
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

EWERBUBREEN(TEFR
B RHREER ) @)

3.2 T M {E & R4 # el ;AR

BT B BMBREER

TR T RAEBSRA M BREA
W2 AT RS B Bk
RIS AR + MR A RO RAE A
S ERT M - AEEE FHRZ
SRR ARERSEDY -

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —

Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?
Amendments to HKAS 39,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, Phase 2'
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

4 The amendments should be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on
or after a date to be determined.

5 Effective for business combinations for which the date of
acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

3.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these new or revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial performance
and positions and/or the disclosures to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

4. EEETHEFRHE @)

4.1 EEGHEFTREBR (@)

(Continued)
Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates and amortises property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets other than goodwill
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life, and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
5% to 33-1/3% per annum and 10% to 20% per annum,
respectively, commencing from the date on which the
assets are available for use. The estimated useful life
reflects the directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the Group's property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets.

Provision for impairment of receivables

The measurement of the ECLs allowance for financial
assets measured at amortised cost is an area that requires
the use of significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of
customers defaulting and the resulting losses). A number
of significant judgements, including determining the criteria
for significant increase in credit risk, are also required in
applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECLs.
Details about the judgements and assumptions used in
measuring ECLs is set out in note 2.10 to these financial
statements. Changes to these estimates and assumptions
can result in significant changes to the timing and amount
of ECLs to be recognised.

TEREHE

REBEYE - BELZREBUALRE
BN BB EE - 1REFH
FRFHUANERZETINE ki
i WRER R EGFRGER
% BREEAHERAE /RS 5
5% 2£33-1/3% % 10% £20%
ZERFERBY - AErAERAF
HRMEFHNAEEEEEEHA
REBME - BB N A R E A
B AEESZ ABEEN =AM
ZAhEr ©

P& W SR TR B R

IRB KA EZ EMEETE
EMEEERBEARRAERAR
REBERREREETR(AEFEZ
MRBEEBIRZATRE) 2EARR
2B ZHEXAE (BREE
EERBRBEZENZITE) FAR
REMAEEMEERRZEH
E - ARt ERMERERMRA
A e B R 2 HIB RN R FE T R
=MIFE2.10 - ZFHAH REBRZE
BRI EYHRRENEERR R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

4. EEETHEFRHE )

4.1 EEGHEFTRER (@)

(Continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2.18. The recoverable amounts of CGUs
have been determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates about
future cash flows and discount rates. In the process of
estimating expected future cash flow management makes
assumptions about future revenues and profits. These
assumptions relate to future events and circumstances.
The actual results may vary and may cause a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of goodwill within the
next financial year. Determining the appropriate discount
rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment for
market risk and for asset specific risk factors. Details of the
estimates of the recoverable amounts of CGUs containing
goodwill are disclosed in note 18.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting
date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or CGU and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

4, EESTEFTRAE @

4.1 EEGHEFTREBR (@)

(Continued)
Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxes and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises taxes based on estimates
of the likely outcome with reference to current tax laws
and practices. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income taxes
and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses will be recognised when
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax
assets and taxation in the periods in which such estimate is
changed.

BN A H 1A R IR E B TR

REBAZGNBENPBEMAER
BERER AR EM AR
ZESEAEHEAHE - —RER
BREPAAER S LA EEEREY)
BEERKDE - AEEZ2EHRITH
ERER - RIBAEFT AL 24
RERTIA - MRS FERK N
HEGEYREZ TR - HER
KR EIEL A RETE BRE 2 AEH
AR IR -

EEERAARETFEIRAERER
HIRTEEE T LA 2 KRR ERTR
R RIEREE R Z R MR
ERERZRLERAEE - E18H
HREEREFAETR  ZFERHE
ENZFEFTHRZ R BT
MIREE MR 2 HER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s

4. EEETHEFRHE )

42 ERAKEEHBRIEELZ

accounting policies
Research and development costs

Careful judgement by the Group’s management is applied
when deciding whether the recognition requirements for
development costs have been met. This is necessary as
the economic success of any product development is
uncertain and may be subject to future technical problems
at the time of recognition. Judgements are based on the
best information available at each reporting period. In
addition, all internal activities related to the research and
development of new software products are continuously
monitored by the Group’s management.

Control through contractual arrangement

Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership in 1t 2 #1438
275 (= B BT A R A & (Beijing Xinnet Cyber Information
Company Limited) (“Xinnet”) and its existing subsidiaries
(collectively as “Xinnet Group”), the Group is able to
control, recognise and receive all the economic benefits of
the business of Xinnet Group as the Group: (1) shall have all
requisite power and unrestricted rights, acting as a
principal, to control and manage all aspects, at its sole
decision and its own benefit, over Xinnet Group by virtue of
the power of attorney; and (2) shall have right to assume all
profits of Xinnet Group under the management and
technology services agreement. In view of the foregoing
reasons, the Group has determined that it has the practical
ability to unilaterally direct the relevant activities of Xinnet
Group and significant benefits derived from Xinnet Group
and therefore has consolidated Xinnet Group as wholly-
owned subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

5. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

(a)

The Group's revenue is derived from contracts with

customers of enterprise cloud services.

In respect of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2020, approximately HK$57,591,000 (2019:
HK$23,047,000) and approximately HK$914,548,000 (2019:
HK$940,520,000) were transferred to the customers at

point in time and over time respectively.

Other operating income:

5 KWm@RkHEMEEKA
@ AEERFEKECEERBZES

At

AEBEEZE2020F12 A31HIEF
& 2 Wz #957,591,000 % 7T (2019
£ 123,047,000 ) R FE — K[
BB R 0 £)914,548,0007%
7T (20194F : 940,520,0007% 7t ) 8l
BEREERERERF -

(b) HAEEWA -

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
F&xT AT
Bank interest income RITHFEWA 539 634
Other interest income on financial REENATECERMEE
assets measured at amortised cost 2 HAF WA 107,869 107,869
Exchange gain, net [ 5 W e 558 = 6,039
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BENMKREZWZE
plant and equipment - 1
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEZRAA BEFAEBRR
at FVTPL 2 ERVEE 2 WES = 3,917
Government grants (note) BRI 5E) 390 2,111
Refund of value-added tax AR 20,783 18,117
Covid-19-Related rent concessions 2019 VAR S EEHE S TR 1,484 -
Sundry income IR 3,959 1,480
135,024 140,168

Note: It represented grants to subsidise the development of IT
business in the PRC, of which the entitlement was

unconditional.

MIAE - ZEF AR R AR ITRE R RE
Rewbh ZERWTRZENR

AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
identified the enterprise cloud services as the only business
component in internal reporting for their decisions about
resources allocation and performance review.

2 RER
ARAEEg (B HALEER
BIRERREERD BN RBEFEN
YRR BB S M — AR EE D

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Reportable segment revenue BEE e 972,139 963,567
Reportable segment profit/(loss) before ] 25 EATEH AR T (E518)
income tax 43,448 (67,785)
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 65 273
Other interest income on financial assets  IZEESEK A E Y SMEEY
measured at amortised cost E b F B UA 107,869 107,869
Depreciation of owned assets BEEBENE (128) (443)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE (1,552) (2,390)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment #13 - = & 25 & il 84 - (4,796)
Exchange (loss)/gain, net FE 3 (E518), Wk 558 (23,419) 6,341
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HEZRARBEFABREZ
FVTPL TREE WS - 3,917
Finance costs BhE RN (31) (148)
Unallocated corporate expenses ADBERY (10,650) (10,355)
Profit before income tax FT 1S3 B4 A 115,602 32,483
Reportable segment assets AE2MHPEE 728,126 619,960
Loans to immediate holding company MEEZERATER 1,504,957 1,397,088
Cash and cash equivalents REMERRSIER 42,398 94,653
Financial assets at FVOCI BARBEAEMERERES
ZEmMEE 324 324
Other financial and corporate assets HihomMEbEEE 2,496 4,433
Group assets SEEE 2,278,301 2,116,458
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. aHER®
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&x FHBT
Reportable segment liabilities Ao IpaE 502,257 455,019
Amount due to immediate holding REBEER A RIRIE
company 16,683 23,339
Amount due to a director R—BEEZFIA 532 532
Amount due to an associate R—EE & N B FIE 5,482 5,490
Provision for tax IR 173,922 167,859
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 2,771 3,499
Dividend payables JE A% 2 13,400 13,400
Lease liabilities HeEaE = 1,682
Other corporate liabilities HinbEE(E 6,665 6,628
Group liabilities SEEE 721,712 677,348
Additional segment information B 0 2 &8 &
Bank interest income |ITHFEMA 474 361
Finance costs B KA (5,544) (4,850)
Share of results of associates JE(REEE N RIS (599) (5,466)
Impairment on interests in associates REEE N RSB (2,598) (2,853)
Depreciation and amortisation of S RMEETE R
non-financial assets (75,921) (76,382)
ECL on financial assets TREEZRBEEEE (8,693) (570)
Impairment loss on other intangible assets {8 12 & 2 5 (E & 18 (2,827) (1,507)
Write-off of other intangible assets H b & E (8,657) -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment % - 5 & 25 {54 (54) (225)
Additions to non-current assets FRARBIFRRBEE
during the year 54,777 59,171
ZEEFEER TESHBEESERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group's revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets (other than financial instruments) are divided into
the following geographical areas:

6.

oEER (®)

AEBEB TP 2 Wam R EIFRE
BE(EBTARINZRTIIRES -

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REYHNEE W BEFRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT T FE T T
— Mainland China (domicile) — B Aty (FTEEIZR) 972,125 963,549 273,380 296,466
— Hong Kong —&HB 14 18 165 1,718
972,139 963,567 273,545 298,184

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
geographical location of the specified non-current assets is based
on the physical and operating location of the assets. The
Company is an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong where the Group has the majority of its operations
and workforce in Mainland China, and therefore, Mainland China
is considered as the Group's country of domicile for the purpose
of the disclosures as required by HKFRS 8 "Operating
Segments”.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did
not derive more than 10% of the Group's total revenue from any
single customer.

7. EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS ON FINANCIAL
ASSETS

BN DIRERR B IR S -
— RWE SR

Loss allowance recognised on:
— Trade receivables

7.

BEPMAEM IR HRG A EZ
B D o FEEIRBEEMAEM IR
BEZERNMEEWEE D - KRFS
REBEMA L ZLEEBR AR - Nk
BAREMHEBRE TR EAM -
FEt - S BB IS S RS 85
[(REDE) 2 WEMS - AEEEHE
A SRNEE 2 FRIEBR -

HZE2020F 2019512 A31 B IFFE
AEEVEAEIME-—RFIEFEBBEAR
EEBEWZE10% 2 W -

TRHEECHMFEERBR
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT THET
8,693 570

Details of impairment assessment on ECLs for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in note 45.4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2= 2020F 12 A31 BILFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMRK
2020
HK$'000
FET
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEEZF B 1,920 822
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZFE 3,655 4,176
Amount recognised in profit or loss RiEmRER 2 258 5,675 4,998
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. FiBHANRER
The Group's profit before income tax is arrived at after charging: NEBFTET AR T MR T2 &8
BIFH -
2020
HK$'000
FTET
Auditors’ remuneration ZE BN £ 2,169 2,386
Depreciation of owned assets* BEBEFE* 13,158 14,369
Depreciation of right-of-use assets* FRREETE* 36,558 41,001
Expense relating to short-term leases EHEAEE Y = 142
Cost of sales and services provided THE MR HEARTS 2 AR 153,988 164,332
Amortisation of other intangible assets*  EfhEA & E Y * 27,885 23,845
Write-off of property, plant and equipment* ¥ % - 5 K 5% s * 54 5,021
Research and development expenses® 9T K FAEE R L * 108,939 96,883
Impairment loss on other intangible assets* H i & 712 & B R EE 18 * 2,827 1,607
Wirite-off of other intangible assets* | A MY * 8,657 -
* included in other operating expenses * FTAHE AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% 2020512 A 31 H1IEF/E

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREBiBE X
2020
HK$'000
THET
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PRI ZEATSH ([ RERER])
— tax charge for the year — FRABRBEIH 6,062 9,655
— (over)/under provision in respect — UHEEE (BrEEE),/
of prior years BETR (576) 1,468
5,486 11,023
Deferred tax (note 30) EIEFRIE (FIEE30) (898) (907)
Income tax expense Frig®if = 4,588 10,116
There is no estimated assessable profit subject to Hong Kong EHZE2020FE K2019F12 A31HIFEE -
profits tax for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. B S PR R B R MB R E BB -
PRC EIT has been provided on the estimated assessable profits BIEMHBEARIFIEM TR EEEF X -
of subsidiaries operating in Mainland China at 25% (2019: 25%), BAIN P E AL 7 B AT HTE
unless preferential rates are applicable in the cities where the RS A 12 25% (20194F 1 25%) 2 %
subsidiaries are located. RYER AR EFTET R -
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

10. R BB B X (@)

BERBERAEZMERAXBE R

profit at applicable tax rates: Az 80 -
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Profit before income tax PRS- H5 Bi 4 A 115,602 32,483
Tax on profit before taxation, calculated &8 BT RLER R T
at the rates applicable to profits AR EZ A
in the tax jurisdictions concerned A2 IR 23,756 5,022
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses N RS 2 s & 8,139 12,328
Tax effect of non-taxable income HERBRUMA 2 G E (21,643) (15,427)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERABAREEIEZ
not recognised M2 4,435 17,659
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B RANTRERBBBE L
previously not recognised D2 (8,758) (10,432)
Tax effect of temporary differences RERLRERE BT E
not recognised (765) (502)
(Over)/Under provision in respect LAEEE (BRERHE),/
of prior years BETRE (576) 1,468
Income tax expense FriS Tt 4,588 10,116

1. RE

RAFEHE2020612 A31HIEFEW
RSB R R IS - B 20204F
REHRURIPEEZZRTEAIRE -

11. DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period for 2020.

R20194 10 A25H © AN Al B 31T
R B 2019412 B3 B &SR RN TR
A2 B R E R RIS &% 0.55 78
fili - B14 $£49109,530,0008 7T ° 1RIFRE
Bl M A% 10 BB R BIE R B B IR B Ak
MFREIERDIEFEA o

On 25 October 2019, the Company declared a special dividend of
0.55 HK cents per share, amounting to approximately
HK$109,530,000 in aggregate for shares in issue to the
shareholders listed on the register of members of the Company
as at 3 December 2019. Such dividend is not payable to the
holders of Restricted Shares under the terms of Restricted Share
Award Scheme.
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

BRAER

2020
HK$°000

FET

Profit attributable to owners of the Company — Fhat & &R E R N2 858 2 F)
for the purpose of basic and ZARREER NI
diluted earnings per share

111,014 22,209

Number of shares
BHEAE

2020
‘000

TR

Weighted average number of ordinary shares izt EGREARER 7 E B

for the purpose of basic earnings per share JnRES 15 8 19,914,505 19,914,505
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares R &I/ & (5 BT 4 J 7B Ar 458

in respect of Restricted Shares LEAE 2 B = -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  gtit &G R E R F 2 @R

for the purpose of diluted earnings per share N5 EL 19,914,505 19,914,505

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2020 is based on the profit attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$111,014,000 (2019:
HK$22,209,000) and on the weighted average number of
approximately 19,914,505,000 (2019: 19,914,505,000) ordinary
shares outstanding during the year after deducting the number of
shares held by a trustee under Restricted Share Award Scheme.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, diluted
earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share as the
performance-based targets of the share award does not meet as
at year end date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z=2020F 12 A31 BIEFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 1. EERABXX(BREEMS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2020
HK$'000
FET
Directors’ fee (note 40(a)) ZE210% (H5E400)) 493 519
Wages and salaries TERF® 518,205 523,223
Pension costs — defined contribution BIREHRA — EREHRRETE
plans (note 39) (BF5E39) 17,254 42,673
Other employee benefits (note 28) Eie BEF (FIzE28) (26,868) 30,458
Share-based payments expense (note 34)  LARRD 44 2 5357 (MFEE34) 2,135 2,135
Staff welfare BT&H 56,747 59,426
567,966 658,434
Less: Amounts capitalised in other B MEMEREEEN L 22
intangible assets (12,817) (22,870)
Total employee benefit expenses EERAMMAL B 555,149 635,564
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &£ 2020412 31 B I FE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 9% - BERRE

At 1 January 2019 20191818

Cost A 4,768 277,223 5,169 81,399 368,559
Accumulated depreciation 2iTE (1,765) (228,087) (5,169) - (235,021)
Net carrying amount REEE 3,003 49,136 - 81,399 133,538
Year ended 31 December 2019  EHZ2019F12A31HILEE

Opening net carrying amount BREFE 3,003 49,136 - 81,399 133,538
Additions NE - 6,615 - 20,483 27,098

Disposal HeE - (24) - - (24)
Acquisition of assets (note 32)  WEREE (Ff5532) - 2 - - 2

Write-off Fisic! - (5,021) - - (5,021)
Depreciation e (239) (14,130) - (41,001) (55,370)
Exchange realignment fE 5 A% (53) (698) - (1,159) (1,910)
Closing net carrying amount  HIABRMEFEE 2,711 35,880 - 59,722 98,313

At 31 December 2019 H2019F12831H

Cost X 4,679 119,447 5,169 101,276 230,571

Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE (1,968) (83,567) (5,169) (41,554) (132,258)
Net carrying amount BREEE 2,711 35,880 - 59,722 98,313

Year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020512 A31 AL EE

Opening net carrying amount HRREFE 2,111 35,880 - 59,722 98,313

Additions NE - 7,069 - 34,891 41,960

Lease modification HEELR - - - (333) (333)
Write-off isH - (54) - - (54)
Depreciation e (236) (12,922) = (36,558) (49,716)
Exchange realignment [E 5 % 157 1,936 - 3,558 5,651

Closing net carrying amount ~ HIABRMEEE 2,632 31,909 - 61,280 95,821

At 31 December 2020 H2020F12831H

Cost AR 4,976 131,966 5,169 143,832 285,943

Accumulated depreciation Z:TE (2,344) (100,057) (5,169) (82,552) (190,122)
Net carrying amount RETE 2,632 31,909 - 61,280 95,821

As at 31 December 2020, certain buildings and right-of-use
assets of the Group amounting to approximately HK$13,622,000
(2019: HK$13,220,000) were charged to secure bank borrowings
as detailed in note 27.

MR2020F12A31H AEELEY
13,622,0005% 7T (20194 : 13,220,000
B ETEFREAEEED REE
IRITEEERR - FFBRME27 -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % - BERREE #)
(Continued)
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class BB EE A FRAELEERTFE
of underlying asset is as follows: ST :

As at 1 January 2019 7R2019F 1 A1H 11,148 70,251 81,399
Additions = - 20,483 20,483
Depreciation e (189) (40,812) (41,001)
Exchange realignment [E 5, 382 (204) (955) (1,159)

As at 31 December 2019 and M2019%F12 A31B &

1 January 2020 20201 A1H 10,755 48,967 59,722
Additions NE - 34,891 34,891
Lease modification HEBN - (333) (333)
Depreciation e (188) (36,370) (36,558)
Exchange realignment P& 5 % 672 2,886 3,558
As at 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 11,239 50,041 61,280

2020

HK$'000

FHET
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) HEBGEFE (FFEs) 3,655 4,176
Expense relating to short-term leases BHEEAEE MY = 142
Covid-19-Related rent concessions 2019 ¥R E AR SR E & ZR (1,484) -

TECDEEER ) TERBEEERAT
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE @
(Continued)
The Group has obtained the right to use on office premises REBCDEAHEEREZESH AT
through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an ERE - FHE—RVNT A1 E5F -

initial period of 1 to 5 years.

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis of MARBBYHZHEER S B - B
lease liabilities and the future cash outflows arising from leases EaBIHHLITEBEMELAARKIIES
that are not yet commenced are set out in notes 29 and 42 TRHEEE D RIERTEE 29 2 42 o
respectively.
15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 15. BAREBEFAHMEZEKEZ
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME EWMEE
2020
HK$’000
FHET
Financial assets at FVOCI BAABEFAHMEZE K
ZERMEE
— Club debenture — gES 324 324
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 are

16. R B2 Rz @
R2020F 12 A31 B2 X EMB A A

as follows: BT

China Enterprise ASP Hong Kong Ordinary share of - 100 Investment holding
Limited ("CE ASP") HK$14,037,400
PECKBERARAF 0 14,037,400 T REER
(ThEIREE]) ZEER
Dadi Media Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of 100 - Investment holding
HK$2
At EEERAA] 5 2B EBR RERR
Hongkong New Media Hong Kong Ordinary share of - 100 Investment holding and
Interactive Advertising HK$100 information
Co., Limited technology business
AN KELDES 5 100872 LBk REERRE
BRAR e
Robina Profits Limited British Virgin 1 Ordinary share of 100 - Investment holding
Islands US$1 each
Robina Profits Limited HBSBRARS 1RERAEE KEER
(Era:-3 il
BB ARERHERAE PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Information technology
("CE Dongli") (note a) RMB242,369,720 business
hBNRBERHERAF i BRBRAARE BHRBER
(T8 )) (Mista) 242,369,720 7
ERKBEEERAR PRC Paid-up capital of - 100  Information technology
("Beijing New Media") RMB21,000,000 business
(note b)
ERIRBESERAA i BRBRAARE BB ER
(MHemsr)) (M) 21,000,000
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

16. RMIB R~ Bl 2R (1)

FREREERMERAR PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Information technology
(note b) RMB50,000,000 business
MREREERITERAF HE HRBRAARE BB
(i) 50,000,000 7
Xinnet (note b) PRC Paid-up capital of - N/A*  Information technology
RMB45,000,000 business
8 (Bt3Eb) HE HERBIARE TER*  ERREES
45,000,0007T
HEARERRER AR PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Information technology
("Chengdu Gouyongyun”) RMB2,000,000 business
(note b)
EAARERE AR L] A BERBIARE ERRRES
(T#MmAE]) (M) 2,000,000
RERRERER(GER) PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Investment holding
BRAF (note b) HK$500,000
REERREBRE (LR A HRBRA REER
BRAF (F3b) 500,0007%7T
KB PEBERR PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Information technology
BR2E] (note b) RMB14,110,000 business
(2019: RMB6,520,000)
AT EEER A HRERREARE BRREES
BRAF (H3b) 14,110,000 ¢
(2019% :
AR#6,520,00070)
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

16. RMIB R~ Bl 2R (1)

IRE-—RZERAR PRC Paid-up capital of
(“Beijing Wuyi") {note b) RMB1,000,000
FIRE-REERAR i BERBRAARS
(Mem&E— 1) (Ftib) 1,000,000 T
ERPMREHRER AR PRC Paid-up capital of
("Beijing Xiaoxia") (note b) RMB1,000,000
IR MR BRAR i BRBRAARS
(Mem/Mg ) (it b) 1,000,000 T
* controlled through structured arrangement with effective interests of
100%

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company as at
31 December 2020 which, in the opinion of the Board, principally
affected the Group’s results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Board, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

a. This subsidiary is registered as joint stock limited company under the
law of PRC.

b. These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability company under the
law of PRC.

- 100 Information technology
business

EABBRES

- 100 Information technology
business

BARERER

* FEBRE RIS BEERERR100%

FRINHEARRQFR2020E12 A3 B2
MEAR MEETRE ZZHWEBAQ
RAUANEBMAFEEEBREEFESR
BRASBEEEFEZEALD - ES
eRA RHEHEGHEBARZFESSE
BMERBRITEK -

GEE
s  BMBARRETEEREMARAAR

AR -

b. ZEMBARREFEXEZIMABRE
EVNSII
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. REt&E Qa2 =
2020
HK$°000
FHxT
Balance at 1 January W1 A1 B2 26,947 35,002
Share of results of associates il AN (599) (5,466)
Impairment loss RIEBE (2,598) (2,853)
Exchange realignment PE W Z=RR (789) 264
Balance at 31 December R12A31B 248 22,961 26,947
The carrying amount of interests in associates can be analysed REEE AR 2w IREEN DT -
as follows:
2020
HK$°000
FHxT
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 3,892 5,906
Goodwvill EES 19,069 21,041
Balance at 31 December W12 A31 B 248k 22,961 26,947
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REE&E N Bl 2= ()
Particulars of the associates as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 R2020F % 2019F 12 A31 H 2 B4 A
are as follows: FIEFBENT

Genius Reward Company Hong Kong Ordinary share of 50% 50% Inactive
Limited (“Genius Reward”) ** HK$200
Genius Reward Company B 20078 7T 2 Tk mES

Limited ([ Genius Reward]) **

FEAE (R ED) (5 BRI (D PRC Paid-up capital of 10% 10%  Information technology
AMRAF (“"Haowa")** (Note) RMB5,000,000 business
IS (RER) 15 B EITAR H HEBRA AAREES
BRRAR ([4FEMR ) ** (M) AR #5,000,0007T
B AR (5 B R M B R A E] PRC Paid-up capital of 30% 30%  Information technology
(“Chengdu Yashuang™)** RMB1,977,429 business
B BB 7 (5 B R 1T S HEMBRAR EEIEEES
AR RE ([RERMRE L) ** AE#1,977,4297T
I RGCERK PRC Paid-up capital of 50% 50% Inactive
BRAA ("Yigimai")** RMB93,255
IRFEEREBRAF S BB EmER
(THRE]*> AR#¥93,255 7T
**  ynlisted limited liability company *>*  JEFMAREEQH
Note: The equity interest of Haowa held by the Group is less than 20%. MsE  NEBFIF A FEN 2 RIEDR 20% © A
However, the Group has the right to appoint one director in the board M AEEEREFTEREEGHEP—
of directors of Haowa and thus the directors of the Company consider BES  WARREERAHETERE
that it has significant influence over Haowa. As such, the Group has BARFEN - Bt - AEBBTHEMAAR
accounted for Haowa as an investment in an associate. FIER —FEBE R R 21RE ©

TECDEEER ) TEHBEEERAR 197 )



www.sino-i.com

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. RBE R R 2= (50

The Group has discontinued recognising its share of loss of
Genius Reward, Yigimai and Haowa. The amount of
unrecognised share of loss of the Genius Reward for the year
and cumulatively unrecognised share of loss of Genius Reward
amounted to approximately HK$398,000 (2019: HK$393,000) and
HK$8,574,000 (2019: HK$8,176,000) respectively. The amount of
unrecognised share of loss of Yigimai for the year and
cumulatively unrecognised share of loss of Yigimai amounted to
approximately HK$104,000 (2019: HK$1,000) and HK$236,000
(2019: HK$132,000) respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of approximately HK$2,598,000 (2019:
HK$2,853,000) of Haowa due to the intense competition of
information technology in the market of catering industry which
resulted in a decrease in expected future cashflows accordingly.
As a result, the difference of recoverable amount, which is the
value in use, and the carrying amount (containing goodwill) is
recognised as an impairment loss and charged to profit or loss.

The amount of unrecognised share of loss of Haowa for the year
and cumulatively unrecognised share of loss of Haowa amounted
to approximately HK$120,000 (2019: Nil) and HK$120,000 (2019:
Nil) respectively.
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N EEEB K IR EEIEGenius
Reward * STERTERZEERE - FR
K HE R E 15 Genius Reward & 18 7 & %8
2 K FE R FE 1L Genius Reward B 18 7 &2
T4 E D B4 5398,00078 7T (2019 4F -
393,000 JT ) 18,574,000 7T (2019
18,176,000 7T)  F A RERIEL
SGTEFBZSEEAABREGLEIEE
EE 2 25289 51475 104,000% 7T
(20194 : 1,000/ 7T ) & 236,000/ T
(20194 : 132,000 7T) °

HE20200F12A831BILFE - K&EE
RIS 2 BUE 1B 4 2,598,000 T
(20194 : 2,853,000 1) * REARE
MEZEMRE NS B R AZERIE
RRBELTEMERED - Bt - AJlE
cHEAIEAER) BREEE(BEFNE)
2 EBEERAREBBIRBEKRA
|§{f\\ °

FRAEREETEREBEZ SBRA
BREGMTEREBE 252 B2 54
/120,000 7T (2019 4 : #£) % 120,000
I (20194 : 4#) o
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The summarised financial information of the Group’s material
associate, Chengdu Yashuang, extracted from its unaudited

17. REEE QT 2= ()

B RS B E KR Q5 AR 7 2 B
BEM(REEREEZEERBE) BT

management accounts is as follows: mr
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
As at 31 December ®12A318
Current assets mENEE 3,232 4,377
Non-current assets FRBEE 24,536 20,762
Current liabilities mEatE (9,461) (5,721)
Non-current liabilities IERBEE (5,335) (5,565)
Net assets BEFE 12,972 13,853
Group's share of the net assets AEEENEEFE 3,892 4,156
Goodwill [EES 19,069 20,046
Group's share of carrying amount REEEGER 2 REE
of interests 22,961 24,202
Year ended 31 December BE12A3NBLEFE
Revenue W= 24,272 26,607
Loss for the year FAEE (1,665) (17,130)
Other comprehensive income B 2wk 784 (318)
Total comprehensive income FHEHEERE (881) (17,448)
Dividend received B - -
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REE&E N Bl 2= ()
The summarised financial information of the Group’s immaterial BRANEBRTEARNH LS N a) TN 2B
associate, Haowa, is as follows: BERBES 0
2020
HK$'000
F#&T
Revenue Wz 668 2,785
Loss for the year FNEE (2,203) (3,270)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mu s 941 (329)
Total comprehensive income A =BT (1,262) (3,599)
18. GOODWILL 18. &
2020
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January ®1A1H
Gross carrying amount IRmE4EE 77,858 78,975
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (2,092) (2,092)
Net carrying amount BRTEFE 75,766 76,883
Year ended 31 December BZ12A31MBLEE
Opening net carrying amount Y BR ) 5HE 75,766 76,883
Exchange realignment B 3, 5 B 3,749 (1,117)
Closing net carrying amount F4BREFE 79,515 75,766
At 31 December M®12A31H8
Gross carrying amount IRE4RE 81,607 77,858
Accumulated impairment ES R (2,092) (2,092)
Net carrying amount BREEE 79,515 75,766
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18. GOODWILL (Continued)

For the purpose of the annual impairment test, the carrying
amount of goodwill, net of impairment loss, is allocated to the
following CGUs under the enterprise cloud services:

CE ASP 1 A8
Xinnet Group rigsE

18. & (&)

REERERAMS  BEZEDEN
FRAE(ADRE R R 5 B E T kX ER
BREELEN -

2020 2019

HK$000 HK$'000

Tz THAT

50,049 48,059

29,466 27,707

The recoverable amounts for the CGUs given above were
determined based on value in use calculations, covering a
detailed five-year financial budget using the key assumptions
stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the business in which the CGUs operate.

The key assumptions used for value in use calculations of CE

PR ELEM 2 AIRESERE
EREENEAE  EPRERLFFHA
PHEE  TRTX25 2 EEZRRKRHA
B-REXVEBBRSELBUME
ERBZRAFHERER -

ENARIETRC BB EE B

ASP CGU for the years are as follows: FAREEZEEZERIENT :
Average sales growth rate FEE R R 4.63% 6.43%
Discount rate BhIR & 16.90% 15.09%
Growth rates used to extrapolate REHREEERERSREY

cashflows beyond the budget period 1R & 0.00% 0.00%

The key assumptions used for value in use calculations of Xinnet
Group CGU for the year are as follows:

Average sales growth rate FHHEERE

Discount rate AhIR &

Growth rates used to extrapolate BEHEEEHRERS
cashflows beyond the budget period HERE

FRARANAEHNBEERSELSEME

mEZ

REEZ FZ2REOT :
3.64% 10.59%
18.99% 18.72%
0.00% 0.00%

The budgeted gross margin and net profit margin were
determined by management for the CGUs based on past
performance and its expectations for market development.

“Z_EFESFR
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18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. B8 (&)

The growth rate used for the above CGUs are determined by
reference to the average growth rate for the corresponding
industry to which the CGUs belong.

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the segment. Apart from the considerations described
in determining the value in use of the CGUs above, the Group's
management is not currently aware of any other probable
changes that would necessitate changes in its key estimates.
However, the estimated recoverable amounts of CE ASP CGU
and Xinnet Group CGU are particularly sensitive to the average
sales growth rate applied.

The recoverable amount of CE ASP CGU exceeds its carrying
amount by approximately HK$68,788,000 (2019:
HK$37,091,000). The key assumption is the average sales
growth rate of approximately 4.63% (2019: 6.43%). If the
average sales growth rate reduced by approximately 0.35%
(2019: 0.18%), the carrying amount of CE ASP CGU would equal
its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of Xinnet Group CGU exceeds its
carrying amount by approximately HK$18,438,000 (2019:
HK$5,834,000). The key assumption is the average sales growth
rate of approximately 3.64% (2019: 10.59%). If the average sales
growth rate reduced by approximately 0.67% (2019: 0.21%), the
carrying amount of Xinnet Group CGU would equal its
recoverable amount.
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TELBMABHEBITR 2 FIREE

MEE °

PATER ARG 3R 2 S 15 A X S Bk B2 ) 3R A R
ZHERR B ENBEEREELEN
EREBEMLEERERN  AREEE
EBEMY MAERERNEMATEHIRZ
HEHEAENE T EME - A P
BEEXERSELEURMEEERS
EEBM G ROSBEYER T
BHER R R EHR -

PR ENRSEEEMN 2 AT RESHE
i i E BR 18 47 68,788,000 7% 7T (2019
% :37,091,000/ 7T ) > £ B R & 4
F 15l E R K 44.63% (20194 ¢
6.43%)° WFHEELRER DL
0.35% (20194 : 0.18%) » B E > 2
PR cELEBEN  ERARBASRER
qEER-EE

REEReELEMN 2 JRESEEEB
HHBREE#Y) 18,438,000 8 7T (2019 4F
5,834,000 7T) - TERBZAFHHEE
R X 43.64% (20194 : 10.59%) °
fiti 1 $E S 18 K R 40.67% (2019
F:021%) IFBREEBRSELSM
ZEREEBHENEKRESE -



Www.sino-i.com

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. Hth B EE
Computer Development
software cost Licenses Total
EREH BB A [ @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TET
At 1 January 2019 RK2019F181H
Cost B 22,656 117,637 37,787 178,080
Accumulated amortisation SR ERRE
and impairment (20,683) (45,344) (19,864) (85,891)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,973 72,293 17,923 92,189
Year ended 31 December 2019  #Z2019%12 8318
LEE
Opening net carrying amount HRmEE 1,973 72,293 17,923 92,189
Acquisition of assets (note 32) WA E (M35 32) 2,501 - - 2,501
Additions NE 6,767 22,870 - 29,637
Amortisation charge for the year — FRE L (1,111) (19,082) (3,652) (23,845)
Provision for impairment loss REBBEE (699) (808) - (1,507)
Exchange realignment 5B (154) (1,386) (277) (1,817)
Closing net carrying amount B4 REFE 9,277 73,887 13,994 97,158
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F128318K
1 January 2020 202051810
Cost B 31,127 137,974 37,086 206,187
Accumulated amortisation S EERAE
and impairment (21,850) (64,087) (23,092) (109,029
Net carrying amount BEFE 9277 73,887 13,994 97,158
Year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020512 831H
LEE
Opening net carrying amount BOREFE 9,277 73,887 13,994 97,158
Additions e - 12,817 - 12,817
Write-off g - (8,657) - (8,657)
Amortisation charge for the year  ER#EHE Y (2,137) (22,155) (3,593) (27,885)
Provision for impairment loss REBBEE - (2,827) - (2,827)
Exchange realignment I 5 S 465 3,495 682 4,642
Closing net carrying amount ~ HIA&RREFE 7,605 56,560 11,083 75,248
At 31 December 2020 R2020512A31A8
Cost B 7R 31,623 131,284 39,440 202,347
Accumulated amortisation SR ERRE
and impairment (24,018) (74,724) (28,357) (127,099)
Net carrying amount RESME 7,605 56,560 11,083 75,248
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. EWE 5 XKE

Sino-i Technology Limited

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables is as follows:

JEWE SR BEREZAHEL ZEED
MranR

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

TExT FAET

0-90 days 0-90 H 12,825 22,528

91-180 days 91-180 H 9,589 11,264

181-270 days 181-270 H 6,133 3,202

271-360 days 271-360 H 4,627 4,642

Over 360 days A 360 H 16,853 6,552

Trade receivables, gross FEWNE SR IEERE 50,027 48,188
Less: Provision for impairment of W BRI R ERE

receivables (13,724) (4,261)

Trade receivables, net JEWE 5 5E 558 36,303 43,927

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, trade receivables from
contracts with customers amounted to approximately
HK$36,303,000 and HK$43,927,000 respectively.

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting
policy stated in note 2.10.

Trade receivables are due on presentation of invoices. Further
details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade receivables are set out in note 45.4.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances. The directors of the
Company consider that the fair value of trade receivables which
are expected to be recovered within one year are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because these balances
have short maturity periods on their inception.

Annual Report 2020

R 2020 K 2019F12A31H » KBEE
FAHNZEWESZBEBS N A
36,303,000 78 7T 2 43,927,000 78 7T °

REBRBEMHF 2. 10T S BERER
E IR o

JEWE HRANH REZRE - AR
AEEEERRREWEZFAMES
FEERRE 2E - FHBHNHIE45.4 -

AN SR B A% F A e A A &
HEMEEEREE ARFAEER
& FBHIRT R — AN E 2 EYEE 5K
Bz AnBEEERAEZHLESEAX
282 RARZEEHNFARERERA
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21. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21. ®€  AENREREMOERRE
RECEIVABLES
2020
HK$'000
FET
Deposits and prepayments & MIERRIE 81,495 73,277
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEEHTB AR B Ee
subsidiaries (note 47) (F3E47) 115,997 -
Other receivables H b e U Zh08 9,745 18,422
207,237 91,699
Less: Provision for impairment of B B EBGRIER AR
other receivables (9,145) (8,602)
198,092 83,097
Impairment losses in respect of other receivables are recorded Hith R Y RIA 2 R E BBt AR R
using a loss allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that BE  BRIEAREFEZANR:ZFEBE L #e
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment W ERERT - BRAREEBERE
loss is written off against other receivables directly. The BEREMmEI R IEMEE o EapEIRIE
movement in the provision for impairment of other receivables is ZIREBESESH T ¢
as follows:
2020
HK$'000
FHET
At the beginning of the year F9) 8,602 8,762
Exchange realignment PE W Z= R 543 (160)
At the end of the year F 9,145 8,602
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21.

22.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting dates is
the carrying value of each class of other receivable as further
analysed in note 45.4.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
directors of the Company consider that the fair value of other
receivables which are expected to be recovered within one year
are not materially different from their carrying amounts because
these balances have short maturity periods on their inception.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Deposits with banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

Included in bank and cash balance of the Group is an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$221,791,000 (2019:
HK$198,285,000), which represented Renminbi (“RMB")
deposits placed with the banks in Mainland China.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under the
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks which are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z=2020F 12 A31 BIEFE

TRADE PAYABLES 23. ERE S RIE
Based on invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade payables ENESRBIHREEQHELE ZEBR D
is as follows: W -
2020
HK$'000
FHT
0-90 days 0-90H 17,184 23,982
91-180 days 91-180 H 4,134 3,449
181-270 days 181-270 H 1,187 1,094
271-360 days 271-360 H 950 148
Over 360 days A 360 H 9,038 9,342
32,493 38,015
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the MBEREDRES At AEEENE
Group's trade payables are considered to be a reasonable SRBZEOERREEAAEEZSE
approximation of their fair value. BAE -
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24. EMENRERESTER
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the FERIEAREN  FitAEEHEAME
Group's other payables and accruals are considered to be a NHREMEAERZREERERAR
reasonable approximation of fair value. BEIEEOH -

ZEZSEEFR ) PEREEEERAR
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25.

CEERBAEEAHAE

Contract liabilities arising from
enterprise cloud services

BHEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
274,694 215,222

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the contract liabilities mainly
included the received in advance that are related to the provision
of corporate cloud services not yet delivered to customers.

Revenue totalled approximately HK$208,668,000 (2019:
HK$209,710,000) was recognised in current reporting period that
was included in the contract liabilities balances at the beginning
of the year.

Movement in contract liabilities

MR2020F K% 2019F12 A31H A4 A
EFXrEFHREEHEMRRINER 2%
EREER AWK -

AAFTaNARRER ZBEE RN
208,668,000/ 7 (20194 : 209,710,000
FETT) IOE AR S HAR AR o

g

BRNEERE

o

X

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FBT
Balance as at 1 January W1 A1 B2 215,222 211,128
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of AFRERTAFTENEEY
recognising revenue during the year that Wz sl Bz & Q& &R
was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (208,668) (209,710)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of FEE A 12 A 31 BiRH
receiving payments during the year in AN EE Z EERG
respect of provision of corporate cloud WER A FR B 2z
services not yet delivered to customers BB EE N
as at 31 December 251,994 217,845
Exchange realignment PE H = %8 16,146 (4,041)
Balance as at 31 December W12 A31 Bz &8 274,694 215,222

Management expects that the majority of the contract amounts
allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as of 31
December 2020 will be recognised as revenue during the next
reporting period.

The sales contracts in relation to the provision of corporate cloud
services are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.
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26. LOANS TO/AMOUNT(S) DUE TO IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY /A DIRECTOR/
ASSOCIATES

(a) Amount due to a director

(b)

The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Loans to/Amount due to immediate holding

26. [ XREEEZERAR—RE
= HEARERRE

(a) XR—BESFHE
R-—BZBEFFESERA  2ER

ANBERFERE -

(b) @ XREZZERIBDER X

company i
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Loans to immediate holding company MBEERERATER = 1,397,088
Current assets REEE
Loans to immediate holding company FBEEZERARERK 1,504,957 -
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to immediate holding company K B R A B FIE (16,683) (23,339)
Loans to immediate holding company MEZEERATER

(i)

Loan principal of HK$1,005,858,000

On 29 May 2009, the Group entered into a loan
agreement with its immediate holding company to
advance a loan of HK$1,645,530,000 which bore
interest at 6.00% per annum and would be repayable
on or before 29 June 2011 and was secured by a
share mortgage.

On 20 May 2011, loan extension agreement in
respect of the loan agreement dated 29 May 2009
was signed and was conditional upon its immediate
holding company having settled in full, the interest
accrued on the outstanding principal amount under
the loan agreement on or before 29 June 2011. It was
agreed that the repayment date for the outstanding
principal to be extended for two years to 29 June
2013 and the loan was secured by a share mortgage.

(i) EpAREEE1,005,858000,%7T

20095 829H » A &
GERa g2 vl /NCIERVA = §-4 )
0 ME 2 1,645,630,0007%
TLZER - REFEG6.00E
B RAR201146 A29H 8¢
ZRIEE - WA BN IRIE
VERARE -

M201145H208 ' ERH
HiA2009F5 A29H 2 E &
WERIERLEERE - 1§
HAEEEER AR 2011
F6A29H ZANBEEER
HEETREEASZE2H
JEETRIE - WA ZE &R
BEAS ZERHBIELER
FE201346H29H  BER
THA—TERR D IRIBIE BIEIR o
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26. LOANS TO/AMOUNT(S) DUE TO IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY /A DIRECTOR/
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b) Loans to/Amount due to immediate holding
company (Continued)

Loans to immediate holding company (Continued)

(i) Loan principal of HK$1,005,858,000 (Continued)

On 9 May 2013, loan extension agreement in respect
of the loan agreement dated 29 May 2009 was signed
and was conditional upon its immediate holding
company having settled in full, the interest accrued
on the outstanding principal amount under the loan
agreement on or before 29 June 2013. It was agreed
that the repayment date for the outstanding principal
to be extended for two years to 29 June 2015 and the
loan was secured by share mortgage of a fellow
subsidiary. The rate of interest applicable to the
outstanding principal amount of the loan during the
extension period is 7.50% per annum.

On 30 April 2015, loan extension agreement in
respect of the loan agreement dated 29 May 2009
was signed and was conditional upon its immediate
holding company having settled in full, the interest
accrued on the outstanding principal amount under
the loan agreement on or before 29 June 2015. It was
agreed that the repayment date for the outstanding
principal to be extended for two years to 29 June
2017 and the loan was secured by a share mortgage
of Nan Hai Development Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Nan Hai. The rate of interest applicable
to the outstanding principal amount of the loan during
the extension period is 8.00% per annum.
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RAME)

EEZEZERATDER(E)

(i)

B K258 1,005,858 000,57
(48)
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26. LOANS TO/AMOUNT(S) DUE TO IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY /A DIRECTOR/
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b) Loans to/Amount due to immediate holding (b) B XREEBEZRLATER &
company (Continued) 15 (#)

EEZEZERATDER(E)

26. B XEEZERAT—RE
EBENTERREE

Loans to immediate holding company (Continued)

(i)

Loan principal of HK$1,005,858,000 (Continued)

On 2 May 2017, loan extension agreement in respect
of the loan agreement dated 29 May 2009 was signed
and was conditional upon its immediate holding
company having (i) settled in full the interest accrued
on the outstanding principal amount under the loan
agreement; and (ii) partially settled the outstanding
principal amount of HK$200,000,000, on or before 29
June 2017. It was agreed that the repayment date for
the outstanding principal to be extended for two
years to 29 June 2019 and the loan was secured by a
share mortgage of Nan Hai Development Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Nan Hai. The rate of
interest applicable to the outstanding principal amount
of the loan during the extension period is 8.00% per
annum.

On 21 March 2019, loan extension agreement in
respect of the loan agreement dated 29 May 2009
was signed and was conditional upon its immediate
holding company having settled in full, the interest
accrued on the outstanding principal amount under
the loan agreement on or before 29 June 2019. It was
agreed that the repayment date for the outstanding
principal to be extended for two years to 29 June
2021 and the loan was secured by a share mortgage
of Nan Hai Development Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Nan Hai. The rate of interest applicable
to the outstanding principal amount of the loan during
the extension period is 8.00% per annum.

(i)

B K558 1,005,858 000,57
(48)

M2017%5 828 B 5 B
B A2009F 5 290 2 B
WERBRITERLEERR - K
HAEEEETRARN2017
F6A29HKZHTN)EEE
B ETREERS 22
HEFFE R &EBHD
& 18 & 7K £ 200,000,000 7%
T WELR B REERER
S7EFRBHIBERSEE
20196 4298 © BRI
MEsEENBRAREEE
RER QB ZBRHDIZIBIES
K- RIERIBERKRE
BARe2@EAFHERS00
Eo

R2019F3H21H 5B
HIA2009F 5 4290 2B R
WERBRIERLEERR - 1K
HREFEEERARMN2019
FE6A20HK ZAIBEER
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26. LOANS TO/AMOUNT(S) DUE TO IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY /A DIRECTOR/
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b) Loans to/Amount due to immediate holding
company (Continued)

Loans to immediate holding company (Continued)

(i) Loan principal of HK$1,005,858,000 (Continued)

On 31 May 2019, the Group entered into another
agreement with its immediate holding company to
vary the security under the loan agreement dated 29
May 2009 by substituting the share mortgage of Nan
Hai Development Limited with share mortgage of
Listar Properties Limited (“Listar Mortgage Shares”),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Nan Hai.

(i)~ Loan principal of HK$342,506,000

On 21 June 2018, the Group entered into another
loan agreement with its immediate holding company
to advance a loan of approximately HK$342,506,000
which was interest bearing at 8.00% per annum and
repayable on or before 20 June 2021. The share
mortgage provided in respect of the loan agreement
dated 29 May 2009 over the entire issued share
capital of Nan Hai Development Limited will be
expanded to cover the obligations under this loan
agreement.

On 31 May 2019, the Group entered into another
agreement with its immediate holding company to
vary the security under the loan agreement dated 21
June 2018 by substituting the share mortgage of Nan
Hai Development Limited with Listar Mortgage
Shares.
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26. LOANS TO/AMOUNT(S) DUE TO IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY /A DIRECTOR/
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Loans to/Amount due to immediate holding
company (Continued)

Loans to immediate holding company (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, approximately HK$1,005,858,000
(2019: HK$1,005,858,000) and HK$342,506,000 (2019:
HK$342,506,000) were interest bearing at 8% (2019: 8%)
and 8% (2019: 8%) per annum respectively and repayable
on or before 29 June 2021 (2019: 29 June 2021) and 20
June 2021 (2019: 20 June 2021) respectively. The
remaining balance was interest-free.

Amount due to immediate holding company

The amount due to immediate holding company is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Amounts due to associates

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

26. 08/ XEEERQAR—BE

=/ BERNAERF

(b)

(c)

I8 (458)

B,/ RERZERABDER
5 ()

BEZZRATDERE)

20204 12 A31H
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27. BANK BORROWINGS, SECURED 27. BIEHRITEE

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the bank borrowings, 7R2020F 2 2019F 12 A31H » 2E0A

which are denominated in RMB, were repayable within one year. AREABZHETEEER—FANE

The bank borrowings’ interest rate profiles were as follows: B o RITEEMEFHBAT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#Bx T
Fixed rates &l E FIl &
— 4.05% t0 4.79% per annum — FFEL405EEA479[E
(2019: 4.35% to 4.79% (20194 : FF|E 4352
per annum) F479F) 37,200 33,627

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the bank borrowings were 20204 2019412 A31 8 + R17{5

guaranteed/secured by the followings: BETiATAIS BRI

(i) Legal charges over the Group's property, plant and (i) AREBEMER A 13,622,000 7T
equipment with carrying amount of approximately (20194 : 13,220,000 7T ) Z 4
HK$13,622,000 (2019: 13,220,000) (note 14); and ¥ BEREE LT ML (KT

14) : &

(ii  Corporate guarantees of approximately HK$37,200,000 i) REEAEEEKE®FEY
(2019: HK$33,527,000) executed by an independent third 13,622,000% JL(20194 :
party, after receiving a negative pledge over the Group's 13,220,000 70 ) 2 B F R {F A
buildings and right-of-use assets with the net carrying BERERE ABIE=FH
amount of approximately HK$13,622,000 (2019: 172 2 Rl #E 1R 937,200,000 7% 7T
HK$13,220,000). (20194 : 33,527,000/ 7T) °

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate their RITEEZREEREAABEES -

fair value.
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28. OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

In December 2017, CE Dongli, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, implemented a scheme (the
“Scheme”) to incentivise the senior management personnel of
CE Dongli (the "CE Senior Management”). The Scheme lasts for
a period of 5 years up to 31 December 2021. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the Group will effectively grant a total of 15,996,402
units of right to receive profit-share and bonus reward (the
“Bonus Reward"”) to CE Senior Management. The recipients of
such Bonus Reward have the rights to exercise at the price of
RMB1 for each unit of Bonus Reward in return for one unit of
equity interest in CE Dongli (the "CE Interests”). Upon the
exercising of all units of Bonus Reward, the CE Senior
Management will in substance indirectly holding a total of
approximately 6.6% of the CE Interests. Within one year after
the expiry date of the Scheme (i.e. 31 December 2022), it is
mandatory for the Group to buy back all of the CE Interests from
the CE Senior Management (the “Buy-back”) and there is no
choice for the Group or the CE Senior Management to opt for
alternative equity settlement. The Buy-back will be made at the
pre-determined prices, depending on various performance
conditions including CE Dongli’s audited and approved revenue
and net profit margin and on various pre-determined buy-back
dates before the expiry of the Scheme.

As at 31 December 2020, a total of 15,996,402 (2019:
15,996,402) units of Bonus Reward were granted to the CE
Senior Management and 8,261,660 (2019: 7,304,000) units of
the Bonus Reward were exercised. With reference to the
probability of meeting the performance conditions set out in the
Scheme, the Group estimated a reversal of provision for the Buy-
back amounting to approximately RMB23,905,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$26,868,000) (2019: addition of provision of
RMB26,836,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$30,458,000))
(note 13) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, a total provision of approximately
RMB20,516,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$24,383,000)
(2019: RMB25,458,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$28,451,000)) and RMB4,856,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,771,000) (2019: RMB32,667,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$36,508,000)) was recognised under the
current liabilities and non-current liabilities respectively in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

“Z_EFESFR

HitESEF

R2017F 128 ARRIEEZENE
RERENEE B E([ZErEl))
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15,996,402 1E ) £ 4T S By & 7 - H
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Fra i@ G 2 AT R 1 » REBIEETE
Z2020F 12 A31 BIEFERE R 2 B
& B @ 4 A R 23,905,000 7T (48 &
#926,868,000%7T) (20194 : REINEME
A R #26,836,0007c( 8 & B 4
30,458,000787T)) (FizE13) ©
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HEEE

The Group leases various offices. Rental contracts are typically AEEHBAZEARAE - O —KRIZE
made for fixed periods. Lease terms are negotiated on an STEHARETS. o FHER AR BERG - BB
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and ETRGERREG - HERELTES
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, ERRYE - HEEETTREEER
but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing I o

purposes.

The present value of future lease payments of the Group's NEBHREZRAKBEBRESHTWOT -

leases are analysed as:

2020

HK$'000

F&T
Current BNER 23,983 24,691
Non-current JERNEA 24,238 21,152
48,221 45,843

Movement of the Group's lease liabilities is analysed as follows: NEFBHEEGBEEHOHTOT :

2020

HK$’000

FHET
As at 1 January ®n1A1H 45,843 64,626
Additions NE 34,891 20,483
Lease modification HEEBNH (285) -
Interest expenses FEFX 3,655 4176
Interest element of lease payments MERR BB (3,655) (4.176)
Covid-19-Related rent concessions 2019 AEAR R SR EHE S TR (1,484) -
Capital element of lease payments HENRZERETE D (33,630) (38,379)
Exchange realignment VE 5% 2,886 (887)
As at 31 December R12HA31H 48,221 45,843
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 29. HEEBE W
The future lease payments of the Group's leases (excluding AREBHE(TRESHEE) 2 RKKME
short-term leases) were scheduled to repay as follows: EEESZEMT -

As at 31 December 2020 7A2020F12H831H
Not later than one year —FR 26,464 (2,481) 23,983
Later than one year but not later —FZEBRFR
than five years 26,407 (2,169) 24,238
52,871 (4,650) 48,221
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%F 128318
Not later than one year —FR 26,934 (2,243) 24,691
Later than one year but not later —FEERFNR
than five years 22,701 (1,549) 21,152
49,635 (3,792) 45,843
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30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the movement on the deferred tax
liabilities are as follows:

30. EEHEER

MN2020%12A31H BIEREEGEZ
HEIT

Revaluation of
intangible assets

EMETEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At the beginning of the year == 3,499 4,475
Credited to profit or loss (note 10) T ABEER (FFEE10) (898) (907)
Exchange realignment ERRECE 170 (69)
At the end of the year FIR 2,771 3,499

At 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses of the
subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong and in Mainland China of
approximately HK$44,097,000 (2019: HK$39,551,000) and
HK$96,838,000 (2019: HK$137,435,000) respectively. The tax
effect of unrecognised deferred tax assets amounted to
approximately HK$31,486,000 (2019: HK$40,885,000).

Deferred tax asset in respect of unused tax losses has not been
recognised in the consolidated financial statements due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams against which the tax
losses can be utilised. The tax losses of the subsidiaries
operating in Mainland China can be carried forward for 5 years,
while tax losses of the companies within the Group operating in
Hong Kong can carry forward their tax losses indefinitely under
the current tax legislation.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. As at 31 December
2020, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statement as there were no temporary
differences associated with undistributed earnings of PRC
subsidiaries (2019: Nil).

Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2= 2020F 12 A31 BILFE

SHARE CAPITAL

2020

31. B&

HK$'000

Number
of shares
RE R
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
Ordinary shares LER

As at 1 January and R1A1HR12A31H

31 December 21,720,504,877

TR

240,597  21,720,504,877 240,597

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS

There was no acquisition of assets during the year ended 31
December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group acquired
the equity interests in the entities set out below at a total cash
consideration of RMB2,140,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,433,000). As at the respective date of acquisition, these
entities were still at development stage and inactive. Given the
underlying set of assets acquired were not integrated in forming
businesses to generate revenue, the directors of the Company
were of the opinion that the acquisition of these entities were
purchase of net assets which did not constitute business
combinations for accounting purpose.

32. KBEE

HE2020F 12831 BIEFEE  HEW
BEE -

HZE2019F12A31BLEFE  KEH
RESHREBARE 2,140,000 (HE
FA#2,433,0007%8 7T ) Y T AT E E B2
R NEWERE  REERINAE
BRMEEREEER - BRI EEH
BEHAEHNAGRAEEREBUEEK
A ARREERARNBEZEERBENK
BEEFHE UTEXNEHENTZE
BEG-

Beijing Wuyi ErmE—
Beijing Xiaoxia BV

PRERERATEARAA

FRERERATEARAR

100%
90%
100%
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32. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS (Continued) 32. WIBEE (&)
The combined identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed ASHAERITWEESERTAEAGEN
are as follows: T~
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) W - B MR (HEE14) 2
Other intangible assets (note 19) HEmmpaE (MzE19) 2,501
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e - TR RIE R H A RIS 1,455
Cash and cash equivalents ReERERRSEE 171
Trade payables B E S 3IE (181)
Other payables and accruals Hofh e FIE K R B (1,515)
Net assets acquired Fruk g & =R E 2,433
Satisfied by: LA S IBER
Cash Re 2,433
Purchase consideration settled in cash LIRS ENCEENRE 2,433
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B T EEIR e R ERIREIAR (171
Net cash outflows REmH F58 2,262
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting on 28 May 2012, the Board adopted a share option
scheme. Under the share option scheme, share options may be
granted to directors, employees of the Group and those who
have contributed or will contribute to the Group at any time
within ten years after its adoption at the discretion of the Board.
No share options have been granted by the Company since the
adoption of the share option scheme. There was no share-based
compensation expense in respect of the share option scheme
included in profit or loss for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 9 October 2018, the Company adopted the Restricted Share
Award Scheme to recognise the contributions by certain of the
Group's personnel and to provide them with incentives in order
to retain them for the continual operation and development of
the Group.

On 19 December 2018, a total of 1,806,000,000 Restricted
Shares were approved to issue to the custodian and held for the
relevant selected participants. The Restricted Shares of the
Company will be vested only after satisfactory completion of
performance-based targets. The Restricted Share Award Scheme
is subject to the administration of the Board in accordance with
the Restricted Share Award Scheme. As at 31 December 2020,
1,806,000,000 shares (2019: 1,806,000,000 shares) were held by
the custodian for the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

The Board shall not make any further grant of Restricted Shares
which will result in the total number of shares granted by the
Board under the Restricted Share Award Scheme to exceed
2,462,000,000 shares.

Unless terminated earlier by the Board, the Restricted Share
Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years
from the date of its adoption.

33.

34.

BB IR T &

BIER 201245 A 28 BE 1T 2 IR FF
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—TERER TS o IRIBFEARER S K
ERe+FR EF2rEHHBERD
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FABAEBELEMZAL - AR F
B 5% 40 B AR A 51 21 DA R R 4 % (R (] B
g o B 2= 20204 & 201912 H31 H
WEFE - BESERETEIARSG &
ZHERSFTABRE -

PR 1 14 B 19 22 B 5t 2
R2018F 10 H9H » NARHRAN—IER

HIER D BB U EAEEET
ANBFTEERI M A5 F 1 L 52/ - DA
BREGHAEESESENER -

7201812 819H - & #£1,806,000,000
R% BRI MRS (D JEHE 25 1T AT B AT
EEBELEERE - NA ARG MR
MERABERBER  BEERETK
“BHSRE - RHIMERGD EENETEI AR
EECRIER IR SR EIEE -
72020412 A31H * 1,806,000,000 %
(20194 : 1,806,000,000 f% ) A% 19 £ &%
EABBR SRR D BT EISE -

i Al — P R HIE R D g8 s E
ELRER SRS EE T EIR L 2%
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34. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME 34. REIMR D EBEE (2
(Continued)
Movements in the number of shares held for the Restricted FEBR FIMENR D BB T A 2 iy A
Share Award Scheme and the Restricted Shares of the Company NEPREIER D 28 B EBUT ¢

are as follows:

As at 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 7201941 818 * 20194

and 31 December 2020 12 A31HX2020%F12H31H 1,806,000 1,806,000
During the year 31 December 2020, approximately HK$2,135,000 HE2020F 12 A31BIEFE + 492,135,000
(2019: HK$2,135,000) was recognised as share-based payments 570 (20194F : 2,135,000 7T ) s EHE R
expense included in the profit or loss (note 13). BRI ABRE Z RO 2 (i

13) °
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35. RESERVES
Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 128 to 129
of the financial statements.

Notes:

(a)

The Group's capital distribution reserve represents the excess of the
credit arising from the reduction of nominal value of ordinary shares
and share premium account, over the net assets of a subsidiary
distributed during the year ended 31 December 2005.

The Group's general reserve includes capital reserve arising from
acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years and statutory reserves.

Subsidiaries of the Company established in Mainland China are required
to transfer 10% of their profit after tax calculated in accordance with
the PRC accounting regulations to the statutory reserve until the
reserve reaches 50% of their respective capital, upon which any further
appropriation will be at the directors’ recommendation. Such reserve
may be used to reduce any losses incurred by the subsidiaries or be
capitalised as paid-up capital of the subsidiaries.

It also include the difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company regarding the changes in the Group's
ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries.

35. f##&

£H

AFERBETEAEE B ERE
FHHAYHREB128F 108 2 &
AHEEBE -

FiGE

AEBMEARD R FBAEREZE 20054
12 A31 B IEFE R T mREE &R 5
SEERATEAS 2 ERBR KB AR
DIREEFEZEZE -

AEEZ —RFEEHEEEBEFERENE
RAEE 2 EARBIEERHE -

RABEPB AL KB R RARGIE
PR RN E 2 B E M E R 10%
BIBRERE EERRBESEELAZ
50% A1k - BREME - S ERAMESR
BEEL - ZRETANRERBARZ
EREEERCIEHE AR 2 BRI -

BB S v AR SR EAKER
MEBARZEREES (U BEALE
REHWBABZZHE) MEERER

RIAFHARRBER A2 DARE KK
EBAREBEZER -

“ESEEER ) FEBBERESEARAT
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35. RESERVES (Continued)
pany

Com

NC

35. #E @)

At 1 January 2019 R2019%F1A1H 79,579 178 949,642 1,029,399
Loss for the year FAEE - - (379,047) (379,047)
Special dividends (note 11) RIS (FT3E11) - - (109,530) (109,530)
Share-based payments expense RN 2B X

(note 34) (F5E34) - 2,135 - 2,135
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 12 A31B R

1 January 2020 20201818 79,579 2,313 461,065 542,957
Loss for the year FREE - - (15,424) (15,424)
Share-based payments expense AR 42 5%

(note 34) (F3E34) - 2,135 - 2,135
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A 31H 79,579 4,448 445,641 529,668
Notes: iRk
(a)  The Company's general reserve includes capital reserve arising from (@) ARAZ—REEEITBTFERENE

(b)

acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years.

Included in the Company's retained profits is an amount of
approximately HK$10,053,000 (2019: HK$10,053,000) which represents
the balance of the special reserve arising from the Company’s capital
reduction effected in a prior year.

According to the court order dated 21 June 2001 confirming the
Company’s capital reduction, the Company was required to credit a
sum arising from the capital reduction to a special reserve which cannot
be treated as realised profit as long as (a) the outstanding liabilities of
the Company as at the effective date of the capital reduction (i.e. the
“Relevant Debts"”) are not fully discharged; and (b) the persons to
whom the Relevant Debts are due have not agreed otherwise.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets
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36. THE COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

BEERAE

FRBEE

36. XA Tz HHARREEK

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT

Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKRERE 37 1,419
Interests in subsidiaries SN 105,721 105,721
Financial assets at fair value through AR EBEGT AHMEE
other comprehensive income Wz emEE 324 324
106,082 107,464
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and e BAFIEKEMm
other receivables FE U FRT8 1,696 1,863
Amount due from immediate e B T A R SR IE
holding company 64,556 21,456
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 1,134,276 1,132,309
Amount due from an associate JE U — FEJHSE & R B 5R0R 20 12
Cash and cash equivalents Re kERRELIER 35,657 94,102
1,236,205 1,249,742
Current liabilities REBBE
Other payables and accruals H b BB KR e B 4,300 4,334
Dividend payables FERTAR B 13,400 13,400
Amounts due to subsidiaries U IENGIE 554,322 554,632
Lease liabilities HEaE - 1,286
572,022 573,652
Net current assets REBEEFE 664,183 676,090
Total assets less current liabilities #EER A EE 770,265 783,554
Net assets EEFE 770,265 783,554
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36. THE COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 36. AABZHBEIRRBE (&)
POSITION (Continued)

2020
HK$'000
FET
EQUITY e
Share capital B AR 31 240,597 240,597
Reserves 1 35 529,668 542,957
Total equity AR 770,265 783,554
On behalf of the board of directors REREES
Liu Rong Chen Ming Fei
2g R 18 R
Director Director
E2 2
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37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 37. FERER
As at 1 January 2019 7K2019F1 H1H (7,340)
Profit for the year F R 158
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries b A NN 2y 7,182
As at 31 December 2019 72019612 H31H -
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group acquired HZE2019F12A31BLFE - KEE
additional 9.90% and 1.56% ownership interests in its two 7 Bk B R IR A M B A R (Bl L ok
existing subsidiaries, namely Beijing New Media and Chengdu R KE AR E) F85N9.90% K 1.56%
Gouyongyun respectively. Following these acquisitions, the Eam o EITHEWIERE  AEEHBEE I
Group had 100% ownership interests in these subsidiaries. The ZWBAFI0% B - BEXS
transactions have been accounted for as equity transactions with ARV BEGIHFIEREZ I ERZR S
the non-controlling interests and the combined financial effect of MEBARX S 2 EHIBEZERINNT

the transactions are summarised as follows:

Total considerations for the additional interests s ME RS 2 AR (B 2,399
Net liabilities attributable to non-controlling interests FFiEARE R FE L B (&) F 58 7,182
Decrease in equity attributable to owners of RNARHEE ANEIERERR D

the Company (included in general reserve (FrA—FRREE M E L)

and exchange reserve) 9,581
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38.

39.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, other interest income
amounting to approximately HK$107,869,000 (2019:
HK$34,235,000) in relation to loans to immediate holding
company was dealt through the current account with the
immediate holding company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the consideration in
relation to the acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$2,399,000 was offset with
certain other receivables within “deposits, prepayments and
other receivables”.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a MPF scheme and an ORSO scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of the trustees.

Subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
organised by the relevant government authorities. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit plan to fund the benefits.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

The total costs charged to the consolidated income statement
amounting to approximately HK$17,254,000 (2019:
HK$42,673,000) represent contributions payable to the schemes
by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of the schemes
(note 13).
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BEEERARERZEHMFBU AL
107,869,00078 7T (20194 : 34,235,000
BIL)BBEFEEER AR ZERER
T2 o

HE2019F12A31BILtEE - BEAIK
BN B R R IME R 2 B 492,399,000
BLEHEE  BAREREAMER
RIE | Mz BT HAEWGIEIR Y -

RAKBERIFTE
E R AGE

AEBEREEMBAEREERI®RIE
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ﬁ o
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40. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 40. EEMEREEREHF AL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
Directors emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of RIBEE B AN FE 622 EF BN A
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the B2 383 16 & B B A I £ 622G E
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of REI(FEEEFZER) ROIHE
Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G) are as follows: JEEWEWNT

Basic salaries, Pension costs

housing, other — defined  Share-based
allowances and  contribution payments
Fees hbenefits in kind plans expense
Exge -
E - Hfth Bihe
BEREY AR -EE MR %14
fig il e | ZAX st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TARL TR THT THER
2020 2020
Executive directors BITES
YU Pun Hoi Toig - 120 6 - 126
CHEN Ming Fei RIETR - 472 129 1,758 2,359
LIU Rong EIES - - - - -
Non-executive directors FHTES
LAM Bing Kwan HRE 60 - - - 60
CHENG Chih-Hung (note (i) BEER (M) 60 - - - 60

Independent non-executive BUFETES

directors
FUNG Wing Lap BRI 120 - = - 120
XIAO Sui Ning YE 133 - i i} 133
HO Yeung Nang (note (i) fr e (M3 Gii) 120 - - - 120

493 592 135 1,758 2,978
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40. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

40. EEMEREBBEHF AT @)

(a) ESME(®)

2019 2019%

Executive directors HTES

YU Pun Hoi ThiE - 120 6 - 126

CHEN Ming Fei BIE R - 477 143 1,758 2,378

LIU Rong 2% - - - - -

Non-executive directors FHTESE

LAM Bing Kwan WRE 60 - - - 60

CHENG Chih-Hung (note i) EIESNEL) 35 - - - 35

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Prof. JIANG Ping (note (i) LT (M 6i) 9 - - - 9

FUNG Wing Lap e 120 - - - 120

XIAO SuiNing BRE 135 - - - 135

HO Yeung Nang (note (ii) g (P& i) 70 - - - 70
519 597 149 1,758 3,023

Notes: B

(i) appointed as non-executive director with effect from 31 May (i) H2019F5 A31HRREZT AIE

2019 WiTE=S
(i) resigned as independent non-executive director with effect from (i) E2019F 921 B BT3B 3k
21 September 2019 WITEE
(i) appointed as independent non-executive director with effect (i) H2019F5A831BEEZT AN

from 31 May 2019
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40. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 40. EEMERAEBESFA T @)
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEBEEHAL
The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year AEBFARERSHTALTTRBE
included one (2019: one) director, details of whose —%(2019F : —F)EE - HB
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the SFIBEN £33 EHINE (2019
remaining four (2019: four) employees are as follows: F:UB)EEZMESOT :
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Basic salaries, other allowances AR - HitRA K&
and benefits in kind B = 2,147 1,756
Pension costs — defined BRIREKA — ERR
contribution plans HFRETEI 321 504
Share-based payments expense A7 189 189
2,657 2,449
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals, other hEEeHFAT(—BEE(2019
than a director (2019: a director), fell within the following Fr—RBER)RIN 2N TFT
band: HIEE -
Emolument band & & E Number of individuals
AE
Nil-HK$1,000,000 £ 2 1,000,000/8 7T 4 4
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no HE2020F X 201912 A31 81k
emoluments were paid to any of the Company'’s directors FE  WHEARNATEZEER AL H
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join SHATHZMEMME 0 ARS|IR
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of E s A N AR E B L s E
office. BB E o
None of the directors have waived or agreed to waive any MEEEREIRENEETER
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2020F K& 2019F12A31H It &
2020 and 2019. B2 EMBE -
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41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees given in connection with credit facilities granted to:

41. FAREE
HTFIF R S ERmE e 2 1R

An associate (Note)

— B & A (B RE)

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT

21,712 21,024

Note: In February 1993, a Group's associate borrowed a loan of US$5 million

from a Filipino bank namely Banco de Oro Unibank (formerly known as
Equitable PCI Bank Inc. and then as Banco de Oro-EPCI Inc.) (“Banco
Unibank”). The loan was secured by a guarantee executed by the
Company (“Banco Unibank Guarantee”), and by share mortgage of
74,889,892 shares (the “Philippines Shares”) of Acesite (Philippines)
Hotel Corporation Inc. (“Acesite Phils.”). Due to the claim made by the
Group against Banco Unibank is still pending, the Group is not able to
obtain updated indebtedness information from Banco Unibank. Given
the foregoing limitation, it is estimated that the outstanding balance of
the total indebtedness owing to Banco Unibank was approximately
US$2,800,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$21,712,000 (2019:
US$2,699,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$21,024,000) by
reference to the unaudited financial statements of the associate as at
31 December 2020.
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42. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flow were, or future cashflows will be classified in
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flow from financing
activities.

42. REBREREBB/RERTME

TRALMASERETHMELABZ
2 ERASKIFRSED  BED
BFELRBZREAEIRKRTR
EESRBAREERELTHGRARD

MEBHE -

At 1 January 2019 R201981818 - 2 64,626 532 33544 5,534 - 104,238
Changes from cash flows: ReHEss:
Repayments to associates ABENAER - - - - - (656) - (656)
Capital element of finance BRBERERS,

lease rental paid EAES - 2) - - - - - 2)
Capital element of lease payments RENFERHH - - 38.379) - - - - (38379)
Interest paid BAIfIE (822) - 4,176) - - - - (4,998)
Proceeds from bank borrowings BIUEERENE 34,048 - - - - - - 34,048
Repayment to immediate AERERAAER

holding company - - - - (13,170) - - (13,170)
Special dividends paid EfREARE - - - - - - 96,130 (96,130)
Total changes from financing cash flow ~ ER4HELHAE 33226 2 (42,555) - (13,170 (656) 96,130) (119,287)
Exchange realignment EjijE (621) - (887) - 2,965 9 - 1,566
Other changes: b2
Interest expenses ST 822 - 4176 - - - - 4,998
Special dividends declared ERkAIRE - - - - - - 109,530 109,530
Additions RE - - 20483 - - - - 20,483
Total other changes HpgaaE 822 - 24,659 - - - 109,530 135,011
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12831A 33527 - 45,843 532 23339 4887 13,400 121,528
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42. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 42 REBRSREBRRBIEWZE )
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

Amount
due to
Bank Amount  immediate  Amounts
borrowings, Lease due to holding dueto  Dividends
secured liabilities ~ adirector ~ company associates payables Total

RER R-%E% REE RBELR

BT HESE FE ERARHE e EfRE a5

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Thr TiEn Tin Thr Tin THR

(note 27) (note29) (note 26(a)) (note 26(b))  (note 26(c))

(WwFr)  (K&29)  (Wfskoe(a))  (MizE26(b))  (B3E26(c))

At 1 January 2020 R202061518 33521 45,843 532 23,339 4,887 13,400 121,528
Changes from cash flows: BEMERE !
Repayments to associates Bl - - - - (1,802) - (1,802)
Capital element of lease payments REFFT AR - (33,630) - - - - 33,630)
Interest paid BfiflE (1,920) (3,655) - - - - (5,575)
Praceeds from bank horrowings RIREMETE 44,959 - = = = = 44,959
Repayments of bank borrowings EERMEE (43,498) = = = = = (43.498)
Repayment to immedate REZERATER

holding company - - - (13177) - - (13177)
Total changes from financing cash flow FEE4RE%HLE (459) (37,285) - (13,177) (1,802) = (52,723)
Exchange realignment ERfE 2212 2,386 - 6,521 (141) = 11,478
Other changes: hgg:
Interest expenses R 1,920 3,655 = o o = 5575
Lease modification HEEY - (285) - - - - (285)
Covid-19-Related rent concessions 0195 HE R EIRE

HeRH - (1,484) - - - - (1,484)

Additions NE - 34,891 - - - - 34,891
Total other changes EtRBaE 1920 36,777 - - - - 38,697
At 31 December 2020 R20205 12318 37,200 48,221 532 16,683 2,944 13,400 118,980

234 Sino-i Technology Limited Annual Report 2020



Www.sino-i.com

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Remuneration for key management personnel which represents
amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in note
40.

Other interest income of HK$107,869,000 (2019:
HK$107,869,000) was derived from the immediate holding
company in which Mr. Yu Pun Hoi has 59.25% (2019: 59.25%)
beneficial interests.

Included in the revenue of HK$972,139,000 (2019:
HK$$963,567,000), amount of HK$5,786,000 (2019:
HK$6,200,000) and HK$161,000 (2019: HK$429,000) were
information service income from certain subsidiaries of Nan Hai
in which Mr. Yu Pun Hoi has 59.25% (2019: 59.25%) beneficial
interest and companies in which Ms. Liu Rong had 72.47% to
80.00% (2019: 72.47% to 80.00%) beneficial interest
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had paid
rental and management fees amounted to approximately
HK$4,452,000 (2019: HK$6,461,000) to certain subsidiaries of
Nan Hai in which Mr. Yu Pun Hoi has 59.25% (2019: 59.25%)
beneficial interests.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group acquired
entire issued shares of a subsidiary from Ms. Liu Rong and Mr.
Chen Ming Fei, the executive directors of the Company at a
consideration of RMB120,000 and RMB120,000 respectively.

43. BB TR 5

REEREABZME M EA0 IR
XNFARBEREZE®E

H 4 F) B U A 107,869,000 7T (2019
% :107,869,000/8 ) AR A T R/EL
ERE P E %% B59.25% (20194 ¢
59.25% ) # s 2 EiEZER A E 2 F B UL
)\ °

U 25972,139,000% JT(20194F :
963,567,000 7T ) # * 5,786,000/ JT
(20194 : 6,200,000 7T) & 161,000 7%
75 (20194F : 429,000 7T) D Bl AR B
TmBEERE R ERHEBN25%
(20194 : 59.256%) 2 B /BE T &
FTHBARRBIE LT RETRERES
72.47% % 80.00% (20194 : 72.47% =
80.00% ) e 2 AN F) 2 BFIBRFEBA ©

HZE2020F12A31HILFE  A&H
BERTmEEEERES59.25% (2019
% :59.25%) w2 EEETETHE
NEZ e REEB4 4,452,000 7T
(20194 : 6,461,000 7T) °

HZE2019F12A31BHILFE » K& H
7] 2 88 4 = KBRS R 4 £ U B — R B
RAZEEBEITRG REDAABAR
# 120,000 7T &2 A R # 120,000 7T °
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44.

45.

MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in notes 26(a), 26(b) and 43, no transactions,
arrangements, or contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, were entered into or subsisted during the
financial year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of financial
instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in its
investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including currency risk and interest risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group's
headquarters, in close co-operation with the Board. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the
Group’s short to medium term cash flows by minimising its
exposure to financial markets. Long term financial investments
are managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable risk
levels.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. The Board from
time to time identifies ways to access financial markets and
monitors the Group's financial risk exposures.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45 iR EER A AEBETE

VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (&)
45.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 451 TREERAGEZIE
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated REEMBARRREEY 2 REEAE
statements of financial position relate to the following ET?'J*EB'J&@%QF&&F&?ETT@
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: B -
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FAT
Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at FVOC] BAREBET AL MEARE
ZEREE 324 324
At amortised cost: LB SHR AR BR
— Loans to immediate holding company — ﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁﬁ“’“ BB 1,504,957 1,397,088
— Trade receivables — BB ZFIA 36,303 43,927
— Deposits and other receivables — e M EAEWFIE 130,661 23,129
— Cash and cash equivalents —Re kERREIER 265,080 293,838
1,937,325 1,758,306
Financial liabilities THas
Financial liabilities measured REHEKAGTEZSRAE
at amortised cost:
— Trade payables — BB SR 32,493 38,015
— Other payables and accruals — Hfb I FRIB R ERTE R 88,698 66,266
— Dividend payables — EMIRE 13,400 13,400
— Amount due to a director — R*%%%éﬁ 532 532
— Amount due to immediate — REEERRARFIA
holding company 16,683 23,339
— Amounts due to associates — REEE A RIFRIA 2,944 4,887
— Bank borrowings, secured — ﬁﬁﬁ?‘ﬁﬁfﬂ%fé 37,200 33,527
— Other employee benefits — HibE BEA 30,154 64,959
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 48,221 45,843
270,325 290,768
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45 KRB EEBR ARAEEFTE
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (&)

451 cREEREBEZYEE)

45.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate their fair value as all of them are in
short-term nature: cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and payables, other receivables and payables,
bank borrowings, secured, loans to immediate holding
company, amount(s) due to immediate holding company/a
director/associates. Analysis of the interest rates and
carrying amounts of loans to/amount due to immediate
holding company, lease liabilities and bank borrowings,
secured are presented in notes 26(b), 29 and 27 to the
financial statements respectively.

45.2 Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposure to currency exchange rates in RMB is minimal as
majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operates in
Mainland China with most of the transactions denominated
and settled in RMB. The Group currently does not have a
hedging policy on currency risk but the management would
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The policies to manage currency risk have been followed
by the Group since prior years and are considered to be
effective.

45.3 Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the
impact of interest rate changes on interest bearing cash
and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents carried at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there was no
variable rate borrowing. The interest rates of cash and cash
equivalents of the Group are disclosed in note 22. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the directors monitor interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
change exposure should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E
45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45 KRB EEBR ARAEEFTE
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (&)

45.3 Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued) 45.3 B REBFIRES (&)

Cash flow interest rate risk sensitivity

As at 31 December 2020, the Group was exposed to
changes in market interest rates through its cash and cash
equivalents (2019: cash and cash equivalents), which are
subject to variable interest rates. The following table
illustrates the sensitivity of the profit for the year and
retained earnings to a change in interest rates of +50 basis
points and -50 basis points (2019: +50 basis points and -50
basis points), with effect from the beginning of the year.
The calculations are based on the Group’s bank balance
(2019: bank balance) held at each reporting date. All other
variables are held constant.

If interest rates were 50 basis
points higher

fisf A 2= 7+ 50 B EE

RERBRNRERBRE

$2020%12 A31H » AEERER
FEFERFEZESNERRSE
B (20194 : ReNERBFLEE)
MAETSH EE R - TKRE
mEFIEE - FREMNRRE A
FI$H 38 +50 E E 2h & 50 8 Z 24
(20194 : +50 & £ B & -50 & X
)M EEF 2 BRE - I IR
REBPESREBBIFE BT
# (20194 « SRITHEBR)ZTE - AT
EHMBH B TE o

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz THAT

Increase in profit for the year F A0k )38 0 1,325 1,469
If interest rates were 50 basis ik 1) 2= T P& 50 R E 25

points lower

Decrease in profit for the year F A AR A (1,325) (1,469)

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to
be reasonably possible based on observation of current
market conditions and represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rate over the next twelve month period.

FIE 2 BB BERAENE AT
RERTZARTLED  LAE
BEHFIFHRART —EABHE
AR LBE Y T -
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45. B K EBEER A REE
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (1)

45.4 Credit risk 454 EE R

n_l‘l_f
fein

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables, other receivables, loans to immediate holding
company and cash deposits at banks. The carrying amounts
of trade receivables, other receivables, loans to immediate
holding company and cash and cash equivalents represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash deposits at banks since they are
substantially deposited at state-owned banks and other
medium or large-sized listed banks. Management does not
expect that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The Group has large number of customers and there was
no concentration of credit risk. The Group has monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverability of these receivables at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45 KRB EEBR ARAEEFTE
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (&)

45.4 Credit risk (Continued) 454 EERM (&)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

° internal credit rating;

o external credit rating;

° actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the
customer’s ability to meet its obligations;

° actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor/customer;

o significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the customer, including changes in the
payment status of customer in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the customer.

REERSREBRE—ERFEZE
NP HREER ZEAMEREE

RRBEGBELEN - A EEER
b BEEBEEN  AEELREE
RS B2 EL R ER Y i
RABZENRR - HEEASE
A EAKIBE ZRIIEER - LHN
ATIEZ

o MEMEERFAR
o IMPMEEFFAR:

. Bl e N R PRBITEEEZ

ﬁL&EK AE) L EETE
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45 I EAREER AAEETE

VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (#&)
45.4 Credit risk (Continued) 45.4 ERMK (&)
(i) Trade receivables (i) EWESHE
The Group measures loss allowances for trade AEBZBEN KB EEE
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, BstE 2 HEHEEEIE
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the ZEEAERIRESRIAEY
Group's historical credit loss experience does not FEEEE AR AEEBE
indicate significantly different loss patterns for EEEERKE T EBARTRE
different customer segments, the loss allowance BESBEEE TR ZER
based on past due status is not further distinguished B WMERBTEERKR
between the Group's different customer bases. ZEEEBEELE—FED
REBTRZEFER -

The following table provides information about the TRIBMHE BAERER 2020
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade F K2019F12A31BFTE
receivables as at 31 December 2020 and 2019: HEKRE SHREZEERR

REMEERRZER -

At 31 December 2020 R2020E12831R

ECL rate (%) BHEEHEE (%) 0%* 0%* 2h Wl h

Gross camying amount (HK$'000) B 4E (A7) 12,825 9,589 6,133 4,621 16,853 50,027

Loss allowance (HKS'000) BREE(TET) (49) (37) (129) (1,008) (12411) (13,724)

At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A318

ECL rate (%) BEEERHER %) 0%* 0%* 1% 14% 83%

Gross carrying amount (HKS'000)  BRE4E (T T) 20528 11,264 3202 4642 6,552 18188

Loss allowance (HKS'000) BRERE(TER) (65 (31) (47) (651) (3467) (4.261)

* rounded to nearest percentage for disclosure purpose * NBREHELASL  EE
only WEAE
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

45.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates are determined with reference to
historical actual loss experience. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believed that no
impairment allowance was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.

The change in loss allowance account was mainly due
to increase in the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables as at reporting date. Movement in the
loss allowance account in respect of trade receivables
during the year is as follows:

45. K EBEER A AREBEGFE

(%)

45.4 EE R (9)

(i)

FEW & 5 R ()

BHEEEBRXD2RBHE
ERBRERET %5
RO K HBEARBAT S B
EBURY & 2 B Z B
MER  BRARRRAEE
HEWRAREA FRH LR
AR Z R -

B 78 53 1B 3 R E 2 FE WK
HEZZNAEEE RTFB
EREBZBYRFPAR - R
EBELR BEERR-
BEBDER B ZTHK
B - BB A% EERIEH
B -

BRAERLRES T2
RS B 82 EUE 5 R
RRE BRI - F R B
B SRS R B
HEIT -

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Balance at 1 January A A1 B 28 4,261 3,771
ECLs recognised FAERBHREERE
during the year (note 7) (FsE7) 8,693 570
Exchange realignment PE 5 % 770 (80)
Balance at 31 December R12 B 31 Bz 458k 13,724 4,261
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45 B AR EE R AAEETE
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (&)
45.4 Credit risk (Continued) 45.4 B Rk (%)

(ii)

Loans to immediate holding company

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’'s loans to
immediate holding company amounted to a total of
approximately HK$1,504,957,000 (2019:
HK$1,397,088,000).

Due to the severe impact of COVID-19 on the cinema
industry and the requirements for epidemic
prevention and control in all regions and industry
regulatory requirements in the PRC, the cinemas
business of immediate holding company have been
suspended operations since the end of January 2020,
and gradually resumed operation until July 2020. As
such, the immediate holding company recorded year-
on-year decrease in revenue relating to cinema
business and significant impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment, goodwill and other intangible
assets in the cinema business and innovative
business during the year. Given an actual significant
deterioration in the operating results of the immediate
holding company, this indicates the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition and
therefore its impairment provisions is measured
based on lifetime ECLs basis (not credit-impaired).
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

45.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Loans to immediate holding company (Continued)

To assist management in assessing the provision for
impairment on loans to immediate holding company,
the Group has engaged an independent professional
valuer to conduct the impairment assessment. As
explained in note 26(b), given that the loans to
immediate holding company is secured by Listar
Mortgage Shares and the fair value of such is above
the outstanding loan balances, no loss allowance was
recognised as the amount of ECLs for the loans to
immediate holding company has immaterial financial
impact to these financial statements.

Other receivables

The balances are considered to have low credit risk
as the counterparties have a low risk of default and
does not have any past due amounts. Loss allowance
for these balances is measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs. No addition loss allowance was
recognised as the amount of ECLs for these balances
has immaterial financial impact to these financial
statements as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

45. K EBEER A AREBEGFE

()
45.4 {5 BB ()
(i) MEEERATDER(E)

AHEEETEREEE
BRABBERZRERE &~
EEEREB Y EEGER
1T R E T (E o M AT
26(b) Frit - A M HEER
NEIE A Listar D 1E
BH mEBAREESR
REBERES MEME
BERARBERZESHEE
EESHEUZEVHEHREZ
MBS EMTRE W E
TEREBEE -

(iii) HtEWE

ZEEBEEAEEER
% REAABYE HFEHERE
K B34 T A HA R OH -
REEBZBEREZRES
R12ERBHEEREZ
T 2 0 7020204 & 2019
F12 31 BARZESEH
BHEEEBBESEYEZEY
BHRRZUMEFEEN &
I EREREINE B o
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45. B AR ERER A ABEE

VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (&)

45.5 Liquidity risk 45.5 RBE SRR
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining EERDESRBREEIEBBIRT
sufficient cash and availability of funding through the ability BYAEZRENFEAETHVIRS KAt
to close-out market positions. FAES -
The following table details the remaining contractual TREFVAEBIETESRBER
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’'s non- REBH B TAENORNEER - 1
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual DIRBERMBEAVESRE(BEE
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments WETHM=RS (B AT R ) IRHE
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on B ANERR R E R a8 E) B
rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the ErAREEMESES N %FHE
Group can be required to pay: mEH :

Total
contractual On demand More than More than
Carrying  undiscounted or within  1year but less 2 years but less
amount cash flow one year than 2 years than 5 years

AERAH RERE BE-% BAmEF

REE ReREAR A-FR BORmE  BIREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tiégn TER TER TR

As at 31 December 2020 R2020512F 318

Trade payables EGE 32,493 32,493 32,493 - -
Other payables and accruals HthENZARETER 88,698 88,698 88,698 - -
Dividend payables FE(TR S 13,400 13,400 13,400 - -
Amount due to a director R—BEEHH 532 532 532 = -

Amount due to immediate RERERDAFE
holding company 16,683 16,683 16,683 - -
Amounts dug to associates REENRZIE 2,944 2,944 2,944 - -
Bank horrowings, secured BEAROEE 37,200 37,501 37,501 = =
Other employee benefits HtofE 27 30,154 31,400 25,031 3,057 3,312
Lease liabilities BEEE 48,221 52,871 26,464 12,939 13,468
270,325 276,522 243,746 15,996 16,780

Financial guarantee issued BENIBER
Maximum amount guaranteed ~ SHERLE
(note 41) (Ftsan) - 21,712 2,712 = -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS HRAR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2= 2020F 12 A31 BILFE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45 I EAREER AAEETE
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) ()

45.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 45.5 R EE S EB (4)

As at 31 December 2019 R2019E 128318

Trade payables [ERE 5508 38,015 38,015 38,015 - -
Other payables and accruals ~ EthERZIE L EHER 66,266 66,266 66,266 - -
Dividend payables [ERRE 13,400 13,400 13,400 - -
Amount due to a director R—REEHE 532 532 532 - -

Amount due to immediate  REEZRAFTE
holding company 23,339 23,339 23,339 - -
Amounts due to associates  REE N A)FE 4,887 4,887 4,887 = -
Bank borrowings, secured  AEMBFTEE 33527 34,257 34,257 - -
Other employee benefits EiEERH 64,959 69,499 29,295 21,562 18,642
Lease liabilities BEEE 45,843 49,635 26,934 14,301 8,400
290,768 299,830 236,925 35,863 27,042

Financial quarantee issued B EHBEIER
Maximum amount guaranteed SEEREE

[note 41) (GEZY) - 21,024 21,024 - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

45.6 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The Group followed HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures which introduce a three-level hierarchy for fair
value measurement disclosures and additional disclosures
about the relative reliability of fair value measurements.

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.
The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into
three levels based on the relative reliability of significant
inputs used in measuring the fair value of these financial
assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

— Level 1: quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable of the asset and
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement.

248 ) Sino-i Technology Limited ) Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS SRR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z=2020F 12 A31 BIEFE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45 I EAREER AAEETE

VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

45.6 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(Continued)

The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped
into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

(&)
456 ERMIAZR

=(E)

REE

=1/ 2

RiFEMERRBER AR A R(EE
AEZEREETED
BERE

DRI RS

As at 31 December 2020

M2020F12A31H

Financial assets measured BARBEEFERZ
at fair value CREE
Financial assets at FVOCI BARBEFARMEZE
Wy epEE - 324 = 324
As at 31 December 2019 M2019%12A31H
Financial assets measured BAREBETEZ
at fair value CREE
Financial assets at FVOCI BAAEEFAZMEZE
Wamr epEE - 324 - 324

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair values of the
club debenture are determined with reference to the
quoted market bid price available to the second-hand
market as at the reporting date. Given that the second hand
market is not considered as an active market, the fair
values of the club debenture are grouped into Level 2.

There have been no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 in
the reporting period. The methods and valuation techniques
used for the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged
compared to the previous reporting period.

M 20204 K2 2019412 A31H -
FrfEH < AR ﬁfﬁﬁﬂ%iﬁiaﬁsﬁ
ZFEMBA B TISRIERE - A
RZFWMBUTRAEETRTSE @
&S AABEIAE2E -

RIERE - B1/E - F2EHE3
EzRLEEANERE - ANFTER
/LFTE,Z??&)SZETE&TTIEE&@GEiE
&= B A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020%F 12 A31 B IL&F/E

46. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods and
services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure and
make adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payables to shareholders, issue new shares or raise and
repay debts. The Group's capital management objectives,
policies or processes were unchanged during the current and
previous years.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total equity plus net debt. Net debt is
calculated as the bank borrowings, secured less cash and cash
equivalents. The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the reporting date were
as follows:

46. EXEE

AEBEAEEZ I ZERABRAE
B ERERN  URBEYERSE
ERTARRIERE ZER  /SECEREHR
RHIEHR

ZK’*@FW&EE%?ET%%ZK%% 3
%%/;‘LKHK/RZLM%DAEHW %iﬁﬁ
‘JZaﬂW§$ T% ZRER B Al RE R B IR S
TRRZBE  HITHRHE &1%? £
&7 e %Ki&&iﬂ&if AEEZ
ERNEERR  BORIBFILEEE -

AEBFERERNB B X (AMERKFRER
RmABINETSFR) BEEERN - E5F
HRAEBMRTEERRERERRE
HAFE - AEEZBEAKEAAR
HREFRAEKF - RBESEHZE
AREFELRMT

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHBT

Bank borrowings, secured BIERITEER 37,200 33,527
Total debt B 4azE 37,200 33,527
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RehERIRLIER (265,080) (293,838)
Net debt B FEE (227,880) (260,311)
Total equity SRR 1,556,589 1,439,110
Total equity plus net debt B AREMERFE 1,328,709 1,178,799
Gearing ratio EXRBELE N/A FE A N/A i A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 2020412 A31 HILF/E

EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE

On 22 December 2020, the Company entered into an agreement
with the immediate holding company, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to purchase (or procure the
purchase) and the immediate holding company has conditionally
agreed to sell (or procure the sale) 100% equity interest in #5
K E R #H 3R 5=) B R A A (Digcine Oristar Technology
Development (Beijing) Company Limited*, (“Oristar”)) at the
consideration of RMB488 million. The core business of Oristar is
to provide complete digital solutions for cinemas, supporting
cinema business operations and cinema operation decision-
making support. Details of transaction has been set out in the
Company’s announcement dated on 22 December 2020. The
acquisition is subject to, amongst other things, the independent
shareholders’ approval at the general meeting of the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, a deposit of RMB97,600,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$115,997,000) was paid to the
immediate holding company for the acquisition of Oristar
according to the terms of the agreement (note 21).

COMPARATIVE FIGURE

Certain comparative figure has been represented to conform
with change in presentation in current year, being ECL on
financial assets of approximately HK$570,000 reclassified from
"other operating expenses” and separately shown as “Expected
credit loss on financial assets” in the consolidated income
statement.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 30
March 2021.

*  For identification purpose only
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REEE (RERERE) MEBERA
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IFUBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group ZANEEBEREMBEE s £EREERAE

for the last five financial years is set out as follows: ZHEEHY T -
2020
HK$'000
TExT
Revenue Wz 972,139 963,567 1,012,450 833,245 818,098
Profit for the year E R F 111,014 22,367 375,812 10,022 46,663
Less: Non-controlling interests 3 : 3EiZpRfE 2 - 158 (1,640) (1,363) (2,480)
Profit attributable to the FiN/NEIE ¥ N
owners of the Company St A 111,014 22,209 377,452 11,385 49,143
Total assets BEE 2,278,301 2,116,458 2,092,860 2,506,702 2,579,413
Total liabilities BEE (721,712) (677,348) (561,092) (683,314) (777,311)

1,556,589 1,439,110 1,631,768 1,823,388 1,802,102
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